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       1                         P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from

       3       Volume 3.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Everybody back and ready

       5       to go?  We're on rebuttal.  Mr. Franke, welcome back.

       6                              JON FRANKE

       7       was called as a rebuttal witness on behalf of Progress

       8       Energy Florida, Inc., and having been duly sworn,

       9       testified as follows:

      10                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      11       BY MR. WALLS:

      12            Q.   Mr. Franke, it has been so long since you have

      13       been here, could you remind them who you are and what

      14       your position is?

      15            A.   Yes.  My name is Jon Franke.  I'm the Vice

      16       President for the Crystal River Nuclear Plant.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I thought you looked

      18       familiar.

      19       BY MR. WALLS:

      20            Q.   Have you filed Rebuttal Testimony with

      21       exhibits in this proceeding on August 3, 2010?

      22            A.   Yes, I have.

      23            Q.   And do you have a copy of that with you?

      24            A.   I do.

      25            Q.   Do you have any changes to make to this
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       1       rebuttal testimony?

       2            A.   I have none.

       3            Q.   If I asked you the same questions I asked in

       4       your Rebuttal Testimony today, would you give the same

       5       answers?

       6            A.   Yes, I would with the same caveats I provided

       7       this morning with regard to the schedule for refueling

       8       17 and the delivery date that we are expecting to

       9       deliver the license application report to the NRC.  It's

      10       referenced in a few positions in that testimony.

      11                 MR. WALLS:  We request that the Prefiled

      12       Rebuttal Testimony be moved into evidence as if it was

      13       read in the record today.

      14                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Show that moved into the

      15       record as though read.

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. WALLS:

       2            Q.   And, Mr. Franke, do you have a summary of your

       3       rebuttal testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I do.

       5            Q.   Will you provide that to the Commission?

       6            A.   Yes.  My rebuttal testimony responds to the

       7       recommendations in OPC Witness Dr. Jacobs' testimony and

       8       the Staff Audit Report regarding the CR-3 uprate

       9       project.  Dr. Jacobs agrees that the correct course of

      10       action going forward is to continue installation of our

      11       extended power uprate modifications.  He does, however,

      12       want to wait until future information from the NRC

      13       licensing application review is available to make the

      14       decision whether or not our decisions today are prudent

      15       using hindsight.  That doesn't work very well.

      16                 Today I have to make decisions whether I am

      17       going to install the modifications or not.  I do not --

      18       I'm not allowed the luxury of waiting for that review by

      19       the NRC to determine if I would change my mind in

      20       prudency.  So today I believe we actually are in

      21       agreement that given the information today that the

      22       expenses incurred in 2009 and '10 and proposed for 2010

      23       and '11 as demonstrated in my testimony is appropriate,

      24       and as such, with the information available today, meets

      25       the rules of prudency.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    836

       1                 The staff auditors make three recommendations.

       2       Two of these recommendations relate to cost or equipment

       3       items that have now been resolved at no additional cost

       4       to our Progress Energy Florida customers for those

       5       specific issues.  We settled the low pressure turbine

       6       issues with the manufacturer on favorable terms for our

       7       customers and the company.  With respect to the license

       8       and application costs, the initial draft licensing

       9       application submittal was not of a quality that it

      10       should have been, and we should have been on top of that

      11       earlier.  We discussed that this morning.  But our

      12       levels of project management oversight, which included

      13       the expert panel's reviews that caught these issues

      14       worked well.

      15                 Our expert panel recommended both improvements

      16       in the quality of some of the existing LAR sections and

      17       additional engineering and design details to meet

      18       evolving industry standards for license application

      19       requests in both the existing and additional LAR

      20       sections.  Our vendor has corrected the quality at no

      21       additional cost to the customers.  The additional

      22       engineering and design details did require additional

      23       costs, but this work and these costs would have been

      24       incurred anyway to complete the LAR for the NRC

      25       acceptance and approval.
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       1                 The third recommendation reflects staff's

       2       concerns regarding the impact of the current extended

       3       outage at CR-3 on the CR-3 uprate project.  I would just

       4       like to say that there are no cost impacts as a result

       5       of this event in the current actual, estimated, or

       6       projected costs for the CR-3 uprate project in this

       7       specific docket.  This concern is not an issue for these

       8       proceedings.

       9                 I am available to answer any questions.

      10                 MR. WALLS:  We tender Mr. Franke for cross.

      11                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I have agreed, no questions.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  I just want to

      13       make sure.  Checking.

      14                 MS. KAUFMAN:  No questions.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  No questions?  Okay.

      16                 MR. DAVIS:  No questions.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  No questions.  Staff?

      18                 MS. BENNETT:  Staff has no questions.

      19                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioners?

      20                 See you later.

      21                 THE WITNESS:  You all did know it was me,

      22       right?

      23                 (Laughter.)

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  You're excused.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Our next -- let's

       2       see, where's my list?  I'm sorry.  Elnitsky, John

       3       Elnitsky.

       4                 MR. WALLS:  Progress calls John Elnitsky to

       5       the stand.

       6                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Elnitsky.  Excuse me, I

       7       said it wrong.  I apologize.

       8                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Excuse me.  Did Progress want

       9       to enter their rebuttal exhibits?

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  That would be good.

      11                 MR. WALLS:  Good idea.  Thank you.  Mr. Franke

      12       was out of here so fast I forgot that he had exhibits.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you, staff.  We

      14       all need help sometimes.

      15                 MR. WALLS:  We would move into evidence

      16       Mr. Franke's Exhibits JF-3 through JF-9, which are

      17       Exhibits 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 83, and 84 in the staff

      18       Comprehensive Exhibit List.

      19                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Hearing no objection.

      20                 MR. WALLS:  Thank you.

      21                 (Exhibits 78 through 84 admitted into the

      22       record.)

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  You're recognized.

      24                            JOHN ELNITSKY

      25       was called as a Direct and Rebuttal witness on behalf of

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    839

       1       Progress Energy Florida, Inc., and having been duly

       2       sworn, testified as follows:

       3                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

       4       BY MR. WALLS:

       5            Q.   Mr. Elnitsky, will you please introduce

       6       yourself to the Commission and provide your business

       7       address.

       8            A.   My name is John Elnitsky.  Good afternoon.  My

       9       business address is 299 First Avenue North, St.

      10       Petersburg, Florida.

      11            Q.   And you have already been sworn as a witness,

      12       is that correct?

      13            A.   Yes, I have.

      14            Q.   And who do you work for and what is your

      15       position?

      16            A.   I am the Vice President of New Generation

      17       Programs and Projects.  As such, I work for Paula Sims,

      18       the Senior Vice President for the Corporate Development

      19       Improvement Group.

      20            Q.   Have you filed prefiled Direct and Rebuttal

      21       Testimony and exhibits in this proceeding?

      22            A.   Yes, I have.

      23            Q.   And do you have copies of those with you?

      24            A.   Yes, I do.

      25            Q.   Do you have any changes to make to your
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       1       prefiled testimony?

       2            A.   Yes, I do.  Three corrections in my Direct

       3       Testimony filed on April 30th, 2010, all editorial.  The

       4       first one is on Page 3, Line 3.  The word on that line

       5       says indirectly, that should read directly as opposed to

       6       indirectly.  On Page 4, Lines 18 and 19, the numbering

       7       of these two exhibits are reversed.  JE-2 should, in

       8       fact, read JE-3, and JE-3 should be JE-2.  Likewise, on

       9       Page 15, as a result of that change, JE-3 should be

      10       replaced with JE-2.  I have no other changes to my

      11       direct or rebuttal testimony.

      12            Q.   And, Mr. Elnitsky, if I asked you the same

      13       questions in your Prefiled Direct and Rebuttal Testimony

      14       today, would you give the same answers?

      15            A.   Yes, I would.

      16                 MR. WALLS:  We request that the Prefiled

      17       Direct and Rebuttal testimony of Mr. John Elnitsky be

      18       moved into evidence as if it was read in the record

      19       today.

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Show that moved as

      21       though read today.

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. WALLS:

       2            Q.   And, Mr. Elnitsky, do you have a summary of

       3       your Direct and Rebuttal Testimony, which I believe you

       4       will be giving in combination here?

       5            A.   Yes, I do.

       6                 And good afternoon, Commissioners.  My name is

       7       John Elnitsky.  As I mentioned, I am the Vice President

       8       of New Generation Programs and Projects.  In that role I

       9       am responsible for the leadership and management of the

      10       Levy Nuclear Project, including the engineering,

      11       procurement, and construction contract or agreement,

      12       which you will hear referred to as the EPC, for the Levy

      13       Nuclear Plants.

      14                 Since I haven't appeared here before, by way

      15       of background, I joined Progress Energy in 2007 at that

      16       time as the Vice President of Major Construction

      17       Projects, after over 27 years in the United States Navy.

      18       While I was in the Navy, I commanded an Ohio class

      19       nuclear submarine and oversaw the construction of two

      20       submarines through reactor plant initial criticality and

      21       sea trials.  I also had the opportunity to serve as the

      22       Atlantic Submarine Force Chief Nuclear Power Officer,

      23       and in that role I was responsible for the safe reactor

      24       plant operation of 30 submarines and four nuclear

      25       maintenance activities.
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       1                 My most recent role in the Navy was as the

       2       Commander of the Naval Undersea Warfare Center and the

       3       Director of Undersea Technology, where I led a

       4       4,100-member workforce and a $1.3 billion per year

       5       research, development, and engineering business.  I am

       6       certified as a Department of Defense Acquisition

       7       Professional and as a Project Management Institute

       8       Project Management Professional.

       9                 My Direct Testimony today explains the

      10       company's evaluations of the options regarding the Levy

      11       Nuclear Project in light of the single schedule shift

      12       necessitated by licensing delays and other enterprise

      13       risks that affected the project.  I explained the

      14       company's negotiations with the Westinghouse and Shaw,

      15       Stone, and Webster consortium under the EPC agreement to

      16       address this single schedule shift and move forward with

      17       the project on a slower pace.

      18                 My Direct Testimony explains that the company

      19       made informed decisions as a result of a rational,

      20       deliberate decision-making process consistent with

      21       reasonable prudent business practices in our industry

      22       and consistent with our role as a good steward of the

      23       ratepayers' dollars.  As a result, the company acted

      24       reasonably and prudently in managing the Levy Nuclear

      25       Project, amending the engineering, procurement, and
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       1       construction agreement and moving forward with the Levy

       2       Nuclear Project on a modified schedule.

       3                 In terms of my rebuttal testimony, the

       4       intervenor witnesses challenge the company's decision to

       5       continue with the Levy Nuclear Project on a slower pace

       6       because they apparently believe a different decision

       7       should have been made.  When the company was faced with

       8       a project schedule shift and increased uncertainties and

       9       risks associated with the project, our project

      10       management team evaluated all reasonable options,

      11       including project cancellation.  We recommended to

      12       senior management the option to continue with the Levy

      13       Nuclear Project on a slower pace only after it was clear

      14       we would be able to negotiate a favorable amendment to

      15       the EPC agreement, and the implementation of that

      16       amendment mitigated short-term uncertainty and risk

      17       while preserving the contractual and long-term benefits

      18       of nuclear generation.

      19                 Let me be clear, the project continues to move

      20       forward.  The Levy Nuclear Project is feasible from a

      21       regulatory and technical perspective.  The Nuclear

      22       Regulatory Commission is proceeding with the AP 1000

      23       design review towards a final rule approval of the

      24       reactor design.  And currently that final rulemaking is

      25       scheduled for September of 2011.
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       1                 The Regulatory Commission is also proceeding

       2       with its review of the company's combined construction

       3       and operating license.  License applications toward

       4       issuance of the Levy Nuclear Plant license are on track

       5       and our final -- excuse me, our draft environmental

       6       impact statement was issued on 6 August of 2010.

       7                 There is no indication today that any

       8       technical issue with respect to the AP 1000 design will

       9       prevent the successful completion of these licensing

      10       activities and the application of the AP 1000 nuclear

      11       reactor design to the Levy Nuclear Plant site.  Nuclear

      12       reactors can, and have been built in Florida, and

      13       continue to operate today.  Project cancellation is

      14       simply not supported solely on the basis of regulatory

      15       or technical infeasibility.

      16                 I'm available to answer any questions.

      17                 MR. WALLS:  We tender Mr. Elnitsky for cross.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  Any cross?

      19                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

      20                 Madam Chairman, as a housekeeping matter, I

      21       have passed out, I believe everyone has a copy of the

      22       exhibits that we agreed upon in our streamlining session

      23       this morning with the company.  And if it please you, I

      24       would just like to go ahead and move those in en masse

      25       at this point, if that would be appropriate.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Let's go ahead.  Did we

       2       number those this morning?

       3                 MR. REHWINKEL:  We have not.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  I believe we left

       5       off at 211, is that correct?

       6                 MR. REHWINKEL:  That is correct.  So 212 would

       7       be the next.

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  Madam Chairman, to make sure you

       9       guys have a copy of these exhibits, can you please check

      10       and see if you have a copy of them?  If not we can

      11       provide you with copies.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Well, I think Mr.

      13       Rehwinkel is going to go over each one.

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Do you have -- yes.  I should

      15       have passed out sets of six.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Now we need to know for

      17       sure, because I don't see a set of six.  Okay.  Let's

      18       give it a couple of minutes here and get them passed

      19       out.

      20                 Thank you.  Is this six of them?  Okay.  Thank

      21       you.

      22                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And what we are going to do is

      23       I think the company is going to -- again, like we did

      24       this morning, they are going to make the proper

      25       redactions for the version that we provide to the court
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       1       reporter.  And the first exhibit would be -- and the

       2       order may be a little different, but since there are

       3       only six, I think we can easily find them.  The first

       4       exhibit, which would be 212, would be Janus, J-A-N-U-S,

       5       interview, Elnitsky.

       6                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Wait a minute.  Yes, I'm

       7       sorry.

       8                 MS. HUHTA:  The Janus Management notes, a

       9       portion of them will be confidential, just a small

      10       portion.  I don't believe that everybody has an

      11       appropriately highlighted copy.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  So we, meaning

      13       all of us and the court reporter, we don't have the

      14       confidential copies, redacted copies, is that what

      15       you're saying?

      16                 MS. HUHTA:  I believe that's correct.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yours is?

      18                 MR. REHWINKEL:  If I could consult with the

      19       company.

      20                 MR. YOUNG:  Ours is.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  I've got some

      22       that are so far and some that are not.  Actually, the

      23       first one is redacted and it looks like the rest are

      24       not.

      25                 Commissioners, same thing?
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       1                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Again --

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Weren't we going to be

       3       waiting for the redacted versions anyway?

       4                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Well, again, these documents,

       5       for the most part, were designated confidential in their

       6       entirety.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  So they are

       8       confidential in their entirety.

       9                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I think the Janus document has

      10       some that was yellow highlighted where the company had

      11       already decided.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Very good.

      13                 MR. REHWINKEL:  So at this point these

      14       documents need to all be treated confidentially, except

      15       where there is no highlighting.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Very good.

      17                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Or unless there is a statement

      18       that they are not.  And I think we can go through that

      19       as we introduce each document.

      20                 MS. HUHTA:  Just to quickly clarify, I think

      21       with the Janus Management we had the original issue with

      22       not color copying again.  And we went through and we

      23       highlighted.  But I don't believe we highlighted all

      24       20 copies, so I'm not certain that the Commissioners

      25       would have the appropriately highlighted versions.
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       1                 We do intend to provide staff with

       2       appropriately highlighted and appropriately redacted

       3       versions as soon as possible tomorrow, but it was

       4       impossible to get all of the highlighting done before

       5       Mr. Elnitsky was on today.

       6                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       7                 MR. REHWINKEL:  That was our original goal was

       8       to streamline things, get these in there, and then the

       9       company would do as Ms. Huhta said.  So can we move --

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So the 212 was Janus?

      11                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  We got that.

      13       That was 212.  Okay.

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And 213 would be the March 30,

      15       2009, ASD.  It may say AS something different, but it

      16       should say ASD LNP audit.  214 would be LNP 2010 Cost

      17       Estimate.  215 would be AACE Methodology.  That is not a

      18       confidential document.  I should say they are all

      19       confidential, but that 214 is highly confidential.

      20                 I just wanted to state that with Mr. Elnitsky

      21       there are several areas that we are going to inquire

      22       about with documents that are highly confidential

      23       because they involve, again, ongoing contract

      24       negotiations, and he can address that, but I just want

      25       to emphasize that.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Certainly.

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  216.  Yes, 215 is not

       3       confidential.  216 is Elnitsky Late-filed Deposition

       4       Exhibit, and 217 would be LNP IPP.  Those are all.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  We're done.  Show

       6       those moved into the record without objection.

       7                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I should not have said those

       8       are all.  I apologize.  The final exhibit will be 218,

       9       which would be the August 13, 2010, Deposition of John

      10       Elnitsky.

      11                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So moved.

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  And that is the deposition exhibit

      13       in its entirety, correct?

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  The deposition in its

      15       entirety, yes.

      16                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.

      17                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And I guess we are marking

      18       them for identification at this point in time.  Now,

      19       with that, that's our agreement from this morning with

      20       respect to the exhibits.

      21                 (Exhibits 213 through 218 marked for

      22       identification.)

      23                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Okay.  If I may inquire.

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes, please.  We're

      25       waiting for you.
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       1                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       2       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

       3            Q.   Mr. Elnitsky, good afternoon.

       4            A.   Good afternoon, sir.

       5            Q.   Do you have a copy of what has been identified

       6       now as Exhibit 216, which is Late-Filed Deposition

       7       Exhibit Number 1?

       8            A.   Yes, I do.

       9            Q.   And could I also ask you to turn to your

      10       Rebuttal Testimony, and this is the confidential version

      11       of your rebuttal testimony.  And ask you to turn to

      12       Exhibit JE-6.  Do you have that?

      13            A.   Yes, I have that.

      14            Q.   Okay.  Now, just so we know, on your

      15       Late-Filed Deposition Number 1, all of the numbers other

      16       than the paid (sic) to date, or PTD column are

      17       confidential?

      18            A.   No, that is not exactly correct.  The project

      19       to date column is not confidential.  On the horizontal,

      20       the numbers associated with transmission, the COLA and

      21       other owners' costs, we also did not highlight as

      22       confidential.

      23            Q.   Okay.  The other numbers on this document are

      24       highly confidential and highly sensitive?

      25            A.   Yes, sir.
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       1                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I just wanted to make that

       2       clear, so that -- just wanted to make sure we avoid any

       3       utterances of these numbers.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       5       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

       6            Q.   And on your late-filed -- your JE-6, all of

       7       the numbers except project to date are confidential?

       8            A.   That's correct.

       9            Q.   Okay.  Now, what can you tell me -- how can

      10       you describe publicly what the numbers that are shown on

      11       Exhibit 216 represent?

      12            A.   Exhibit 216 represents the costs today, as we

      13       calculate them today for a project cancellation if we

      14       were to do that as of October 1, 2010.  There are

      15       several assumptions associated with how those costs are

      16       calculated consistent with some of the things we talked

      17       about during deposition.  But this is our best estimate

      18       if we were to say what does a project cancellation look

      19       like on 1 October of this year.

      20            Q.   And that would be all costs that you know or

      21       reasonably can estimate at this time?

      22            A.   Yes, with a couple of notes that are mentioned

      23       in here about what the assumptions are around those

      24       costs.  So there are some things that we did not try to

      25       estimate or could not, and also some assumptions about
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       1       things like storage and how those might be impacted.

       2       But to the best of our ability with the knowledge we

       3       have today, this is what it would look like.

       4            Q.   Okay.  And how can you publicly characterize

       5       the number in the total and total column there?  Is it

       6       less than a certain magnitude?  What do you feel

       7       comfortable saying?

       8            A.   I think I would be comfortable saying that

       9       that number is less than 300 million.

      10            Q.   Okay.  On JE-6 you have -- this is what is

      11       entitled Option 4, cancel at receipt of COLA, is that

      12       correct?

      13            A.   Yes, that's correct.  That's a set of

      14       calculations we provided as part of my rebuttal

      15       testimony to give a little better clarity to the

      16       discussion of what did the SMC evaluate in terms of

      17       cancellation options or if we had to move forward with

      18       the project and then for some reason had to cancel, what

      19       does that look like.

      20            Q.   So this is the company's -- at the time you

      21       prepared this exhibit this was your best estimate of the

      22       scenario that Dr. Jacobs requested in his testimony, is

      23       that correct?

      24            A.   No, but let me explain.  It is the best --

      25       what we tried to do, and if I can go back just a little
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       1       bit, because to really get this in context you have got

       2       to kind of figure out all the pieces here.  So in

       3       February of this year we presented to the SMC three

       4       options, as were discussed here earlier today, the full

       5       speed ahead option, project cancellation, and

       6       continuation with the project on a long-term partial

       7       suspension.  That's what you see at the top of this

       8       page.

       9                 During the course of that discussion, one of

      10       the things that the SMC challenged me on was, well, if

      11       the project had -- if the project continues, what do we

      12       think about cancellation costs further in the future?

      13       And, basically, during that presentation we said, well,

      14       if you take the cancellation Option 2, and add it

      15       effectively to Option 3, that is pretty close if you

      16       take out the redundant charges, because there are some

      17       things that -- like long lead material disposition that

      18       showed up in both.  That gets you pretty close to this

      19       bottom line number.

      20                 In order to provide some clarity in terms of

      21       the discussions, we provided this Option 4 calculation

      22       as part of my submittal here so we could clearly talk

      23       about what does that scenario look like based on the

      24       understanding we had in February of this year in that

      25       February 15th brief.  So it's based on what we thought
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       1       at that time about long lead material disposition, not

       2       based on what we know today about long lead material

       3       disposition.  That more effectively goes into the option

       4       that's this late-filed exhibit, that is incorporated

       5       into that calculation.

       6            Q.   Okay.  Are there numbers -- so I take it by

       7       your answer that there are numbers that are on JE-6 that

       8       if you were to do this same analysis today they would

       9       change, is that right?

      10            A.   Let me make sure I understand your question.

      11       Yes, I think so.  There are numbers on the Option 3

      12       project continuation that if we were to do that

      13       calculation today, and specifically around long lead

      14       material disposition, those numbers would change.

      15            Q.   Okay.

      16            A.   And if I can clarify that just a little bit

      17       further.  The reason for that is as the project

      18       continues and we have taken action around direction to

      19       the supply chain on some of these specific items, that

      20       changes that calculus in terms of what those costs now

      21       are associated with long lead material.

      22            Q.   Okay.  What's the best way you feel

      23       comfortable characterizing the total for Option 4 on

      24       JE-6 in a public way?

      25            A.   I think I would be comfortable there saying
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       1       that that number is something less than 450 million.

       2            Q.   Okay.  Now, of the costs that are on -- can

       3       you say what that number is greater than?

       4            A.   Yes, I think we could say that's greater than

       5       400 million.

       6            Q.   Okay.  Of the costs that are shown on JE-6 in

       7       the 2010, 2011, and 2012 columns, are these dollars --

       8       well, of the 2010 and 2011 costs, are the dollars that

       9       are shown in the total line, are they submitted for

      10       recovery in this docket?

      11            A.   Not totally, because those are -- again, these

      12       are '10, '11, and '12 projections, so in accordance with

      13       what we filed this year was our actuals for 2009, as you

      14       know, our actuals for '10, and our estimates for '10,

      15       then our projected for '11.  So you can't get to that.

      16       You don't get the 2012 piece as part of that.

      17            Q.   Okay.

      18            A.   Not directly.

      19            Q.   With respect to -- with respect to the costs

      20       that are in the column that says INC cost 2013 on JE-6,

      21       do you see that?

      22            A.   Help me out again.  JE-6?

      23            Q.   Yes.  It says include INC costs 2013, that

      24       separate column over here on the right.

      25            A.   Oh, okay.  Yes, I'm sorry.
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       1            Q.   Is there any way to understand which of these

       2       costs are also embedded in the total, the total column

       3       on the far right of 216, Exhibit 216?

       4            A.   Yes.  Let me -- and if you can, I could

       5       probably do -- excuse me, I could probably do this for

       6       most of the lines, but I'll answer your specific

       7       question first, and then we can do that side-by-side.

       8       So if I understand, you are asking about the line that

       9       says EPC cancellation fee and fuel cancellation fee, are

      10       those the two that --

      11            Q.   Yes.

      12            A.   Okay.  So if you go to the late-filed exhibit,

      13       that is in that EPC cancellation fee and cost line.  Do

      14       you see that line there?

      15            Q.   Yes.

      16            A.   And then you see the total on the very right.

      17            Q.   Okay.

      18            A.   Those are effectively the same numbers.  And

      19       if you read the Note D, that explains that there is also

      20       embedded in that some additional fees.

      21            Q.   Okay.

      22            A.   And, again, I'm trying to do this without

      23       talking.

      24            Q.   I understand.

      25            A.   So there is a -- in the second line on JE-6,
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       1       and I'm sorry this is going to be little challenging

       2       without the numbers.

       3            Q.   Let's step back before you do that.  Just for

       4       the record if we can go to 216.

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   And for whatever reason, I don't have a color

       7       version of 216, but the headings, are those --

       8            A.   No.

       9            Q.   Okay.  So total cancellation on the far right

      10       of that --

      11            A.   Yes.

      12            Q.   -- chart.  The number you referenced is in the

      13       fourth line down, correct?

      14            A.   That is correct.

      15            Q.   Okay.  And then on the JE-6 exhibit under

      16       the -- what does INC mean?

      17            A.   Incremental costs through 2013.

      18            Q.   Incremental costs.  Okay.  So the incremental

      19       costs 2013 column, the second and third numbers are the

      20       ones you are saying correlate to the fourth number in

      21       216, total cancellation column?

      22            A.   That's correct.

      23            Q.   Okay.  I'm sorry to interrupt.

      24            A.   No, that's fine.  And what I was going to try

      25       and explain is the reason for that is that fuel
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       1       cancellation fee changes based on when you assume this

       2       cancellation occurs.

       3            Q.   Okay.  So they are close, but you can't say

       4       they are identical?

       5            A.   No, they are not.

       6            Q.   Okay.  What other costs are there, if any?

       7            A.   In which line?

       8            Q.   I'm sorry.  Are there any other costs that are

       9       in the incremental cost 2013 column that have embedded

      10       in them costs that are in Exhibit 216, total

      11       cancellation?

      12            A.   Let me make sure I understand your question.

      13       I will try to do the best comparison I can here, and

      14       just to go back.  So if you look at, on JE-6, under

      15       Option 4, the EPC cancellation fees, the fuel

      16       cancellation fees, and then the line that says other

      17       cancellation costs, the sum of those three best compares

      18       to the total cancellation fee you see in the EPC

      19       cancellation fee and cost line with the Note D beside

      20       it.

      21            Q.   Right.

      22            A.   Those are apple-to-apple numbers.

      23            Q.   Okay.

      24            A.   Do you follow that?

      25            Q.   Yes.  Are there any other costs that you can
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       1       compare from these two exhibits?

       2            A.   Yes, I can.

       3            Q.   Okay.

       4            A.   I think the other one that is probably

       5       germane, you know, just in the interest of clarity here

       6       about what this is trying to tell us, if you look up on

       7       the Option 3 line, where it says long lead payments and

       8       WEC (phonetic) support, and then the second and third

       9       line it says long lead material purchase order

      10       disposition costs.

      11            Q.   Yes.

      12            A.   If you sum those two in the 2010 to 2012

      13       three-year total --

      14            Q.   Yes.

      15            A.   -- that best compares to what you see in the

      16       total cancellation column on the late-filed exhibit as

      17       Lines 2 and 3.  So that's another apples-to-apples

      18       comparison.

      19            Q.   Okay.  Are there any others?

      20            A.   Those are the best I can do.

      21            Q.   That's it?

      22            A.   Yes, sir.

      23            Q.   Okay.  Do you have before you Exhibit 217 and

      24       214, 217 would be the IPP and 214 would be the LNP 2010

      25       cost estimate?
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       1            A.   Yes, I do.

       2            Q.   If I could ask you first to turn to the

       3       April 28th, 2010, Levy Nuclear Plant IPP, which is in

       4       217.  Do you have that?

       5            A.   Yes, I do.

       6            Q.   Okay.  On Page 10 of that IPP --

       7            A.   Okay.

       8            Q.   -- on Line 34, total with fuel column, is that

       9       number confidential or not?

      10            A.   I would say it is not.

      11            Q.   Okay.  And that is 17,636,000,000?

      12            A.   That's correct.

      13            Q.   Okay.  And that is without AFUDC.  That would

      14       be your direct cost estimate of the project, is that

      15       right, as of the date of this IPP?

      16            A.   That is correct.  That is the estimate as you

      17       mentioned exclusive of AFUDC as of the date of the

      18       estimate calculation, which is in April of 2010.

      19            Q.   Okay.  And just for the record, as of this

      20       date that number has not changed, is that right?

      21            A.   No, it has not.

      22            Q.   Okay.  And Exhibit 214 is the workpapers, if

      23       you will, behind the calculation of that estimate, is

      24       that correct?

      25            A.   Yes.  But let me just expand a little bit.
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       1       This is actually the executive summary document that

       2       delineates the details behind the cost estimate that was

       3       performed.  There is actually a significant body of work

       4       that stands behind this to support this estimate.

       5            Q.   Yes.  I was not trying to say that this was

       6       all there was.  This represents backup, if you will, but

       7       at that summary level, correct?

       8            A.   Yes.  But, again, there is more material

       9       behind this estimate than what is presented here.

      10            Q.   I believe you testified before that there were

      11       thousands of hours put in developing this estimate,

      12       correct?

      13            A.   I think I said in my deposition there was

      14       about a thousand hours of work done to do this.

      15            Q.   There is a bound around the estimate, a low

      16       side and a high side based on the methodology that you

      17       use, is that correct?

      18            A.   That is correct.

      19            Q.   And how would you publicly characterize the

      20       upper bound of what that $17.6 million number could be,

      21       based on the methodology that you applied?

      22            A.   Well, I think we can -- let me make sure I

      23       understand your question.  Are you asking me how can we

      24       say the upper number or --

      25            Q.   Yes.  What is the --

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    940

       1            A.   I mean, I think it is reasonable to just say

       2       the upper number.

       3            Q.   Okay.  What would that be?

       4            A.   That would be -- let me make sure I read it

       5       here.  It is approximately $20 billion.

       6            Q.   Okay.  And, again, that is a direct cost

       7       before financing?

       8            A.   That is before financing.

       9            Q.   And you have a lower bound?

      10            A.   Of about 14.8 billion.

      11            Q.   Okay.  What would you say on Page 1 of Exhibit

      12       216 are the most significant -- if you can say it

      13       publicly, or maybe point me to the line item.

      14            A.   I'm not sure I'm looking at the right -- what

      15       is 216, again?

      16            Q.   It's the estimate.  It's the estimate backup.

      17            A.   I thought that was 214.

      18            Q.   I'm sorry, I apologize, 214.

      19            A.   Okay.  Got it.

      20            Q.   Okay.  What are the most significant items

      21       that would affect that number increasing above

      22       $17.6 billion, or this estimate increasing above

      23       $17.6 billion?

      24            A.   Well, I think to answer that I really need to

      25       explain just a little bit of how we built this estimate.
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       1       This estimate was done using our company standard

       2       practices in accordance with, and I know you have got it

       3       as one of the exhibits here, the guidelines of the

       4       Association for the Advancement of Cost Engineering.

       5       And what we effectively did was a bottoms-up build of

       6       this estimate.  And for each item in that estimate we

       7       looked at what items did we know were fixed, what items

       8       were firm and subject to some element of escalation, and

       9       what items just haven't been defined today because of

      10       where the status of the project is.

      11                 And we built that up line by line to come up

      12       with this band that you see here around what we say is

      13       the most likely or the midpoint of that estimate.  It's

      14       not exactly a midpoint, but for ease of discussion that

      15       is what I will call it.  So that band was driven by the

      16       build up of variances in a variety of items within the

      17       details of the estimate.  So it was not something -- to

      18       be clear, it was not something that is just applied when

      19       you are done.  It is the summation of the various items

      20       below it.

      21            Q.   Okay.  Are there some items -- well, let me

      22       say you stated earlier in your answer that you can't

      23       consider this a midpoint, correct, because the bottom

      24       and the top of the range don't --

      25            A.   Yes.  They are not exactly symmetric.  The way
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       1       the process works is you come up with an estimated cost

       2       and then based on the variances that are calculated in

       3       the various elements that build up to it, that

       4       establishes the band around that estimated cost.

       5            Q.   Okay.  Is it true that certain of the costs,

       6       certain of the line items in here have more increase

       7       exposure, if you will, than decrease exposure?

       8            A.   Yes, I would say that is true.

       9            Q.   Okay.  And could we tell that by looking at

      10       the specific line item and then looking at the low side

      11       and the high side around those items, and if there was

      12       more on the high side than the low side, would that tell

      13       us that that line item might be more likely to increase

      14       than decrease?

      15            A.   No, not exactly.  I think the better way to

      16       look at this is, and more in alignment with the process

      17       of how we did this estimate in the standard guidelines

      18       for doing this type estimate, is you can look at any

      19       particular line item on here, and you can see items that

      20       have larger variances between, for example, the min and

      21       max column.  That does not necessarily indicate any

      22       probability of movement in one direction or another.  It

      23       is just an evaluation based on the best information we

      24       had available at the time and using information from

      25       available resources of how we calculated those various
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       1       items.  But you can't tie it directly to say, well, that

       2       means there is a probability it is going to go in one

       3       direction or another.

       4            Q.   Okay.  Back on the IPP, Page 15.  This is the

       5       April 28 IPP, which is 217.

       6            A.   Page 15?

       7            Q.   Yes.

       8            A.   All right.

       9            Q.   And Page 15 has two risks that are part of

      10       your project risk summary that starts on the prior page,

      11       right?

      12            A.   That's correct.

      13            Q.   Now, can the second risk that starts with the

      14       word material, can that be read publicly?

      15            A.   Yes, I think you can read that.

      16            Q.   Okay.  And that says material and labor

      17       escalation exceeds estimated numbers, is that right?

      18            A.   That's correct.

      19            Q.   Now, in the body of this discussion underneath

      20       that there is a discussion about numbers going up and

      21       numbers going down, but the risk is exceeding, correct?

      22            A.   That's correct.

      23            Q.   Does that mean that there is more of a concern

      24       that the estimate would increase than decrease?

      25            A.   What that is indicating is that one of the
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       1       risks we identified as part of the process of doing our

       2       risk register and our risk mitigation process was the

       3       fact that because of where we stand today with the

       4       agreement, on the EPC agreement to be specific, that

       5       there is some risk associated with material and labor

       6       cost escalations exceeding the estimates.

       7                 So to be clear, what this is referring to is

       8       that, again, I will call the midpoint because that is

       9       the easiest way to refer to it, that estimated cost and

      10       the fact that that could move depending on what happens

      11       with labor escalation.  Which we were trying to be, with

      12       all of these risks make sure we were taking the

      13       appropriate actions to mitigate that or to include that

      14       in our analysis.

      15                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's all

      16       the questions I have.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Brew.

      18                 MR. BREW:  Thank you.

      19                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      20       BY MR. BREW:

      21            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Elnitsky.

      22            A.   Good afternoon, sir.

      23            Q.   This should be brief.  Last year as you were

      24       evaluating the project shift, you asked the consortium

      25       to evaluate potential impacts of various 24 and 36 month
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       1       scenarios, is that right?

       2            A.   Yes.  And let me just expand on that a little

       3       bit.  What we asked the consortium to do as part of

       4       dealing with the NRC's decision not to grant a limited

       5       work authorization was to go out to them, and we did two

       6       things in April of 2009.  One was to issue the

       7       long-term -- correction, issue a partial suspension

       8       change order in accordance with the existing provisions

       9       of the contract.  And, two, to ask them to evaluate a

      10       set of scenarios that we wanted to consider moving

      11       forward.  And those included both a 24-month shift in

      12       the in-service date of the first plant, and a 36-month

      13       shift in the in-service date of the first plant.  And

      14       then we looked at three different separations between

      15       Unit 1 and 2.

      16            Q.   Okay.  And as I understand it from your

      17       testimony, the consortium took about four months to run

      18       through those complex scenarios, is that right?  They

      19       got back to you in August?

      20            A.   That's correct.  And I think I gave the exact

      21       dates in my testimony, but in about the August time

      22       frame that work had proceeded to the point of being able

      23       to have an informed discussion with us around what were

      24       the various opportunities associated with the supply

      25       chain.  And that is really what -- why that took so
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       1       long, and why that was such a detailed conversation is

       2       because the way the contract is structured, although

       3       Westinghouse and the consortium work for us, the supply

       4       chain works for them.

       5                 We were actually successful in becoming very

       6       intrusive in that process and meeting with the various

       7       suppliers to make sure we had a clear understanding as

       8       the scenario analysis developed of what exactly the

       9       supply chain was willing to do and what at that time

      10       they were not willing to do.

      11            Q.   Okay.  Now, on Page 5 of your testimony --

      12            A.   And could you -- direct or rebuttal?

      13            Q.   I'm referring to your Direct Testimony.

      14            A.   Direct testimony.  Okay.  Page 5.

      15            Q.   Page 5 of your Direct Testimony, Lines 16 and

      16       17.  There is a sentence where you talk about the

      17       original in-service dates no longer being achievable,

      18       and there is a sentence, "The EPC agreement contains

      19       specific provisions in anticipation of such events."

      20                 Do you see that?

      21            A.   Yes, I do.

      22            Q.   And is it also true that the EPC did not

      23       contemplate events leading to 24, 36, or 60-month shifts

      24       in the schedule?

      25            A.   No, I would not say that is exactly true, but
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       1       let me clarify.  The EPC agreement -- the reason I'm

       2       pausing is I want to make sure I think about what is

       3       classified in that.  The EPC agreement does have

       4       provisions for the suspension of work for a given

       5       duration.  What was not clear when we went out and we

       6       asked for the scenario analysis is would we be able to

       7       deal with the schedule shift within those provisions.

       8                 It's possible that we would have been able to.

       9       It wasn't clear when we initially gave this direction to

      10       the consortium whether or not we would be able to fit

      11       inside that window.  So, for example, the shift in the

      12       first unit of 24 months, it is possible that that could

      13       have been managed within the structure of the existing

      14       partial suspension arrangements in the existing contract

      15       as it existed at that time.

      16            Q.   But you determined that it wasn't feasible and

      17       that led to the negotiation of the amended EPC, right?

      18            A.   No, that is not exactly correct, either.  What

      19       happened was the consortium completes their work in

      20       August of 2009.  We then have to start our analysis of

      21       that work and go through and determine what makes the

      22       most sense from that scenario of work.  And as we looked

      23       at it and looked at the enterprise risks that existed at

      24       this time, we concluded at that point that a 36-month

      25       schedule was probably the minimum schedule shift that we
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       1       could deal with.

       2                 We also began discussions with our senior

       3       management about do we want to look for an amendment to

       4       the contract that would allow us to preserve the

       5       favorable terms and conditions of the contract while

       6       still moving forward with this longer term partial

       7       suspension.  That work did not really occur until about

       8       the October time frame.  And at that point, then, we

       9       began to work with the consortium to see whether they

      10       would be willing to even entertain such an arrangement.

      11            Q.   My questions are simpler than that.  My

      12       question was, basically, was the EPC amendment required

      13       for the company to move forward with its proposed

      14       schedule shift?

      15            A.   Which proposed schedule shift are you

      16       referring to?

      17            Q.   The one that you adopted.

      18            A.   In order for the company to move forward with

      19       the longer term partial suspension, the option that we

      20       have adapted, we first had to go back to the consortium

      21       and make that arrangement for them to agree to that

      22       longer term partial suspension in the amendment that we

      23       actually executed to the agreement.

      24            Q.   Okay.

      25            A.   No, it was not possible to adopt that option
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       1       without a change to the contract.  But just to be clear,

       2       we had to know that we could do that before we could

       3       actually finalize on the option that we selected.

       4            Q.   The consortium took four months to do what you

       5       described as a complex set of analyses of the different

       6       scenarios.  Did you do the same level of analysis for

       7       the 60-month shift?

       8            A.   Yes, we did.  But, again, let me clarify what

       9       exactly we did for the 60-month shift.

      10            Q.   Did the consortium run a 60-month shift -- an

      11       option for you that was the same as they did for 24 and

      12       36 months?

      13            A.   No, they did not, but we were able to use that

      14       information successfully in our own internal analysis

      15       just as we had used their information to calculate the

      16       details of a 36-month shift.

      17            Q.   Okay.  So did you do an analysis of the

      18       availability of skilled construction under a 60-month

      19       scenario?

      20            A.   Not in addition to what was performed as part

      21       of the initial work performed by the consortium.  We

      22       took that information and used it to inform the

      23       variances we applied in our cost estimates moving

      24       forward.

      25            Q.   So not all of the analysis that you asked the
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       1       consortium to do for the 24 and 36-month scenarios you

       2       did for the 60-month scenario, is that right?

       3            A.   No, I would not agree with that statement.  We

       4       used the information that was provided by the consortium

       5       as part of their scenario analysis to fully inform how

       6       we evaluated the option of moving forward with a longer

       7       term partial suspension and the schedule that we are now

       8       on and to inform the way that we calculated the cost

       9       estimates for the project.

      10            Q.   Okay.  But the analysis that the consortium

      11       gave you was for 24 and 36-month scenarios, right?

      12            A.   Actually, they gave us -- yes, that is

      13       correct.  They gave us analysis for 24 and 36 months

      14       with various shifts between the two projects or between

      15       the two plants.

      16            Q.   Okay.  All right.  On Page 16 of your direct,

      17       again.

      18            A.   Okay.  Let me get there.

      19            Q.   Sure.

      20            A.   Okay.  Page 16?

      21            Q.   Yes.

      22            A.   Yes, I'm there.

      23            Q.   You have a question and answer defining

      24       enterprise risks.

      25            A.   That's correct.
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       1            Q.   Mr. Lyash has a discussion of enterprise

       2       risks.  Mr. Jacobs does, too.  Is your definition here

       3       which is essentially risk factors that are external to

       4       the company's control what we can work with for this

       5       discussion of what you are calling enterprise risks?

       6            A.   Yes.  I would say my discussion in this direct

       7       testimony is consistent with the enterprise risks that

       8       Mr. Lyash has also identified in his.

       9            Q.   Good.  That's close enough for me.  Can we

      10       distinguish enterprise risks from project risks?  I will

      11       give you an example.

      12            A.   Give me an example.

      13            Q.   Say, for example, fabrication was delayed on a

      14       piece of critical path equipment delaying the project.

      15       That's procurement and construction.  Are those

      16       enterprise risks?

      17            A.   I would consider that a project risk.

      18            Q.   Okay.  The same for quality assurance, or stop

      19       work orders, or something that happens on a site that

      20       affects construction.  Is that a project risk or an

      21       enterprise risk?

      22            A.   I would consider that a project risk.  And if

      23       I could clarify.  The way we think about project risks,

      24       specifically, is we look at our cost estimates and the

      25       execution of projects, whether it's in terms of schedule
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       1       or cost is what are those things that can potentially

       2       affect the execution of the project along both of those

       3       vectors.  And that is what we try to -- we do monetize

       4       as part of our analysis and then put mitigation steps in

       5       place where we can.

       6            Q.   Do you have any mitigation steps in place for

       7       enterprise risks?

       8            A.   Not specifically, and the reason I would say

       9       that, in general, is we've classified them in my

      10       testimony, and I think consistent with what Mr. Lyash

      11       does in his testimony.  We really talked about these as

      12       things that are outside the control of the company.  But

      13       what we can do is take actions to put the project in the

      14       best position to deal with those enterprise risks should

      15       they materialize.  And that's exactly what we did in

      16       executing the amendment to the EPC agreement and putting

      17       the option in place that we did.

      18            Q.   Okay.  So the amendment to the EPC agreement

      19       does not mitigate any of the enterprise risks that you

      20       have identified, is that right?

      21            A.   No, I would not agree with that.  I think it

      22       puts us in a position to deal with those risks in the

      23       best possible manner.

      24            Q.   Okay.  It puts you in a position to deal with

      25       those risks, but it does not mitigate or reduce those
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       1       risks, is that right?

       2            A.   If your definition of mitigation is to reduce

       3       the probability that that risk occurs, no, it does not.

       4            Q.   Okay.  And that's exactly what I mean.  Can I

       5       refer you to Page 26 of your testimony?

       6            A.   Okay.  All right.  I'm there.

       7            Q.   And you have the question and answer beginning

       8       on Line 6 that asks, regarding the analysis, including a

       9       comparison of the cost of the LNP option?

      10            A.   That's correct.

      11            Q.   And by that you -- I take it you look for each

      12       of the three options, which was potential cancellation,

      13       what I would describe as full speed ahead, or continuing

      14       on your engineering procurement path, or the go slow

      15       approach that the company is proposing.  Are those the

      16       three options that we are talking about here?

      17            A.   Yes.  I think we actually -- I mean, in that

      18       same discussion on Page 26, I actually list them there.

      19       So it was cancellation of the EPC and the Levy Nuclear

      20       Project, proceeding as quickly as possible, and

      21       continuation of the Levy Nuclear Project with a focus on

      22       COL activities.

      23            Q.   Okay.  And for the third bullet, the

      24       continuation of the LNP with a focus on COL activities,

      25       do you see that?
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       1            A.   Yes, I do.

       2            Q.   That cost is influenced by the fact that

       3       roughly a billion dollars of plant spending will be

       4       deferred to another time?

       5            A.   That is correct.  That cost that you see on

       6       that page is a summation of the 2010, '11, and '12

       7       costs.  And as a matter of fact, that is what we were

       8       just looking at in the exhibit that is in my rebuttal

       9       testimony, JE-6, as Option 3, with Mr. Rehwinkel.  That

      10       was the result of moving approximately a billion dollars

      11       of activity from before the receipt of the COL to after.

      12            Q.   So what those numbers show on that page are

      13       the costs that would be incurred over that three-year

      14       period, not the actual impact on total project costs?

      15            A.   Yes, that is correct.  This comparison and the

      16       discussion in this part of the testimony is specifically

      17       to how we evaluated the near term costs of each of these

      18       options.  And that was consistent with one of the

      19       objectives of how do we take action in the down economy

      20       to minimize customer rate impact during that period.

      21            Q.   Okay.  And the expending under the option we

      22       just mentioned that is deferred would be spent later

      23       under the company's proposed project schedule, right?

      24            A.   Ask your question again.  I want to make sure

      25       I understand it.
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       1            Q.   Well, let me try it differently.  For the

       2       third option, which is continuation of the LNP while you

       3       pursue the COL, you have during the three-year period

       4       that you have looked at, 2010 through 2012, you had

       5       deferred spending compared with the existing schedule?

       6            A.   That's right.

       7            Q.   Those deferred dollars would be spent later

       8       under the revised schedule, right?

       9            A.   That is correct, but let me clarify just a

      10       little bit.  So what happens under the revised schedule

      11       is ultimately we will negotiate what will be the new

      12       schedule and the milestone payments that go along with

      13       that.  So effectively that activity that was going to

      14       happen before the COLA and the costs associated was

      15       moved to the new schedule when we negotiate that beyond

      16       the receipt of the COLA.

      17            Q.   But this analysis doesn't take into account

      18       when those dollars will be spent or how it will affect

      19       the total costs, it only looks at that three-year

      20       window?

      21            A.   You're going to have to ask me that again.

      22       I'm sorry, I didn't follow that.

      23            Q.   Yes.  The dollars that go with each of the

      24       bullets on Lines 17 through 19 just looks at that

      25       three-year window of 2010 to 2012, right?
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       1            A.   The costs that are here do look just at that

       2       three-year window.  It was part of a bigger brief that

       3       was in the February 15th presentation that included the

       4       cash flows for the out years through the completion of

       5       the project.  So if it was cancellation, obviously,

       6       there was no subsequent cash flow requirements after

       7       cancellation.  But for both the proceeding as quickly as

       8       possible option and the continuation with a focus on COL

       9       activities, we did, in fact, show cash flows and

      10       projected long-term costs for both of those options.

      11            Q.   And the projected long-term cost was highest

      12       for which of the two of those go forward options?

      13            A.   The long-term costs would be highest for the

      14       current path that we selected, which was the

      15       continuation with a focus on the COL activity.  And,

      16       again, the reason that happens is there is a trade-off

      17       there in terms of minimizing the near term costs.  Any

      18       time you change the schedule of a project it is going to

      19       move those costs out in years, and then there is

      20       subsequent escalation effects that affect the overall

      21       cost of the project.

      22            Q.   Okay.  On Page 28 of your testimony.

      23            A.   Okay.

      24            Q.   On Line 12 through 14, you are talking about

      25       total project costs, and fuel savings, and carbon cost
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       1       emission savings.  And you say at Line 12 for these

       2       reasons the total project cost for the LNP cannot be

       3       evaluated in isolation and they were not evaluated that

       4       way by the company.  Do you see that?

       5            A.   Yes, I do.

       6            Q.   Are the total project costs billed to

       7       consumers in isolation, if you know?

       8            A.   Let me just read the context of what this

       9       statement is, so I can make sure I understand where you

      10       are going.

      11                 Well, I think, to be clear what this statement

      12       is saying on Page 28, you have really got to go back to

      13       the beginning of that paragraph.  And the context here

      14       is you have to not just look at the costs of the project

      15       in isolation, but also look at it in terms of the

      16       overall feasibility of the project and how it compares

      17       in that feasibility analysis that's part of Mr. Lyash's

      18       discussion.  So that is what this statement is about

      19       that you can't just look at those costs in isolation.

      20       You have to look at that in terms of what benefit do the

      21       customers derive in the long-term because of moving

      22       forward with the project.

      23            Q.   Okay.  And what I'm trying to get to is the

      24       cost of the project, assuming prudence questions aside,

      25       are 100 percent billed to customers, right, through
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       1       rates?

       2            A.   That is correct.  Customers pay the cost of

       3       the project.

       4            Q.   One hundred percent.  It's for certain if you

       5       spend the money, we are going to pay it?

       6            A.   That is correct.  That's part of the

       7       regulatory compact.

       8            Q.   Well, we will save regulatory compact for

       9       another day, because we don't have the time.  But fuel

      10       cost savings and carbon emission savings would come back

      11       to customers not through how you recover the cost of the

      12       plant, but through some other vehicle if they occur,

      13       right?

      14            A.   Well, number one, I don't agree with your

      15       context.  Fuel cost savings will occur with a nuclear

      16       plant.  We have demonstrated that, I think, pretty

      17       clearly in our feasibility analysis.  And those costs

      18       would come back -- that deferral cost would come back to

      19       the customer.

      20            Q.   Let me put it to you differently, then.  In

      21       2022, everything goes perfect.  Customers will have paid

      22       $8 billion up front through the NCRC and will be charged

      23       the remaining total cost of the project in base rates.

      24       That is for certain, assuming no prudence, right?

      25            A.   That's my understanding.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  Whether or not customers receive the

       2       expected fuel savings and other benefits is entirely

       3       dependent upon whether those savings are actually

       4       realized in future years, is that right?

       5            A.   I guess I'm still not understanding your

       6       question.  If your question is are there fuel cost

       7       savings when the plant comes in service, I think we

       8       demonstrate that pretty clearly, and I think Mr. Lyash

       9       is going to talk to that extensively.

      10            Q.   What I am getting to is how the fuel cost

      11       savings and their magnitude, and if they occur are

      12       dependent upon a number of things, right, future fuel

      13       forecasts?

      14            A.   Certainly.

      15            Q.   Plant operation?

      16            A.   Certainly.  That's correct.

      17            Q.   And if the fuel prices aren't what the company

      18       forecasts, some of those fuel savings may not be there,

      19       right?

      20            A.   Certainly.  And I think we evaluate that

      21       pretty thoroughly in our feasibility analysis to look at

      22       those various potential paths for where fuel costs may

      23       go in the future.  It's the same discussion we had about

      24       where enterprise risks go in the future.

      25            Q.   Who bears the risk that those fuel savings
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       1       won't be realized, the company or consumers?

       2            A.   Well, I think the way I would answer that

       3       question is whether those fuel costs ultimately are

       4       realized or not is dependent on what were the set of

       5       assumptions that went into the feasibility analysis and

       6       do those, in fact, manifest themselves in the future.

       7            Q.   Is the company at risk for those fuel cost

       8       savings not occurring?

       9            A.   I would say no.

      10            Q.   Okay.  Page 29 of your Direct Testimony, Line

      11       14, when you get there?

      12            A.   Page 29?

      13            Q.   Yes, please.

      14            A.   All right.

      15            Q.   The sentence reads, second, this option

      16       reduced the risk of capital invested in the project, and

      17       exposed -- and exposed to the regulatory license

      18       schedule risk and other enterprise risk before the COL

      19       is obtained.  Do you see that?

      20            A.   Yes, I do.

      21            Q.   Now, here we're talking -- when you mean this

      22       option, this is the same option the company has chosen,

      23       which is the reduced spending, continuing with LNP while

      24       you pursue the COL, is that right?

      25            A.   Yes, that's correct.  And just to make sure we
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       1       are clear, what this sentence is talking about is the

       2       option that we are pursuing, which is continue with a

       3       limited set of work under a limited partial suspension

       4       until such time as we receive our COLA.  That deferred

       5       approximately a billion dollars in capital investment

       6       from before the COL until after the COL.

       7            Q.   Okay.  What I want to focus on in this

       8       sentence is when you say reduce the risk of capital

       9       investment in the project and exposed to the regulatory

      10       license schedule review risk and other enterprise risks.

      11       What do you mean by exposed?

      12            A.   What I'm talking about there in that sentence

      13       is we recognize when we evaluated these options that

      14       there was the potential for continued regulatory license

      15       schedule changes.  And, in fact, some of those

      16       manifested themselves after the selection of this

      17       option.  And by moving some of this capital to beyond

      18       receipt of the license, it did not put the project and

      19       that capital in jeopardy prior to those regulatory and

      20       licensing risks being reduced.

      21            Q.   Okay.  Now, what do you mean by jeopardy?

      22            A.   It means the company, since we bear the risk

      23       of this project, since we are the ones that have to go

      24       out and raise the capital and the equity, that that risk

      25       would not be -- would not continue to be exposed,
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       1       because by selecting this option we put the project in a

       2       position that we can allow that work to complete and

       3       that license application to be done before we go out and

       4       raise the capital necessary to continue with the

       5       project.

       6            Q.   So what we are talking about is during this

       7       period you would be spending less capital dollars, so

       8       you would have fewer dollars that you would have to

       9       finance and seek recovery for, so we are talking

      10       financial risk?

      11            A.   What I'm talking about -- what I specifically

      12       say here is capital invested in the project, so we are

      13       talking about the risk of that capital being expended

      14       and the need to raise that capital prior to having

      15       certainty around some of the regulatory licensing

      16       solutions.

      17            Q.   Okay.  And the risk that's reduced, then, is

      18       the risk of nonrecovery of those capital dollars

      19       invested?

      20            A.   No, I don't think I would totally characterize

      21       it that way.  I think the issue is, you know, we are

      22       going to bear the risk of raising that capital and that

      23       equity.  Our job is to come in here, I think, as I

      24       understand it, and I'm pretty certain, is to come in

      25       every year and show the prudence of our actions.
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       1            Q.   So it's the risk of recovery of the dollars

       2       that would have been spent during that period that you

       3       are talking about when you talk about the exposed risk?

       4            A.   No, I would not say it's the risk of recovery.

       5       I think what I say here pretty clearly is that this

       6       option reduced the risk of the capital invested in the

       7       project that was exposed to regulatory license and

       8       schedule review risks.  So we are moving capital from a

       9       period where there is still some uncertainty about when

      10       the actual license would be obtained to a period after

      11       receipt of that license.

      12            Q.   But the dollars would be spent anyway,

      13       assuming you were moving forward with the project.  The

      14       dollars would only be at risk if you didn't go forward,

      15       is that right?

      16            A.   Let me ask you to rephrase your question,

      17       because I'm obviously not getting to the point.

      18            Q.   I'm trying to figure out what is really at

      19       risk here with the deferred dollars.  Is it the risk

      20       that you won't recover them in rates or the risk that

      21       the dollars invested may be wasted because you don't go

      22       forward with the project?  And I'm just trying to figure

      23       out which are you talking about here.

      24            A.   Well, I'm sorry if I haven't -- didn't follow

      25       your line of questioning.  I think the way I would
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       1       characterize what I tried to say here as clearly as I

       2       can is in our efforts to minimize near term customer

       3       rate impact and move as much capital beyond receipt of

       4       the COLA, we think that what that did and one of the

       5       benefits there was that moved that capital to a period

       6       of time where it was no longer going to be exposed to

       7       the potential that we would not be able to get that

       8       license.  That certainly, we thought, was a very

       9       reasonable and prudent decision and puts us in a

      10       position to be able to capture the benefits of this

      11       project in the long-term.

      12            Q.   Do you think you are at higher risk of not

      13       being able to get the license?

      14            A.   Higher risk compared to when?

      15            Q.   What you just said was you thought there was a

      16       greater risk that you may not receive the license.  Is

      17       there a greater risk that you won't receive the license

      18       in your opinion?

      19            A.   No, I don't think there is greater risk that

      20       we won't.  I think, in fact, since this decision was

      21       made several actions that have been taken on the part of

      22       Westinghouse, the NRC, and ourselves have moved this to

      23       the point where I think that risk is beginning to be

      24       reduced.  Specifically, the fact our draft environmental

      25       impact statement was issued on August 6th of this year,

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    965

       1       and the fact that our Phase I RAI work is complete with

       2       the NRC as of March of this year.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And you also reference on Line 15, and

       4       other enterprise risks.  Are you saying that those have

       5       gone down, too, are they -- well, let me strike that.

       6                 Do the other enterprise risks referenced in

       7       that sentence increase the risk of not going forward

       8       with the project?

       9            A.   Can you ask your question again?  I'm just

      10       trying to read the sentence and make sure I understand

      11       the context, so I'm not --

      12            Q.   Go ahead and re-read it.

      13            A.   Okay.

      14            Q.   And I'm trying to get to the reference in the

      15       sentence to capital investment in the project and

      16       exposed to the regulatory license schedule review risk,

      17       which we just talked about.

      18            A.   Okay.

      19            Q.   And other enterprise risks.  And are you

      20       suggesting here that other enterprise risks are

      21       threatening whether or not you actually receive the COL?

      22            A.   No, I'm not.

      23                 MR. BREW:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Thank

      24       you.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  Sorry I took so long.  I
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       1       apologize.

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

       3                 Ms. Kaufman.

       4                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       5       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

       6            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Elnitsky.

       7            A.   Good afternoon, ma'am.

       8            Q.   I just want to follow up on some questions

       9       that Mr. Brew was asking you about, risk and who bears

      10       it in this project.

      11            A.   Yes.

      12            Q.   And I think you told him, if I'm wrong,

      13       correct me, that it would be your expectation if all

      14       things go well that you would collect, you being the

      15       company, $8 million through the Nuclear Cost-Recovery

      16       Clause and -- a billion, sorry.  I can't even say that

      17       word.  Eight billion dollars through the Nuclear

      18       Cost-Recovery Clause and 14 billion through base rates,

      19       correct?

      20            A.   You know, I'm not -- if I said that, I did not

      21       mean to imply that.  I'm not the expert in how the

      22       actual costs of the project are flowed into the

      23       ratemaking process.  We talked earlier in these

      24       proceedings with Mr. Foster.  So that is really an area

      25       of expertise that is outside of mine.  And so if I said
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       1       that in my answer, that is -- I'm not in a position nor

       2       do I have the expertise to clearly articulate how those

       3       costs flow into the project and the recovery mechanisms.

       4            Q.   Well, I'm not so concerned about which dollars

       5       go where, but it certainly would be the company's

       6       expectation that if all goes well that you would collect

       7       from the ratepayers all the expenditures that you have

       8       made for this project, correct?

       9            A.   Yes, that's correct.  We would expect that

      10       part of the compact we have here is we would come in and

      11       go through this proceeding every year, we show that our

      12       actions have been reasonable and prudent to date, and in

      13       exchange for that we are allowed to recover our costs,

      14       just as we would on any other project that we would

      15       recover costs for in the base rate proceedings.

      16            Q.   Of course, you would agree with me that in a

      17       base rate proceeding you don't recover costs for a plant

      18       until it actually comes into service, correct?

      19            A.   That is correct.

      20            Q.   So in terms of who is actually bearing the

      21       risk for this project, would you not agree that because

      22       the ratepayers are being expected to fund every dollar

      23       of it that they are bearing the risk?

      24            A.   No, I would not agree with that at all.  I

      25       think in the compact that we have under the statute and
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       1       in the regulatory environment, the company bears the

       2       risk of the project.  We are the ones that have to go

       3       out and raise the debt, raise the equity, and move

       4       forward with the project.  If we do not show that our

       5       actions are reasonable and prudent, we bear the risk of

       6       those costs.

       7            Q.   But if you do do what you are supposed to do

       8       and show that your actions are reasonable, then you

       9       expect the ratepayers to fund every dollar of the

      10       project, correct?

      11            A.   I would say, yes, that's correct, but that is

      12       also true of any project that we do.  That is part of

      13       the way, as I understand it, at least the way the

      14       regulatory process works.  The customers pay the cost of

      15       our operations and our projects.

      16            Q.   Not to be repetitive, but I think that you

      17       just agreed that the general way things work is when a

      18       company brings new plant on line, they can't seek

      19       recovery for that plant until it is actually providing

      20       service to the ratepayers, correct?

      21            A.   Yes, but let me explain a little further.  The

      22       way that it works, as I understand it under base rate

      23       proceedings, that is exactly correct.  However, I think

      24       the state of Florida and the Legislature made a decision

      25       that we would have a different process here in terms of
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       1       nuclear cost-recovery, because of the challenges

       2       associated with projects of this size and the long

       3       duration of this size, in order to get that effort

       4       moving and bring this type of infrastructure improvement

       5       to the state, they recognized a different type of

       6       mechanism was needed.  The fundamentals are really the

       7       same.  It is just a question of changing the timing.

       8            Q.   And that question of changing the timing is

       9       the fact that the company gets to recover these costs in

      10       advance of the plant coming into service and generating

      11       any electricity, right?

      12            A.   That is correct.  We get to recover those

      13       costs in advance.  In return for doing that, though, we

      14       come in and have to show that all the actions we have

      15       taken to move the project forward are reasonable and

      16       prudent.

      17            Q.   Wouldn't you have to show that your actions

      18       are reasonable and prudent in regard to, for example,

      19       building a coal plant?  When you came into your rate

      20       case, you would have to make that same sort of showing,

      21       would you not?

      22            A.   Yes, that's correct.

      23            Q.   I want to talk a little bit about the

      24       scheduling and then the costs of the project.

      25            A.   Okay.
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       1            Q.   Let's talk about scheduling first if that is

       2       okay.

       3            A.   Okay.

       4            Q.   You would agree with me, would you not, that

       5       since the company came in for its determination of need,

       6       the in-service date of this project has been pushed out

       7       five years, correct?

       8            A.   That is correct.  Our original need filing, I

       9       think, was for a 2016 in-service.

      10            Q.   And you would agree also, wouldn't you, that

      11       there is certainly a possibility that the schedule could

      12       be pushed out further?

      13            A.   I would agree that there is probably no

      14       project manager that would sit here today and say there

      15       is not something that could happen to cause additional

      16       changes in the schedule.  But to the best of our ability

      17       today, building the schedule the way we did and then

      18       using that as part of the cost estimate, because the two

      19       actually go very closely together, our best expectations

      20       is that we will be able to bring the plant in service in

      21       2021.

      22            Q.   When the company testified in its

      23       determination of need proceeding, did it think it could

      24       bring the project on line in 2016 to 2017?

      25            A.   That is my understanding.  That is a little
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       1       bit before my time, but based on all the records I have

       2       reviewed and my understanding, that was our plan at the

       3       time, and that was what the need was based on.

       4            Q.   And now I think we have agreed that it has

       5       been pushed out five years?

       6            A.   That is our target, yes, ma'am.

       7            Q.   If you take a look at Page 26, I think you

       8       discussed it with other counsel, maybe with Mr. Brew?

       9            A.   In my direct testimony?

      10            Q.   Let's see.  This is in your April 30th direct.

      11            A.   Okay.  Page 26 you said?

      12            Q.   Yes.

      13            A.   Okay.  I'm there.

      14            Q.   Okay.  I'm not going to articulate any

      15       numbers.  I understand it -- is it all right to say if a

      16       number is higher or lower in regards to these three

      17       numbers?

      18            A.   Yes.  I think that's fine.

      19            Q.   Okay.  And I think we've established that the

      20       estimates here are only for a three-year period,

      21       correct?

      22            A.   That is correct.  The numbers that are

      23       provided on Page 26 are specific to the near term costs

      24       as we define them for the 2010, '11, and '12 period.

      25            Q.   And so they don't address what the costs would
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       1       be past 2012 or the rate impact?

       2            A.   No, these numbers do not.

       3            Q.   Now, you would agree with me, would you not,

       4       that your third option there, which is the one the

       5       company is proposing, is more expensive than the first

       6       option, the cancellation?

       7            A.   I would agree with you that the third option,

       8       the continuation of the project with a focus on COL

       9       activities is more expensive than cancellation as it

      10       existed at the time we did this analysis.  And, again,

      11       going back to the somewhat cryptic discussion we had

      12       with Mr. Rehwinkel trying to go through those numbers.

      13       And I apologize for that again.  These numbers were

      14       based on our analysis of long lead material disposition

      15       items and other factors as we knew them in February of

      16       2010.

      17            Q.   Would you also agree with me to the extent, if

      18       you were to pursue the cancellation option, to the

      19       extent that cancellation occurs further out in the

      20       future that the costs on Line 17 would increase?

      21            A.   That is correct.  As a matter of fact, we

      22       demonstrate that as part of that late-filed exhibit.

      23       And the reason that that happens is we are continuing

      24       with the project.  There is work going on every day on

      25       this project to continue to move forward on the modified
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       1       schedule.  And as you go forward in time at any given

       2       point that you pick and say, all right, if I canceled

       3       here, those costs are going to be more than they were

       4       back in February of 2015 when we did this analysis.

       5       And, in fact, we have made decisions and directed

       6       activity on the part of the consortium subsequent to

       7       that point in time.  So, yes, those costs continue to go

       8       up.

       9            Q.   My point being, I think you would agree that

      10       to the extent you continue to expend dollars on the

      11       project, and then in the future another analysis might

      12       reveal that cancellation might be the more prudent

      13       course, the further out you go the more that option is

      14       going to cost.

      15            A.   Can you rephrase that, because I didn't catch

      16       the first part of that.

      17            Q.   I'll try.  Okay.

      18            A.   You kind of went in a different direction to

      19       begin with.  I'm sorry.

      20            Q.   What I'm trying to say is that the further out

      21       in time you go and at some point decide to pursue the

      22       cancellation option, the more expensive that option will

      23       be?

      24            A.   Yes, but let me explain.  It will always cost

      25       more later to cancel.  I think that's pretty much true,
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       1       because as work continues to go on, then the cost of

       2       stopping that work and canceling the project are higher

       3       than they would be, say, today.

       4            Q.   But I'm correct, am I not, that the company is

       5       continuing to evaluate its options in regard to the Levy

       6       project, is that right?

       7            A.   No, I would not characterize that at all.

       8       What we have done is we have put the project on a path

       9       that we think was in the best interest of the customers,

      10       and we will certainly continue to evaluate enterprise

      11       risks as we discuss both in my testimony and Mr.

      12       Lyash's, but I would not characterize that as that we

      13       will continue to evaluate an option.

      14            Q.   Do you happen to have your deposition with

      15       you?

      16            A.   I do not.  I apologize.

      17            Q.   I'm sure your cooperative counsel is going to

      18       get you a copy.

      19                 MS. KAUFMAN:  We've got one.  May I approach

      20       the witness, Madam Chairman?

      21                 THE WITNESS:  Charles gave me one.

      22                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.

      23       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      24            Q.   Okay.  If you would turn to Page 47 in your

      25       deposition, please.
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       1            A.   Okay.  I'm there.

       2            Q.   I think -- I believe this might have been

       3       Mr. Rehwinkel questioning you, I'm not sure.  But in the

       4       middle of the page around Line 12, there is a question

       5       asked of you in regard to the project, and if you could

       6       look at your answer that starts on Line 18 and goes

       7       through Line 22.

       8            A.   Okay.  Let me just read this and try to go

       9       back and see where we were in the discussion.

      10                 Is that the confidential?

      11            Q.   I don't think there is anything confidential

      12       in this passage.

      13            A.   So you are looking at Line 18.  Okay.  I see

      14       that.

      15            Q.   And you say, "Certainly we're going to do that

      16       in terms of feasibility and the viability of the project

      17       going forward."

      18            A.   Yes, I see that.

      19            Q.   Okay.  So aren't you telling us there that the

      20       company is going to continue to evaluate the feasibility

      21       and the viability of the project moving forward?

      22            A.   Yes, certainly, and we are required to do that

      23       as part of these proceedings every year.

      24            Q.   I thought you answered me differently when I

      25       had asked you that question earlier.
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       1            A.   No, I think -- and let me just clarify.  I

       2       think what I said is we have selected a path, and maybe

       3       I took it out of context.  We have selected a path.

       4       That path is causing things to happen that increase

       5       cancellation costs as you go forward, and that was what

       6       I was referring to.  I didn't want to imply that we

       7       haven't done that.  We have a project and we are moving

       8       forward with that project.  We certainly and are

       9       required to as part of the proceedings to continue to

      10       evaluate the feasibility and the viability of the

      11       project moving forward, and certainly would not continue

      12       if that was not the case.

      13            Q.   Let's talk about the cost of the project for a

      14       minute.  Would you agree with me, again, back when the

      15       company sought its determination of need, I think the

      16       company told the Commission the project would cost about

      17       $17 billion.  Does that sound right?

      18            A.   I think what we said in our need was, and let

      19       me just pull out my estimate.  I think we said

      20       17.2 billion including AFUDC.

      21            Q.   And would you agree with me now, I think you

      22       told us in your deposition that the cost is about

      23       $22.5 billion?

      24            A.   I did say in my deposition, and we have said

      25       it's with -- if you take what we described as the
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       1       midpoint or the most likely point in that cost estimate

       2       of 17.6, and you apply some assumptions around cash flow

       3       and AFUDC -- and, again, I'm not the expert in that,

       4       that is the regulatory folks and Jeff's folks -- but if

       5       you apply that, that is approximately 22.5 billion.

       6            Q.   So we have got in the two years since the

       7       determination of need was issued, the project has

       8       increased, what, about $5-1/2 billion?

       9            A.   That's correct.

      10            Q.   And you would agree with me, would you not,

      11       Mr. Elnitsky, that the project is still facing these

      12       enterprise risks that you and, I think, Mr. Lyash talk

      13       about in some detail in your testimony?

      14            A.   That is correct.

      15            Q.   And you would also agree, would you not, that

      16       in the future it's unclear as to whether these risks are

      17       going to be removed or whether they are going to

      18       escalate?

      19            A.   Yes.  I think I said that in my testimony in

      20       my deposition that, you know, we agree with, I think it

      21       was Dr. Jacobs' testimony that talks about whether those

      22       risks are going to go up or down.  I think what is

      23       important there, though, is we have to look at those

      24       risks in aggregate, and you have to look at them within

      25       the environment that we are at the time.  So we are
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       1       going to continue to evaluate those as we go forward.

       2                 We think that the path that we put the project

       3       on is the most reasonable and prudent path to go forward

       4       that maintains the ability to capture this long-term

       5       benefit and move forward with the project.

       6            Q.   But certainly would you agree that if those

       7       risks or some of the risks increase it could put the

       8       project in jeopardy, you would reevaluate whether it was

       9       the best way to move forward?

      10            A.   I wouldn't exactly agree with it that way.  I

      11       think I would agree that we will continue to evaluate

      12       those risks.  Which way those risks are going to move,

      13       you know, I can't predict, for example, how long it is

      14       going to take the economy to recover or how long or what

      15       we will see in terms of ultimate federal support in the

      16       long-term for things like loan guarantees.  So those

      17       things all affect how we think about the project.  But I

      18       do think you have to look at them in aggregate in the

      19       environment that we are in at the time.

      20            Q.   Would you agree it's possible that in the

      21       aggregate those risks, to the extent they are not

      22       mitigated or resolved, could lead the company to a

      23       decision point where they would decide to cancel the

      24       project?

      25            A.   Yes, I would agree that is one possible
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       1       outcome.

       2            Q.   And if that were to occur, is it your

       3       understanding, again, that the ratepayers would have

       4       paid all of the costs of the project up to that point,

       5       including whatever it cost to cancel?

       6            A.   Yes, that's correct.  And I think that is

       7       consistent with the cancellation of any project, just as

       8       has happened in Florida in the past.

       9                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      10                 Thank you, Mr. Elnitsky.

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you, ma'am.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Davis.

      13                 MR. DAVIS:  I have probably a half hour's

      14       worth of questions.  Do you want to continue now or --

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Let's do this.  Let's

      16       take a little break and give our court reporter a break,

      17       too, and then we will come back, and maybe we can finish

      18       up on this issue.

      19                 And what do you say, guys, 10:00 or 11:00

      20       tonight?  I think what we will really do is after we

      21       can -- if we finish Progress today, then I think it is

      22       in the best interest of all of us to go home and get a

      23       good night's rest and then start tomorrow morning.  So

      24       that's the plan, okay?  Okay.  Let's take a ten-minute

      25       break.  Thank you.
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       1                 (Recess.)

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  We're set to go.

       3       You're recognized.

       4                 MR. DAVIS:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

       5                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       6       BY MR. DAVIS:

       7            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Elnitsky.

       8            A.   Good afternoon, sir.

       9            Q.   I will try to sit like this so I can see you.

      10            A.   I'll slide over here a little bit.  Maybe that

      11       will make it easier.

      12            Q.   Okay.  I appreciate that.

      13                 My name is Gary Davis.  I represent the

      14       Southern Alliance for Clean Energy in this matter.  I

      15       have a few questions for you.  I'll try not to repeat

      16       anything that was asked.

      17                 First of all, I believe you stated you have

      18       been with Progress since about November of 2007, is that

      19       correct?

      20            A.   That is correct.

      21            Q.   And prior to today, have you testified in

      22       front of any utility commission before?

      23            A.   No, I have not.

      24            Q.   Okay.  So, I guess, then, you have never

      25       testified about the prudence or reasonableness of
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       1       utility decisions before?

       2            A.   No, I have not.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And just so we're clear, your testimony

       4       is primarily factual in nature.  You are not really

       5       offering opinions, is that right?

       6            A.   That is correct.  It's primarily factual.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Now, I know there has been a

       8       reorganization with Progress, but do you have a position

       9       that corresponds at all to Gary Miller's position

      10       before?

      11            A.   Gary Miller actually worked for me when I

      12       first became the Vice President of the Nuclear Plant

      13       Development.

      14            Q.   Okay.  And you are familiar that in last

      15       year's nuclear cost-recovery proceeding that Gary Miller

      16       and Mr. Jeffery Lyash testified for Progress?

      17            A.   Yes, I am familiar with that.

      18            Q.   Okay.  Did you read their testimony in

      19       preparation for your written testimony in this case?

      20            A.   Yes, I did.

      21            Q.   Okay.  Now, I'm going to ask you about some

      22       events that occurred that you have listed the dates in

      23       your direct testimony, but you do recall that last

      24       year's nuclear cost-recovery hearing was in September,

      25       is that right?
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       1            A.   That's correct, I think.

       2            Q.   Okay.  And at that time Progress asked for

       3       over 435 million in cost-recovery for the Levy Nuclear

       4       Plant?

       5            A.   I would have to go back and look at that, I'm

       6       not -- that sounds right to me, though.

       7            Q.   Okay.  You had information from the consortium

       8       prior to September 8th of 2009 that the costs would

       9       increase as a result of the schedule shift, didn't you?

      10            A.   No, not exactly.  We had information from them

      11       at that point in terms of where they were with the

      12       analysis, the scenarios we had selected.  We had not, at

      13       that point, made any decisions around what was the best

      14       path forward or how those costs would actually manifest,

      15       nor did we necessarily agree with the details of the

      16       costs that they provided.  There was still a substantial

      17       amount of work that needed to be done in back and forth

      18       exchanges with the consortium to get to the point where

      19       we clearly understood the costs of each of the options

      20       they had evaluated.

      21                 MR. DAVIS:  Let me ask, Madam Chair, I need an

      22       exhibit number.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I think we're at 219.

      24                 Is somebody keeping track with me?

      25                 MS. WILLIAMS:  219.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Is that correct?  Okay.

       2       219, and a description?

       3                 Mr. Davis, what will we call it?

       4                 MR. DAVIS:  Let's call this -- and I didn't

       5       put that on my sheet, unfortunately.  Let's call it

       6       August 13th, 2009, Schedule Scenario Analysis.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       8                 (Exhibit 219 marked for identification.)

       9                 MR. DAVIS:  And before we look at this -- I'm

      10       sorry.

      11                 MR. WALLS:  Is this from the consortium, Gary?

      12                 MR. DAVIS:  Yes.

      13                 MR. WALLS:  This is a confidential document.

      14                 MR. DAVIS:  Yes.  It's got the red cover.

      15       Thank you.  I'm not going to ask for any particular

      16       numbers, okay?

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  This is kind of a funky

      18       color red, so I'm glad you said that.

      19                 MR. DAVIS:  I know.  I didn't choose that.

      20       Somehow Kinko's chose this.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  This is a confidential

      22       document.

      23                 MR. DAVIS:  Thank you.  At least it wasn't

      24       pink.

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  That's okay.
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       1                 MR. DAVIS:  Let me know when everybody has it.

       2       Thank you.

       3       BY MR. DAVIS:

       4            Q.   And, Mr. Elnitsky, before we get to this

       5       document, can you look at your direct testimony, please,

       6       on Page 13, and beginning with the question on Line 17.

       7            A.   Page 13, Line 17?

       8            Q.   Yes.  And the question, did the consortium

       9       respond to the company's notice of change and request

      10       for schedule shift scenario analyses?  And what was your

      11       answer?  It's the first sentence.

      12            A.   Yes, in mid-August 2009, the consortium

      13       provided its confidential schedule shift analysis,

      14       including cash flow impacts to the company's response

      15       to the company's request.

      16            Q.   And what we just marked as Exhibit 219, is

      17       this the letter, actually the cover letter for the

      18       response from the consortium to Progress?

      19            A.   Yes, it is.  This is a cover letter of a

      20       document that is probably 30 or 40 pages thick.

      21            Q.   And I have not seen that document, because it

      22       hasn't been provided to all the parties.  But I would

      23       like to ask you this cover letter was sent from a

      24       Mr. Sean Hughes (phonetic) with the consortium to you,

      25       is that correct?
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       1            A.   That's correct.

       2            Q.   And without getting into the specifics, this

       3       cover letter talks about a document that was attached

       4       that you have described as a report that deals with

       5       assessments of estimated incremental costs, estimated

       6       cash flows, and schedule attributes, right?

       7            A.   Could you rephrase your question?  Are you

       8       pointing to something in the document or --

       9            Q.   I did quote from the document.  It's in

      10       Paragraph 2, and it would be the third sentence.

      11            A.   That is correct.

      12            Q.   So you were provided cost information

      13       including, as you phrased it in your testimony, cash

      14       flow impacts to the company, correct?

      15            A.   That is correct.  But let me explain a little

      16       further.  And if we go back to my Direct Testimony in

      17       the line that you asked me to read, if you go on to Page

      18       14, starting at Line 4, we discussed the detailed

      19       analysis that was required once we had that information

      20       from the consortium.  And the only reason I pause here,

      21       I want to make sure I say this in the right way within

      22       the context of the classification.  Suffice it to say

      23       that we did not take the report from the consortium at

      24       its face value.

      25            Q.   But you knew, and I'm not saying that -- I am
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       1       using the collective you, Progress, knew in August of

       2       2009 that the costs were increasing as a result of the

       3       schedule shift, correct?

       4            A.   No, I would not agree with that

       5       characterization.  I think what we knew at that time was

       6       that it was likely that there would be cost increases

       7       associated with a schedule shift.  We had not at that

       8       point done any detailed work with the consortium to take

       9       their report that you see here on August 13th of 2009,

      10       and actually do the analysis necessary to determine what

      11       in those costs we agreed with and what we did not agree

      12       with, and then how we would use those evaluations in our

      13       evaluation of options on how to move forward.

      14            Q.   Now, in your testimony and response to

      15       questions from, I believe Mr. Rehwinkel, you talked

      16       about a single schedule shift.  What did you mean by

      17       that?

      18            A.   What I meant by that what was what we had to

      19       deal with, and I certainly talk about this in my direct

      20       testimony as well, is as a result of the NRC's decision,

      21       as you know, last year not to grant the limited work

      22       authorization, we had to decide what was the best way to

      23       now change the schedule for the project.  This document

      24       that you presented here and the analysis by the

      25       consortium was one step in that process.  And ultimately
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       1       what we have done has made one change.

       2                 What I did not want to leave or wanted to be

       3       clear about was this has not been a series of subsequent

       4       schedule changes, it has been one set of analyses moving

       5       to the decision that we made to continue with the

       6       project on the modified schedule we have described.

       7            Q.   Well, last year when we were here for the NCRC

       8       hearing, there was only a 20-month schedule shift

       9       discussed as the schedule shift that Progress was

      10       undertaking as a result of the denial of the LWA, right?

      11            A.   I don't I think that's correct.  I think that

      12       is a mischaracterization of the testimony.  I think what

      13       we were saying at the time was that it was a minimum of

      14       a 20-month schedule shift as a result of the LWA,

      15       because at that point the only real analysis that had

      16       been done was to look at the diaphragm wall portion of

      17       the work, and that was about a 20-month duration.  We

      18       had gone out in the interim, in the April of 2009 time

      19       frame, and based on that minimum 20-month schedule

      20       shift, asked the consortium to evaluate a set of

      21       scenarios around what would ultimately be the schedule

      22       shift.

      23            Q.   So going from 20 months to 60 months is part

      24       of the same schedule shift, is that what you are saying?

      25            A.   That's correct.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  But, again, you had received this

       2       report from the consortium indicating that your costs

       3       were going to go up with either a 24-month or a 36-month

       4       schedule shift, and this information wasn't provided to

       5       the Commission last year during the cost-recovery

       6       hearing, was it?

       7                 MR. WALLS:  I'm going to object that that

       8       mischaracterizes the testimony from last year.

       9                 MR. DAVIS:  I've read the testimony from last

      10       year, but I don't think I asked him about that.  There

      11       was no information provided about cost increases

      12       beyond -- actually, the only information provided last

      13       year was a $17.2 billion number that was the same after

      14       re-evaluation.

      15                 MR. WALLS:  Well, Mr. Davis, I recall the

      16       testimony of Mr. Miller, and he did indicate that we had

      17       received this information and was evaluating it.  And he

      18       did indicate a range in which the cost estimate would go

      19       up in regards to the feasibility analysis that was

      20       provided last year.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Davis.

      22                 MR. DAVIS:  I don't think it's a valid

      23       objection.  I mean, I can characterize the testimony

      24       however I want to.

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.
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       1                 MS. HELTON:  Madam Chairman, I can guarantee

       2       you I can't remember the testimony from last year.

       3       Perhaps Mr. Davis could rephrase the question in a way

       4       that it won't be objectionable.

       5                 MR. DAVIS:  I'll attempt to, but --

       6       BY MR. DAVIS:

       7            Q.   Do you know whether Mr. Miller stated that the

       8       costs were going to go up as a result of the information

       9       received in August of 2009?

      10            A.   My recollection of what Mr. Miller stated last

      11       year was that this work was ongoing with the consortium

      12       to evaluate the schedule shift.  It would have been very

      13       premature for Mr. Miller at that point in time to make

      14       any speculations about the validity of these numbers or

      15       where those numbers would actually end up in terms of

      16       our cost estimate.  This work -- this was the start.

      17       This report from the consortium was the start of a

      18       rather detailed analysis to look at what of those costs

      19       we thought were valid and how would they actually be

      20       supplied to the project.

      21            Q.   You agree, do you not, and like I say, I

      22       haven't seen the document, that the costs that were

      23       reported by the consortium in August of 2009 that were

      24       going to result from the 24-month or 36-month schedule

      25       shift were higher than the $17.2 billion that was
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       1       provided to the Commission last year?

       2            A.   No, I would not agree with that.  What the

       3       consortium provided in their report was an evaluation

       4       based on their interaction with the supply chain on what

       5       may be the incremental costs associated with a change in

       6       schedule.  At that point we had not validated any of

       7       those costs, nor do I think it's appropriate to say

       8       those costs would be directly applicable to a cost

       9       estimate.

      10            Q.   Okay.  When you say incremental, you don't

      11       mean the costs would decrease, do you?  You mean the

      12       incremental increases?

      13            A.   What they provided to us in general --

      14            Q.   Please say yes or no, and then you can expand,

      15       please.

      16            A.   I'm sorry.  Yes.  What they provided -- and

      17       allow me to explain -- what they provided to us were

      18       cost increases associated with changes in schedule.

      19            Q.   And were any of those cost increases reported

      20       to the Commission in September of 2009?

      21            A.   No.  And as I said before, at that point in

      22       time this was very preliminary information.  And, in

      23       fact, was part of a long evaluation process around what

      24       was the best option for proceeding with the project.

      25            Q.   And you continued with that evaluation
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       1       process, did you not, in September and October?

       2            A.   That's correct.  That evaluation process

       3       actually went into February of 2010.

       4            Q.   Were any of those incremental increased costs

       5       reported to the Commission prior to October 15th of 2009

       6       when it issued its order in the nuclear cost-recovery

       7       docket?

       8            A.   No.  And, again, allow me to explain.  At that

       9       point we were still in October.  We were still

      10       evaluating the validity of the information that had been

      11       provided by the consortium.

      12            Q.   Now, at the time that you were asking -- I

      13       believe you stated in your testimony, and I don't need

      14       to point it out, because I'm sure you recall, that on

      15       April 30th, 2009, you asked the consortium to analyze

      16       the impacts of either a 24-month or a 36-month schedule

      17       shift, right?

      18            A.   That is correct.

      19            Q.   And you had the information prior to September

      20       of 2009 that a longer schedule shift than 20 months was

      21       likely, did you not?

      22            A.   No, and let me explain.  At that -- and,

      23       again, what was the time frame you asked for, sir?

      24            Q.   September 2009 when you received -- when you

      25       asked for and received this report, you asked for it in
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       1       April, you received it in August.  In September you

       2       already knew that the schedule shift was going to be

       3       longer than 20 months, did you not?

       4            A.   No, that's not true.  At that point we were

       5       evaluating what was, again, the most likely schedule

       6       shift.  We were looking at a variety of options

       7       including the scenarios that had been evaluated by the

       8       consortium.

       9            Q.   But why did Mr. Miller and Mr. Lyash discuss a

      10       20-month schedule shift in their testimony in September

      11       of 2009, when you had already asked for evaluation of a

      12       24 to 36-month schedule shift?

      13                 MR. WALLS:  Objection, mischaracterization of

      14       testimony.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Davis.

      16                 MR. DAVIS:  I'll attempt to rephrase, although

      17       I don't believe that's objectionable.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  See if you can

      19       rephrase.

      20                 MR. DAVIS:  I'll attempt to.

      21       BY MR. DAVIS:

      22            Q.   Did Mr. Miller or Mr. Lyash discuss with the

      23       Commission in September of 2009 that a 24-month or

      24       36-month schedule shift was more likely than a 20-month

      25       schedule shift?
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       1            A.   I do not recall, but I think at the time that

       2       we were consistent in saying we were evaluating schedule

       3       changes.  We had asked the consortium to do a set of

       4       work associated with that evaluation on the -- as a

       5       result of the NRC's decision not to grant the limited

       6       work authorization.  But at that point it would have

       7       been premature to say anything more than we were looking

       8       at no less than a 20-month shift, because we really had

       9       not gotten to the point of having any more fidelity

      10       around the right answer.

      11            Q.   But you never said at the time that you were

      12       looking at a 24-month to 36-month shift, did you?

      13            A.   Without going back and reviewing their

      14       testimony directly, I don't know, but I think they were

      15       consistent in saying we were looking at no less than a

      16       20-month shift.

      17            Q.   And in October of 2009, was it reported to the

      18       Commission that you were looking at a 24 to 36-month

      19       shift instead of a 20-month shift?

      20            A.   No, I don't think so.  But, again, at that

      21       point we were in the middle of evaluating potential

      22       options.  We did not complete that evaluation until,

      23       well, actually, February of 2010 was my brief to the

      24       SMC, and then those recommendations moved forward to the

      25       board of directors in March of 2010.
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       1                 MR. DAVIS:  I'd like to ask for another

       2       exhibit number, please.

       3                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  That's 220.  And I can

       4       judge by the color that it is confidential.

       5                 MR. DAVIS:  The same ugly color.

       6                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And just a brief

       7       description.

       8                 MR. DAVIS:  Yes.  Elnitsky presentation,

       9       October 15th, 2009.

      10                 MS. HELTON:  I'm sorry, Madam Chairman, I

      11       didn't hear what he said.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Could you repeat the

      13       description.

      14                 MR. DAVIS:  Yes.  Elnitsky presentation,

      15       October 15th, 2009.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      17                 (Exhibit 220 marked for identification.)

      18       BY MR. DAVIS:

      19            Q.   Mr. Elnitsky, do you have Exhibit 220 in front

      20       of you?

      21            A.   Yes, I do.

      22            Q.   Okay.  Is this a copy of a Power Point

      23       presentation that you presented to the senior management

      24       committee on October 15th, 2009?

      25            A.   Yes, I think it is.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    995

       1            Q.   And let me ask you, if you will, please, to

       2       turn to Page 3.

       3            A.   Okay.

       4            Q.   Now, this is a confidential exhibit.  I'm not

       5       going to -- I don't know what parts are really

       6       confidential.  Are the four options presented on Page 3

       7       confidential?

       8            A.   No, I think we can talk to those.

       9            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

      10                 Looking at these four options, I won't have

      11       you read them, those who have the exhibit can do so.

      12       But you had already formulated these four options,

      13       including a 36-month schedule shift, and an Option 4,

      14       which was project and COLA cancellation by October 15th

      15       of 2009, correct?

      16            A.   It is correct, yes, sir, and let me explain

      17       what the purpose of this brief was.  This was developed

      18       for presentation in October, because at that point, and

      19       if you go back to the very first slide, you will see

      20       that it says the schedule shift scenario analysis is

      21       continuing, because at that point we were still in the

      22       process of evaluating the information provided by the

      23       consortium.

      24            Q.   But read the rest of that first bullet that

      25       you didn't read?
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       1            A.   Sure.  Schedule shift scenario analysis is

       2       continuing, but we have sufficient information to frame

       3       our options.

       4            Q.   And the second one, please?

       5            A.   The second option says additional minimum cash

       6       flow options and recommendations will be reviewed.

       7            Q.   So at that time you had cash flow options and

       8       recommendations already, and you were just talking about

       9       additional ones could be reviewed, right?

      10            A.   No.  What that second bullet is referring to

      11       is we are going to talk about additional options in

      12       addition to what was provided by the consortium in their

      13       scenario analysis.

      14            Q.   So looking, again, at Page 3 of Exhibit 220,

      15       the Option Number 1 is a 36-month COD, and is this,

      16       basically, the pursue it as fast as you can option?

      17            A.   At that point in time, and, again, let me --

      18       yes, sir.  Let me explain, again, the full context of

      19       this brief.  So this brief was provided to the senior

      20       management committee based on where we had progressed at

      21       that point in time with our scenario analysis and our

      22       evaluation of other changes that had occurred in terms

      23       of licensing schedules and watching some other events

      24       that had begun to unfold, including the October 15th

      25       notification from the NRC to Westinghouse regarding
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       1       resubmittal of their shield building design.

       2                 What we did with this presentation was suggest

       3       to the SMC that we might need to go back to the

       4       consortium and evaluate longer terms options beyond the

       5       scenarios that were evaluated in the initial August

       6       report that you referenced earlier.  And this was just

       7       an example of trying to provide some potentials of what

       8       some of those options might look like.  It was certainly

       9       not all the options that were available, nor did it

      10       include all the things that we had included as part of

      11       the scenario analysis with the consortium.

      12            Q.   Now, you didn't prepare this document on

      13       October 15th, 2009, did you?

      14            A.   Actually, it was about the day before, and it

      15       was informed by the fact that we had the October 15th

      16       information from the NRC.

      17            Q.   You got that information before October 15th,

      18       right?

      19            A.   Well, in fact, we had had some information

      20       from them before October 15th, that is correct, verbal

      21       information.

      22            Q.   So in looking at Page 3 with Options 1, 2, 3,

      23       and 4, there is no 20-month schedule shift option on

      24       there at all, is there?

      25            A.   No, sir.  And, again, as I have previously
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       1       stated, these options were in addition to the scenario

       2       analysis work that was going on with the consortium.

       3            Q.   And prior to October 15th, 2009, at the time

       4       you were preparing this presentation, you didn't provide

       5       any information to the Commission, did you, about a

       6       possible 36-month or greater than 36-month schedule

       7       shift?

       8            A.   No, sir.  And, again, the reason for that was

       9       this was all very preliminary discussions.  None of

      10       these options had been selected nor were they finalized,

      11       nor was, in fact, the analysis of the consortium's input

      12       and information complete.

      13            Q.   If you would look at Option 2, please, on Page

      14       3.  This is minimum near term cash flow with greater

      15       than 36-month schedule shift target.  The parenthetical

      16       there, contractual full suspension, I'm not sure what

      17       that is.  I'm not going to ask you about it.

      18            A.   That's fine.

      19            Q.   But is this basically the option that you were

      20       now pursuing?

      21            A.   Yes, sir.  And let me explain, again.  This

      22       Option 2, as it was presented at this time, was a

      23       hypothesis to the senior management committee that there

      24       could be an option to pursue a longer term suspension,

      25       potentially beyond 36 months, but that it would, in
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       1       fact, require a whole different type of engagement with

       2       the consortium beyond what we had done in the scenario

       3       analysis.  So this was to set that case.  The Option 1

       4       base case was associated with if we could continue -- at

       5       this point we didn't call it the full speed ahead,

       6       because it really was not informed by that, but it

       7       effectively later on became what we referred to as the

       8       full speed ahead approach.

       9            Q.   That was Option 1, right?

      10            A.   Yes, sir.

      11            Q.   I'm talking about Option 2.

      12            A.   Yes, sir.  Option 2, as I said, was the option

      13       that we ultimately selected.  But at this point in time

      14       it was not as mature, and what we were framing up here,

      15       again, as I said a moment ago, was the need to go engage

      16       with the consortium to pursue what would be a longer

      17       term suspension of the contract beyond what was

      18       currently provided by the provisions of the agreement.

      19            Q.   You just referred to Option 2 or this whole

      20       analysis as hypothetical.  Look at Page 9 of Exhibit

      21       220, please.

      22            A.   Okay.

      23            Q.   You recommended Option 2, did you not, on

      24       October 15th, 2009?

      25            A.   Yes, I did.  Again, though, it was predicated
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       1       on the fact that it would require a different level of

       2       engagement with the consortium.  And if you follow on to

       3       the next steps, you will see that discussion on Page

       4       10 in terms of what was going to be required by senior

       5       leadership, recognizing in October of 2009 we were not

       6       convinced that the consortium would entertain such an

       7       approach.

       8            Q.   Did you inform the Commission that you had

       9       recommended that senior management of Progress had

      10       recommended a greater than 36-month schedule shift for

      11       the Levy Nuclear Plant in October of 2009?

      12            A.   No, sir.  But, again, let me clarify.  This is

      13       my recommendation to the senior management committee and

      14       my recommendations on the next steps to take to pursue

      15       the possibility of being able to entertain a longer term

      16       suspension than was currently contemplated by the

      17       contract.

      18            Q.   And the senior management committee said go

      19       for it, right?

      20            A.   Yes, sir.  What the senior management

      21       committee decided was to go and start engagement with

      22       the consortium to see whether this was a viable path.

      23       It was not at that point the selected path or the only

      24       path that we were evaluating, but we needed to take

      25       certain actions if we were going to be able to negotiate
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       1       an amendment to the EPC agreement.

       2            Q.   Let me refer you to Page 5 of your direct

       3       testimony, please.

       4            A.   Page 5.

       5            Q.   And Line 11 through 12.

       6            A.   Okay.

       7            Q.   And there has been discussion about this

       8       already that the decision to amend the EPC agreement was

       9       made on March -- in March of 2010, is that right?

      10            A.   No, that's not correct.

      11            Q.   When was it made?

      12            A.   The decision to move forward and sign the

      13       amendment that had been negotiated for the EPC agreement

      14       was actually made at a board of directors meeting, I

      15       think on the 17th of March.  Following that agreement

      16       from the board of directors, we moved forward and

      17       actually amended the contract on March 25th.

      18            Q.   And that's fine.  Is this the amendment that

      19       had the cost increase?  I mean, you had said essentially

      20       that the cost increase was over 5 billion in response to

      21       previous questions.  Did you know at the time you

      22       amended the EPC that the cost increase was going to be

      23       more than $5 billion?

      24            A.   No, we did not.  What we did know at that

      25       point was we had preliminary cost estimate work that had
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       1       been done on a 36-month schedule shift.  That would have

       2       been a 2019 in-service.  We were still in the process of

       3       completing the extensive work that was required to

       4       finish a cost estimate based on a 2021 in-service.  So

       5       we had an understanding of what was the effects of the

       6       change in schedule, but we had not completed that cost

       7       estimate.  That was actually completed in April of 2010.

       8            Q.   Okay.  When did you have the understanding of

       9       the 36-month cost increase?

      10            A.   That 36-month cost estimate, as I recall, was

      11       done -- it probably would have been in the January or

      12       February time frame as we were evaluating some of the

      13       various options.  I would have to go back and actually

      14       look at the dates on that estimate.

      15            Q.   Well, and just -- I want to make clear, you

      16       used the information from the consortium that was

      17       provided on August 13th, 2009, for that purpose, did you

      18       not?

      19            A.   Yes, but allow me to clarify.  The information

      20       provided from the consortium effectively gave us

      21       information around what was the anticipated impact on

      22       long lead material and what that might mean to those

      23       costs.  So that informed that section of the cost

      24       estimate.  It again had to be validated by us, and it

      25       required us to go back in some cases and have additional
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       1       discussions with some of the suppliers to as accurately

       2       as we could and as conservatively as we could

       3       incorporate those costs into our overall project cost

       4       estimate.

       5            Q.   Let me turn you back to Exhibit 220.  That is

       6       the October 15th, 2009, presentation.

       7            A.   Okay.

       8            Q.   And I'm not going to ask you about the actual

       9       numbers, but if you will turn to Page 13, please.

      10            A.   Okay.

      11            Q.   And there is 13 going on to 18 where there are

      12       cost numbers, correct?

      13            A.   That is correct.

      14            Q.   Were these based on the numbers that were

      15       provided to you in August of 2009?

      16            A.   Well, let me break it down.  Yes and no, and

      17       let me break it down in pieces.  Primarily, the

      18       information on Pages 13 and 14 were associated with our

      19       estimates of near term cost impacts of the various

      20       options.  Again, this is early work in advance of the

      21       more detailed analysis that was part of the

      22       February 15th, 2010, presentation.  The information on

      23       Pages 15 and 16 and 17 related to long-lead material,

      24       and long-lead equipment is, again, some preliminary

      25       information based on our best estimates of cancellation
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       1       costs.  This was not based on specific input from the

       2       consortium because we had not specifically asked the

       3       consortium to provide cancellation costs.  We had asked

       4       them to provide the two schedule shift scenarios, or

       5       actually six schedule shift scenarios, the two time

       6       frames with the three different options on each.

       7                 We had asked them to do that work.  We had not

       8       asked them for cancellation costs.  So these were our

       9       best estimates based on some of our discussions and our

      10       understanding of some of those subtier contracts what

      11       those costs might look like.  The information -- I think

      12       this is Page 18, it's not numbered.  Yes, it's Page 18.

      13       The information on Page 18 is, in fact, an extraction of

      14       some of the schedule shifts and scenario analysis work

      15       that was done by the consortium in terms of what they

      16       anticipated for cost increases as a result of the

      17       schedule shift.

      18            Q.   So these show significant cost increases as

      19       compared to the costs of the project that were presented

      20       to this Commission in September of 2009?

      21            A.   No, I would not agree with that.  What this

      22       shows is the consortium's preliminary information.

      23       Again, we had not completed at this point the more

      24       detailed analysis.  We had not validated these numbers.

      25       And, in fact, as we went through into April of 2010 and
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       1       completed our conservative cost estimate that we

       2       discussed earlier this afternoon, a lot of these

       3       numbers, in fact, did change as a result of further

       4       discussions and negotiations.

       5            Q.   And they didn't change downward, they changed

       6       upward?

       7            A.   Some of them, in fact, did change downward.

       8            Q.   Okay.  My question, though, was are these

       9       significant cost increases as compared to -- whether you

      10       accepted them or not or whether you revised them or not,

      11       are they significant as compared to what was presented

      12       to this Commission in September of 2009?

      13            A.   Yes.  But, again, allow me to explain.  These

      14       are significant numbers, however they had little

      15       validity at this point.  And, in fact, have changed

      16       rather dramatically as we have gone forward and done the

      17       more detailed cost estimates.

      18            Q.   And, again, you didn't present any of these

      19       numbers to the Commission in October of 2009, correct?

      20            A.   No, and I think it would have been very

      21       premature to do that.  This was not good information at

      22       that point in time.

      23            Q.   If you will turn to Page 28 of your Direct

      24       Testimony.  I have a question about an item on Line 3.

      25            A.   Let me get to Page 28, sir.  Page 28.
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       1            Q.   And starting at Line 3, I think we just

       2       established that the numbers are higher, but read the

       3       second sentence, and I want to ask you about that.  We

       4       don't need to read it into the record, you can read it

       5       to yourself.

       6            A.   Okay.

       7            Q.   What do you mean by the costs are higher due

       8       largely to the effects of cost escalation resulting from

       9       the shifts in in-service dates?

      10            A.   If you go back and look at the details of the

      11       project estimates that were provided in the production

      12       of documents, what you will see on that is the primary

      13       change in total project cost is a result of escalation.

      14       The scope of the project has not changed, nor have there

      15       been other changes that cause the base cost of the

      16       project to go up.

      17                 Fundamentally, what has happened is the

      18       escalation factors that are part of the base contract

      19       around long-lead material and commodities, as you run

      20       those out over the schedule shift of the project that is

      21       the primary contributor to the cost.  So one way to

      22       think about it is when you pick up a project of this

      23       size and you move it in time, the primary driver of the

      24       cost change is escalation factors.

      25            Q.   I don't know if the escalation number is
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       1       confidential or not, but can you state it?  And if not,

       2       I want to ask you a general question about it.

       3            A.   I can state it, and I'd like to go back to the

       4       exhibit that was the actual cost estimate, if I could,

       5       just to make sure I'm as precise as possible.

       6            Q.   Are we talking about --

       7            A.   I will have to find it again here, I'm sorry.

       8       It is --

       9                 MR. WALLS:  Wait, John.  John.

      10                 THE WITNESS:  No?

      11                 MR. WALLS:  Let's make sure you can say this.

      12                 THE WITNESS:  I am going to point him at it is

      13       what I thought I would do.

      14                 MR. WALLS:  All right.

      15       BY MR. WALLS:

      16            Q.   Are we talking Exhibit 214?

      17            A.   Yes, sir.

      18            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

      19            A.   That is the easiest way to do it.  Sir, if you

      20       go to Page 214, or Exhibit 214 on -- let's find it here

      21       a second.  If you go to -- it would be Page 3 of 4 of

      22       the actual document, the summary document of the overall

      23       project estimate.

      24            Q.   Okay.

      25            A.   And you see in the middle section there, there
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       1       is an area that says major areas of change from IPP to

       2       current estimate.  Do you see that?

       3            Q.   I see that, yes.

       4            A.   Okay.  If you look at the third line, fourth

       5       line I guess it is, you will see a number in there.

       6       That is primarily the escalation changes based on our

       7       assumptions and our conservative calculation of this

       8       estimate.

       9            Q.   And how does that work?  I mean, do you have

      10       to have an escalation for each piece of equipment for

      11       each part of the project, or did you just apply an

      12       overall escalation number to it?

      13            A.   That is the result of a line-by-line buildup.

      14       There are various components of the EPC contract that

      15       escalate on different rates and that are defined by the

      16       contract.  There are other items, such as bulk

      17       commodities that are subject to Handy-Whitman indices,

      18       and in that case we use the best information available

      19       from some industry experts on those escalators to

      20       predict what those would be in the future.

      21            Q.   Again, without referring to a specific number,

      22       is it a fair calculation, ballpark, that the escalation

      23       increases were approximately two-thirds of your total

      24       increases?

      25            A.   Actually, I would say it is a little bit
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       1       higher than that, but that is pretty close.

       2            Q.   Okay.  All right.

       3            A.   You can see the total numbers there in that

       4       same section.

       5            Q.   Now, as far as other increases that aren't

       6       escalation, you didn't take any of those into account in

       7       your 60-month schedule shift increased cost, did you?

       8            A.   No, that's not true.  We did take those into

       9       account.  We looked at all factors associated with our

      10       best estimate of how the project would proceed and how

      11       those factors would affect the cost of the project.  So,

      12       you know, in some cases we knew there would be design

      13       change proposals that were being finalized and we

      14       estimated those and included those in the estimate.  So

      15       although the primary driver of cost change is, in fact,

      16       the escalation with time, we did a conservative review

      17       of all the elements of the project in building this

      18       detailed estimate.

      19            Q.   How did you take into account the risk of

      20       unforeseen design changes and/or impediments as you move

      21       along with the project?

      22            A.   Sir, in the estimate we incorporated

      23       assumptions around design change proposals.  We also

      24       have estimates associated with the contingency of the

      25       project, both what is required by agreement and what we
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       1       nominally do for projects of this size, and we

       2       incorporated those into the overall total project cost.

       3            Q.   Did your contingency percentage as a

       4       percentage of your total project cost increase as a

       5       result of the 60-month shift?

       6            A.   Not directly as a result of the 60-month

       7       shift, but it has changed slightly in terms of the

       8       overall calculation of the cost estimate.

       9            Q.   I'm sorry, I didn't get that.  I just wanted

      10       to make sure that you didn't mention a confidential

      11       guide for assessing the cost increases.

      12            A.   No, I don't think I did.

      13            Q.   Okay.  Well, that's fine.

      14            A.   The Handy-Whitman index is not a confidential

      15       guide, no.

      16            Q.   Okay.  I'm sorry.  But let me -- I didn't hear

      17       your answer to the question.  Would you mind repeating

      18       it, please?

      19            A.   Let me go back and remember what the question

      20       was.

      21            Q.   The question asked about the contingency and

      22       whether the percentage of the overall project amount

      23       that was allocated to contingency increased as a result

      24       of the 60-month schedule shift.

      25            A.   And the answer is no, not directly as a result
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       1       of the 60-month schedule shift.  But as part of doing

       2       this estimate, we did do a review of the contingency

       3       requirements based on our understanding of the project

       4       and made some minor changes to those amounts.

       5            Q.   And we have established with prior questions

       6       that the midrange, as you call it, even though not

       7       arithmetically precise of $22.5 billion has a bracket

       8       around it, right?

       9            A.   Yes.  But let me clarify what I think we

      10       established earlier and what we show on this same

      11       document is a bracket around total project cost at

      12       17.6 billion including fuel.

      13            Q.   Without AFUDC?

      14            A.   Without AFUDC.

      15            Q.   Now, if you were to take the maximum number

      16       that you have of your bracket and apply AFUDC to it, are

      17       you able to state what that number is?

      18            A.   Sir, I'm not sure what that calculation works

      19       out to.  I think when we did this as part of the

      20       evaluation and as the input into the feasibility

      21       analysis, we did an AFUDC or carrying cost runout based

      22       on that project estimate.  I don't know if that has been

      23       actually performed for any other numbers in the

      24       estimate.

      25            Q.   So you're saying you only performed that on
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       1       the midrange number?

       2            A.   I think that was -- my understanding is, and,

       3       again, this is part of what the regulatory side of our

       4       business does.  It will take that and flow that into a

       5       cash flow and then work that in terms of carrying costs

       6       and AFUDC calculations.  We did that for that 17.6

       7       number, and then used that as part of the inputs to the

       8       feasibility analysis.

       9            Q.   Are you aware if anyone has performed that

      10       calculation for the higher number?

      11            A.   I do not know.  I don't think so.

      12            Q.   If you will go to your rebuttal testimony and

      13       look at Exhibit 6, please, JE-6.

      14            A.   Yes, sir.

      15            Q.   And, again, understanding that the numbers are

      16       confidential, I just want to ask in order of magnitude

      17       here, if you were to cancel post-COL as you're looking

      18       at Option 4 here on this exhibit, isn't that about one

      19       and a half times as much as it would cost to continue

      20       with the partial suspension and cancel at the receipt of

      21       the COLA?  I'm sorry, I misphrased that.

      22                 If you were to cancel today, and I guess that

      23       would be your Late-Filed Exhibit Number 1, compare that

      24       to Option 4 with canceling post-COLA?

      25            A.   One second let me get that out again, just so
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       1       I've got it here.  Okay.  So I've got the late-filed

       2       exhibit, and I have JE-6 out in front of me.  So what

       3       was your question?

       4            Q.   And the late-filed exhibit I believe we have

       5       marked as Exhibit 216, as well.

       6            A.   Okay.  Sure.

       7            Q.   If you compare the Option 4, canceling

       8       post-COLA, partial suspension up until then, to the

       9       amount in Exhibit 216, or Late-Filed Exhibit Number 1,

      10       isn't it about one and a half times?

      11            A.   That is correct.

      12            Q.   One and a half times more expensive to cancel

      13       post-COLA than canceling now?

      14            A.   Yes, sir.  And as we discussed before, the

      15       reason for that is as the project continues and work

      16       continues to be performed at any point in time where you

      17       would make a decision to cancel the project, it implies

      18       there would be additional cancellation charges.

      19            Q.   You have on Page 31 of your rebuttal testimony

      20       a table of different nuclear plants that, I believe --

      21            A.   Let me get that.  One second, sir.  I

      22       apologize.  What page are you on again, sir?  I'm sorry.

      23            Q.   It's on Page 31 of your rebuttal.

      24            A.   I'm sorry, I'm on the wrong one.  Yes, sir.

      25            Q.   And you mention that this is from the NRC
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       1       website dealing with the COLAs that are being pursued

       2       for various AP 1000s?

       3            A.   That's correct, sir.

       4            Q.   Actually, there are some others in here not AP

       5       1000, right?

       6            A.   Yes, sir.  There is actually -- this was all

       7       the current COLAs that were on the NRC website.

       8            Q.   Do you stay abreast of what is going on with

       9       these other reactor proposals out there?

      10            A.   Yes, sir, to the best of my ability.

      11            Q.   And are you familiar with the current status

      12       of each of these plants here?

      13            A.   I am familiar in general with the status of

      14       the projects that are listed on this sheet, yes, sir.

      15            Q.   I mean, for instance, if you look at Bellafont

      16       3 and 4 for TVA.

      17            A.   Yes, sir.

      18            Q.   That is no longer an AP 1000, right?

      19            A.   That's not true, sir.  Bellafont 3 and 4 right

      20       now is currently being evaluated by TVA, at least by my

      21       understanding, on whether they will move forward with an

      22       AP 1000 project or whether they will first go back and

      23       complete Bellafont 1 and/or 2.  I think there has been

      24       some announcements from the TVA board here in recent

      25       months about those decisions and, in fact, have
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       1       authorized some money to move forward with the

       2       engineering and licensing activities to continue to

       3       pursue Bellafont 1.

       4            Q.   Right.  And they are not pursuing 3 and 4,

       5       right?

       6            A.   Not currently, but I don't think they have

       7       precluded that as a potential future option, either.

       8            Q.   And Bellafont was previously the reference

       9       COLA for the AP 1000, and now it is no longer that?

      10            A.   Yes, sir, that is correct.  Bellafont 3 and 4

      11       were, and that has now been shifted to Vogtle 3 and 4.

      12            Q.   Okay.  Now, what about Calvert Cliffs, that

      13       has been canceled, has it not?

      14            A.   Calvert Cliffs right now shows on the website,

      15       at least, as in review.  I don't think that project has

      16       been canceled, but I'm not sure.

      17            Q.   Let me show you an article.

      18                 MR. DAVIS:  And we'll make this the next

      19       exhibit, please.  This will be 221, Madam Chair?

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  That is correct, 221.

      21                 MR. DAVIS:  And we will call this article,

      22       "Constellation to Reduce Spending on Nuclear Project."

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I'm sorry, could you

      24       repeat that?

      25                 MR. DAVIS:  Constellation to Reduce Spending
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       1       on Nuclear Project.

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       3                 (Exhibit 221 marked for identification.)

       4       BY MR. DAVIS:

       5            Q.   And I will represent to you, Mr. Elnitsky,

       6       that this article was from the Wall Street Journal and

       7       it was originally published on July 28th, 2010.  Does

       8       this indicate that Constellation has stopped spending on

       9       the Calvert Cliffs project and is likely to stop it

      10       entirely?

      11            A.   No, sir, I don't think that is what this

      12       indicates.  And, again, just reading through the article

      13       here briefly, I think what this is indicating is that

      14       Constellation Energy was planning to reduce their

      15       spending while they were waiting on the results of the

      16       federal loan guarantee program.  I don't know that I

      17       would classify that as stopping the project.

      18                 And if I could, again, my point in listing

      19       these items in my rebuttal testimony was to provide my

      20       understanding of where these different projects were,

      21       and the fact that many of them were still proceeding

      22       with their COLA applications.  I certainly try to stay

      23       abreast of what happens in the rest of the industry,

      24       but, you know, I may not be up to date on each and every

      25       item.
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       1            Q.   And I don't see the Exelon project in here.

       2       Did you already leave that one out?  Exelon has canceled

       3       projects that were previously on the NRC list?

       4            A.   I think what Exelon has done, and I don't know

       5       if it's on -- I don't see it on our list here.  But

       6       Exelon has taken -- these were specifically -- let me go

       7       back.  These were specific to COL applications.  What

       8       Exelon has done with their project, as I understand it,

       9       is transition it from a COL application to an early site

      10       permit application.

      11            Q.   You are saying Exelon is still proceeding with

      12       the projects that had been proposed previously?

      13            A.   No.  What I said, sir, was that Exelon, for at

      14       least one of their projects I know, has transitioned it

      15       from a COLA application to an early site permit that

      16       allows them to move forward with a broader plant

      17       parameter envelope and analysis.

      18            Q.   Without pursuing the actual COLA.

      19            A.   Not pursuing the actual COLA today, yes, sir.

      20            Q.   Okay.  And what about Entergy?  I don't see

      21       them on your list here, either.

      22            A.   No, sir.

      23            Q.   They have canceled projects in Mississippi and

      24       Louisiana, right?

      25            A.   Yes, sir.
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       1            Q.   So you weren't attempting in this table on

       2       Page 31 to argue anything in rebuttal about the status

       3       of the nuclear industry that really contradicted what

       4       either Mr. Gunderson or Dr. Cooper said, were you?

       5            A.   Yes, sir, I was.  I think, at least as I read

       6       Mr. Gunderson and Mr. Cooper's testimony, it inferred to

       7       me that they were trying to make the point that nuclear

       8       projects in the United States had stopped.  I do not

       9       think that is, in fact, the case.  And what I tried to

      10       demonstrate in this rebuttal testimony is a list of

      11       those projects that I am aware of that are proceeding

      12       with licensing or, in fact, are proceeding with actual

      13       projects.  I should clarify that, actual construction of

      14       those projects.

      15            Q.   Let me just back up.  You are in charge of the

      16       Progress Sharon Harris project, right?

      17            A.   That's correct.

      18            Q.   Where does it stand now?

      19            A.   It is also proceeding forward with a COLA, or

      20       a combined operating license application.

      21            Q.   And you are not going to pursue that project

      22       without loan guarantees, are you?

      23            A.   That's probably a question that is better for

      24       Mr. Lyash.  I don't think we've made a final decision

      25       yet on how we will proceed with financing associated
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       1       with that project.

       2            Q.   And you had mentioned in your rebuttal that

       3       SACE and Mr. Gunderson had created a new AP 1000

       4       containment issue.  You don't know whether SACE had

       5       anything to do with the Gunderson report that was

       6       attached to his testimony, do you?

       7            A.   Sir, that statement in my Direct Testimony, I

       8       think it is actually on Page 26 at Lines 10 and 11, is

       9       based on my reading of Mr. Gunderson's testimony.  And I

      10       based that on the fact that as I looked at his

      11       exhibit -- or, I guess not his exhibit, his Attachment

      12       AG-7, the letter in there to the Atomic Commission on

      13       Reactor -- Advisory Commission on Reactor Safeguards,

      14       rather, on the letterhead it includes SACE as one of the

      15       groups on the letterhead.  So to me it was just kind of

      16       odd that Mr. Gunderson was pointing at a report as an

      17       expert witness for SACE and pointing to a report that

      18       SACE is actually on the letterhead for.  That was my

      19       only conclusion.

      20            Q.   And you don't know that SACE had anything to

      21       do with that, do you?

      22            A.   No, I do not directly, sir, just based on

      23       reading his actual testimony.

      24            Q.   And you haven't evaluated the validity of

      25       Mr. Gunderson's concerns that he expressed to the Atomic
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       1       Safety Licensing Board?

       2            A.   I have not directly evaluated those.  That is

       3       not my job.  That is really the job of the Nuclear

       4       Regulatory Commission and the Advisory Commission on

       5       Reactor Safeguards.  But what I will say is that is

       6       exactly what we want to happen is for any of those types

       7       of issues to be brought forward, to be clearly vetted in

       8       those forums and in the appropriate forums, and all of

       9       those types of questions to be answered before we move

      10       forward with these types of projects.  Number one on our

      11       list in all of these efforts is public health and

      12       safety.

      13            Q.   Good.  And any reasonable nuclear engineer

      14       would do that, right?

      15            A.   Yes, sir.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Davis, can I do

      17       this, because I don't want to rush anybody's questions

      18       and testimony.  What I would like to do is probably go

      19       into recess and come back tomorrow morning and continue.

      20                 MR. DAVIS:  I have one more question.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  If you want to do

      22       that, we can do that.  I don't want to rush you by any

      23       means.

      24                 MR. DAVIS:  Well, I'm really almost done.

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  We'll continue.
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       1       BY MR. DAVIS:

       2            Q.   You are aware, are you not, that in the Vogtle

       3       COLA that there is now a contention that has been

       4       proposed by an intervenor that incorporates

       5       Mr. Gunderson's report?

       6            A.   Yes.  Yes, sir, I am.  And to be precise, I

       7       understand there has been a contention filed with the

       8       Atomic Safety and Licensing Board for the Vogtle

       9       project.  That contention, as I understand it, has not

      10       yet been admitted, but I do understand it has been

      11       filed.

      12            Q.   If it is accepted by the NRC and the Atomic

      13       Safety Licensing Board, that would delay the Vogtle

      14       COLA, would it not?

      15            A.   No, I don't think that's the case.  I think

      16       that issue, like any other issue that is raised, will be

      17       fully vetted.  And in my reading of the minutes of the

      18       Advisory Commission on Reactor Safeguards in this issue,

      19       I think Chairman Ray clearly indicated that that was an

      20       issue because it is primary associated with preservation

      21       and programs for monitoring the shield building, that

      22       that was an issue best handled as part of the COLA

      23       process.

      24                 MR. DAVIS:  That's all I have.  Thank you.

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Thank you.
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       1                 Should we handle the exhibits?

       2                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, we can after redirect.

       3                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.

       4                 MR. YOUNG:  And staff has no questions.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  No questions.

       6                 Commissioners.

       7                 Redirect.

       8                 MR. WALLS:  Apparently not.  (Laughter.)

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  There is no

      10       redirect?

      11                 MR. BURNETT:  No.

      12                 Madam Chair, may I be heard?

      13                 Yesterday you had mentioned there was a

      14       possibility to go late tonight, and if that was still a

      15       possibility, I would beg for that to happen just to

      16       accommodate Mr. Lyash being able to, hopefully, get to

      17       an operational meeting in another one of our nuclear

      18       plants.  I don't know if that's --

      19                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I was intending to do

      20       that.  Unfortunately, there's going to be too many

      21       questions for, I think, Mr. Lyash.  And I think some of

      22       our Commissioners have things -- I'm not sure.  I think

      23       I was asked to kind of cut off at least about this time.

      24       And I think that in the best interest of everybody

      25       getting tired, it may be time to go.  I just think there
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       1       is going to be too many questions for Mr. Lyash to get

       2       done at any reasonable hour this evening.  So, I'm

       3       sorry, I wish we could have.  I thought we would.

       4                 MR. BURNETT:  Yes, ma'am.  Thank you for your

       5       consideration.

       6                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Thank you.

       7                 Let's move the exhibits and then recess until

       8       tomorrow.

       9                 Mr. Rehwinkel.

      10                 MR. BREW:  Madam Chairman, just to weigh in on

      11       that point.  I expect to take about ten minutes with Mr.

      12       Lyash.

      13                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Less here.

      14                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioners, it's up

      15       to you guys.

      16                 Okay.  I'm sorry.  Let's go ahead and move

      17       these exhibits.

      18                 You want to go ahead with Mr. Lyash?  Do you

      19       want to try it?  Let's try it.  Okay.

      20                 Let's move the exhibits, and we will go.  I

      21       know we had some.

      22                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Have you already moved yours?

      23                 MR. WALLS:  (Inaudible.)

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Right.  I'm sorry,

      25       that's right.
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       1                 MR. WALLS:  Yes.  We would move the direct and

       2       rebuttal exhibits of Mr. Elnitsky, JE-1 through

       3       JE-10, which are identified as Hearing Exhibits 21, 22,

       4       23, and 24 on the Comprehensive Exhibit List, and

       5       exhibits -- where is that, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, and 91,

       6       through 91.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  It's raining so hard I

       8       could hardly hear you.  Did you start with 85?

       9                 MR. WALLS:  Yes, I'm sorry.

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  That's fine.  It's not

      11       your fault.

      12                 MR. WALLS:  The direct exhibits are identified

      13       as Hearing Exhibits 21 through 24, and we would move

      14       those in.  The rebuttal exhibits are identified as

      15       Numbers 85 through 91, and we would move those into

      16       evidence.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So moved, hearing no

      18       objection.

      19                 (Exhibits 85 through 91 and Exhibits 21

      20       through 24 admitted into the record.)

      21                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Public Counsel would move

      22       Exhibits 212 through 218.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Hearing no objection, so

      24       moved.

      25                 (Exhibits 212 through 218 admitted into the
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       1       record.)

       2                 MR. DAVIS:  And SACE would move -- you had

       3       some?  Did you have any?

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I don't think so.

       5                 MR. DAVIS:  SACE would move 219 through 221.

       6                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  219 through 221, so

       7       moved.  Thank you.

       8                 (Exhibits 219 through 221 admitted into the

       9       record.)

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  The witness is excused.

      11       Thank you.

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  Madam Chairman.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioner Skop.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      15                 Madam Chair, Mr. Elnitsky, I don't think we

      16       have had a retired Admiral appear before the Commission

      17       before, so I think this is a first.  I just wanted to

      18       mention that in passing.

      19                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you, sir.

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you for your

      21       service.

      22                 MR. YOUNG:   Madam Chairman.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.

      24                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff would like to move Exhibit

      25       Number 73 in.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  So moved.

       2                 (Exhibit 73 admitted into the record.)

       3                 MR. YOUNG:  Also, Madam Chairman, it's my

       4       understanding that Mr. Burnett would like to be heard on

       5       a confidentiality matter that might have inadvertently

       6       been divulged.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Mr. Burnett.

       8                 MR. BURNETT:  Yes, ma'am.  Thank you.  It may

       9       or may not have been.  I didn't know the procedure if we

      10       could just have an ability to just look at a certain

      11       section of the transcript and just check back with our

      12       obligations.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Absolutely.

      14                 MR. BURNETT:  Thank you, ma'am.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  You're recognized.

      16                 MR. WALLS:  We would call Mr. Lyash to the

      17       witness stand who, I believe, has been previously sworn.

      18                              JEFF LYASH

      19       was called as a direct and rebuttal witness on behalf of

      20       Progress Energy Florida, Inc., and having been duly

      21       sworn,  testified as follows:

      22                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      23       BY MR. WALLS:

      24            Q.   Mr. Lyash, will you please introduce yourself

      25       to the Commission and provide your business address?
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       1            A.   Yes.  My name is Jeff Lyash.  I work for

       2       Progress Energy, and my business address is 410 South

       3       Wilmington Street, Raleigh, North Carolina.

       4            Q.   And, Mr. Lyash, who do you work for and what

       5       is your position?

       6            A.   I work for Progress Energy, Incorporated, and

       7       I am the Executive Vice President of Energy Supply.

       8            Q.   And have you filed Prefiled Direct and

       9       Rebuttal Testimony and exhibits in this proceeding?

      10            A.   I have.

      11            Q.   And do you have copies of those with you?

      12            A.   I do.

      13            Q.   Do you have any changes to make to your

      14       Prefiled Direct and Rebuttal Testimony?

      15            A.   I do not.

      16            Q.   If I asked you the same questions in your

      17       Prefiled Direct and Rebuttal Testimony today, would you

      18       give the same answers that are in your prefiled

      19       testimony?

      20            A.   I would.

      21                 MR. WALLS:  We request that the prefiled

      22       Direct and Rebuttal Testimony of Mr. Lyash be moved into

      23       evidence as if it was read in the record today.

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I'm sorry, yes.  I'm

      25       sorry.  I was in another world thinking about something
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       1       else.  Show that as moved into the record as though

       2       read.

       3

       4

       5

       6

       7
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      11
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      23
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      25
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And, Mr. Lyash, you were

       2       sworn?

       3                 THE WITNESS:  I was, Madam Chairman.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Thank you.

       5       BY MR. WALLS:

       6            Q.   Mr. Lyash, do you have a summary of your

       7       Direct and Rebuttal Testimony?

       8            A.   I do.

       9            Q.   Would you provide that to the Commission at

      10       this time?

      11            A.   Yes.  With respect to my Direct Testimony, I

      12       am a member of the senior management with direct

      13       responsibility for the Levy Nuclear Project.  My Direct

      14       Testimony starts where we left off in the proceeding

      15       last year, and explains the company's decision to

      16       continue with the Levy Nuclear Project.

      17                 As some of you may recall, last year the

      18       company faced a schedule shift as a result of the

      19       Nuclear Regulatory Commission's decision with respect to

      20       the company's limited work authorization, LWA.  The

      21       company was evaluating the impact of that schedule shift

      22       given the circumstances the company faced on the

      23       project.  Those circumstances are described in detail in

      24       my testimony, but the result was a minimum three-year

      25       schedule shift and increased uncertainty, and thus risks
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       1       as a result of events beyond the company's control.  As

       2       a result, the company evaluated whether to proceed or

       3       cancel the Levy Nuclear Project.  If we decided to

       4       proceed with the project, we also evaluated how we

       5       should proceed on the minimum schedule shift or on a

       6       longer schedule shift, given the uncertainty and risks

       7       we faced.

       8                 The company completed an updated feasibility

       9       analysis as part of this evaluation.  That updated

      10       feasibility analysis demonstrates that completion of the

      11       Levy Nuclear Project remains feasible.  In fact, even

      12       with the longer term schedule shift, the project

      13       remained economically feasible using the same economic

      14       analysis the Commission approved last year.  We still

      15       determined that proceeding with the LNP at this time is

      16       in the best interest of the company and its customers.

      17       We believe it is.

      18                 We obtained a favorable amendment to our EPC

      19       agreement that enables us to mitigate some of the

      20       short-term uncertainty and risk to investing significant

      21       capital in the project before we obtain the license for

      22       the project from the NRC.  This decision reduces the

      23       near term project cost to customers and allows us to

      24       continue with the project to obtain the substantial fuel

      25       savings and other long-term benefits this project will
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       1       provide to our customers.  This is the right decision

       2       for our customers and for our companies -- and for our

       3       company, I should say.

       4                 I am available to answer any questions you may

       5       have on my Direct Testimony.

       6                 With respect to my Rebuttal Testimony, my

       7       Rebuttal Testimony responds to the intervenor testimony

       8       of Dr. Jacobs, Mr. Cooper, and Mr. Gunderson.  These

       9       witnesses all claim, in essence, that PEF should have

      10       made a different decision with respect to the Levy

      11       Nuclear Project.  That decision, project cancellation,

      12       will end our development of nuclear generation in

      13       Florida and deny our customers the long-term fuel

      14       savings, fuel diversity, and carbon-free baseload

      15       generation the project will provide over the 60-plus

      16       years these units will operate.  That is the wrong

      17       decision for our customers and our company.

      18                 The right decision is to mitigate short-term

      19       uncertainty and risk to the extent possible and continue

      20       with the project to build these units and obtain the

      21       long-term benefits they will provide to our customers

      22       and our company.  That is the decision we made.  You

      23       heard Dr. Jacobs say he does not agree PEF should cancel

      24       the project now, but he wants to put the company's costs

      25       over the next three years to continue the project and
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       1       obtain the license at risk in the event the project is

       2       canceled at that time.  That is, in essence, telling the

       3       company the project should be canceled.  If continuing

       4       with the project is the right decision, which we believe

       5       it is, then the company is entitled to recover its

       6       reasonable and prudent costs to continue this project.

       7                 SACE witnesses, Mr. Cooper and Mr. Gunderson,

       8       claim that the LNP feasibility has not been

       9       demonstrated, that the LNP is not feasible, and that the

      10       LNP should therefore be canceled.  Cooper and Gunderson

      11       are wrong.  The LNP is an active project with a pending

      12       NRC license application under review, and an EPC

      13       agreement to construct the plants, just on a longer

      14       schedule than initially contemplated.  The NRC is

      15       reviewing the license application right now, and, in

      16       fact, the company recently obtained the draft

      17       environmental impact statement indicating the project

      18       can be built on the site.

      19                 Mr. Gunderson is wrong that regulatory

      20       approval cannot be obtained and that the plants cannot

      21       be built at the Levy site.  Simply put, there are no

      22       technical issues with the AP 1000 design that have

      23       precluded the NRC from continuing with its review

      24       towards approval of that design for the application to

      25       the LNP site.  Nuclear reactors can be built and
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       1       operated in Florida.  PEF has built and is operating a

       2       nuclear reactor within ten miles of the LNP site.

       3                 Mr. Cooper challenges the economic feasibility

       4       of the LNP by simply replacing PEF's forecast

       5       assumptions with unproven and unsupported assumptions of

       6       his own, just as he did in last year's proceeding.

       7       PEF's forecasts, however, are based on proven forecast

       8       methods previously approved by the Commission in the

       9       2009 NCRC docket and other dockets.  Further, PEF has

      10       demonstrated that the LNP is still feasible applying the

      11       same methodology this Commission approved last year.

      12                 That concludes my statement, Madam Chairman.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.

      14                 Mr. Rehwinkel.

      15                 MR. WALLS:  We tender Mr. Lyash for cross.

      16                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Madam Chairman, I'm going to

      17       go after Mr. Brew as a time-saving measure, but I also

      18       have 16 exhibits that I need to go through the mechanics

      19       of introducing.  I would be willing to do those after --

      20       at the very end.  It may save time and allow whoever

      21       needs to leave to leave sooner, so I will wait to do

      22       that at the end.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      24                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Madam Chair, if I may, I

      25       have just one or two questions I think would be very
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       1       quick.  Would it be possible for me to jump in?

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Absolutely.  Go ahead.

       3                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  Good evening.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Good evening.

       5                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I believe in your --

       6       primarily in your Direct Testimony you touch on the

       7       issue of joint ownership and past discussions and sort

       8       of what the status is.  So two questions on that point.

       9       The first is how is the issue of potential joint

      10       ownership factored into the feasibility analysis, or is

      11       it?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  It is.  We petitioned in our

      13       petition of need for 100 percent ownership of both

      14       plants.  In other words, we demonstrated the need for

      15       both plants.  And I think that need goes unchanged, and

      16       we are certainly capable of constructing and owning 100

      17       percent of the plants.  However, we recognized from the

      18       beginning that there were benefits to joint ownership, a

      19       long list, which I won't recount here.  And we have and

      20       we continue to pursue that, and those discussions are

      21       active.

      22                 When we do the feasibility analysis in the

      23       CPVRR portion of that, we do include the carbon and fuel

      24       cases, and we show that at three different levels of

      25       joint ownership; 100 percent ownership on our part,
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       1       80 percent ownership, and 50 percent ownership.  So that

       2       information is presented.

       3                 Secondly, joint ownership is essentially,

       4       aside from its other benefits, it's also a potential

       5       risk mitigation and customer mitigation activity.  And

       6       so we consider that as we consider broader enterprise

       7       risks going forward, and it's another reason we pursue

       8       it and consider it as part of the feasibility.

       9                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Is the potential future,

      10       hopefully reality or lack of such of joint ownership, a

      11       significant risk issue?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  I don't consider joint ownership

      13       a risk issue.  I do consider it a positive step that we

      14       can take to mitigate other risks and to mitigate

      15       customer price impact.  It is a significant part of our

      16       discussions as we go forward.  It will not in and of

      17       itself cause a specific decision on the project, but we

      18       will consider it at every step of the path.  Hopefully,

      19       that's responsive to your question.

      20                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  It is.  Thank you.

      21                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioner Skop.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      24                 Just one follow-up question, Mr. Lyash.  With

      25       respect to the prospect of co-ownership, is there a
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       1       probability at this point that you could assign to

       2       whether co-ownership would or would not happen in terms

       3       of the things the company is looking at?

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  It is difficult to assign

       5       a probability because we are not in control of the

       6       actions of the third-party.  So having said that, I can

       7       give you my assessment, my feedback that from the

       8       beginning of the project there has been significant

       9       interest by co-owners.  As a matter of fact, early in

      10       project life the interest by the co-owners, the appetite

      11       of the co-owners' interest exceeded our ability to

      12       accommodate them.

      13                 Those discussions were positive acts, and I

      14       would characterize them as converging as we approach

      15       signing the EPC and moving into 2009.  Necessarily, when

      16       we had to pause because of the LWA and the schedule

      17       shift and go through the process of reevaluating, the

      18       joint owners were in a similar position to us and had to

      19       consider their business interests.  So they need to

      20       allow this process to continue so that it supports their

      21       decision-making process.

      22                 Those discussions continue to go on, and I

      23       would not characterize it that there is any diminishing

      24       interest by the co-owners.  And so, in summary, I

      25       personally would characterize this as likely.  Although,
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       1       as I said at the beginning, it's difficult for me to

       2       handicap it because of our lack of control.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And the reason I ask, just

       4       so you are aware, is that on a prior witness there was

       5       extensive discussion as to what has been entered into

       6       the record as Exhibit 188, which showed the projected

       7       cost for 100 percent ownership, and there was a lot of

       8       discussion regarding potential rate impacts.  So, again,

       9       I thought that was a fair question to the extent that

      10       188 focused solely on 100 percent ownership and really

      11       didn't consider the prospect of what might happen in

      12       reality versus what was projected in the need

      13       determination.

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      15                 Joint ownership, Commissioner, certainly

      16       lowers the upfront impact to the customer before the

      17       plant goes in service.  One thing we have got to be

      18       mindful of is that it also takes the post-operation

      19       benefit to our customers with it.  So that it is -- when

      20       I focus on this issue, I tend to look at it in the

      21       manner that is laid out in the response, I think, to

      22       Interrogatory 29 on customer price, which shows that the

      23       net customer price impact of Levy in comparison to the

      24       other alternative plans that we would have to implement.

      25       That shows, I believe, before the plant goes into
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       1       service in its first year an impact to the customer of

       2       $38 per thousand kilowatt hours immediately before the

       3       plant goes into service.  That is for 100 percent

       4       ownership.  That rapidly reverses and becomes a net

       5       benefit to the customers growing with time to an excess

       6       of $70.  And so if we take that as we pursue joint

       7       ownership, we have got to recognize that any joint

       8       ownership will lower the upfront cost impact to the

       9       customer, but also lowers a proportionate long-term

      10       benefit to the customer.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  So just in summary to the

      12       point you made that 100 percent ownership allows you to

      13       capture substantial fuel savings on the long-term basis

      14       for your customers which, you know, would be important

      15       for long-term planning.  Whereas, co-ownership indicates

      16       the risk up front which may or may not be beneficial,

      17       and also looks at near-term cost.  Is that a fair

      18       characterization?

      19                 THE WITNESS:  That's a fair characterization.

      20       The long-term benefit is a billion dollars, plus your

      21       fuel savings, plus any carbon costs that might

      22       accumulate on top of that.  But I think still

      23       co-ownership, I think, is an important thing for us to

      24       consider because regardless of whether that benefit,

      25       cost and benefit accrues to our customers, if we partner
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       1       with others in the state, it remains here in Florida as

       2       opposed to some other alternatives.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Mr. Brew.

       5                 MR. BREW:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

       6                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MR. BREW:

       8            Q.   Good evening, Mr. Lyash.

       9            A.   Good evening.

      10            Q.   Talking briefly about your Direct Testimony,

      11       can I refer you to Page 25?

      12            A.   Yes, sir.

      13            Q.   And the question and answer at the bottom of

      14       the page addresses the adverse economic conditions in

      15       Florida and how they impacted customer ability to pay

      16       for nuclear generation development in Florida.  Do you

      17       see that?

      18            A.   Yes, I do.

      19            Q.   And my question is recession or not, is

      20       customer ability to pay for nuclear generation always a

      21       factor to consider?

      22            A.   I think both the -- yes, I believe both the

      23       cost side, the ability to pay in the short-term, as well

      24       as the ability to pay for the alternatives in both the

      25       short and the long-term necessarily have to be
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       1       considered.

       2            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And up at the top of that

       3       page in the portion of your answer that's discussing the

       4       new DSM goals and implementation plan for the company,

       5       you mention on line -- beginning on Line 2 that higher

       6       customer bills for enhanced DSM goals may also further

       7       erode customer ability to pay the near term cost of new

       8       nuclear generation.  Do you see that?

       9            A.   Yes, I do.

      10            Q.   So would you agree with me that the other

      11       factors that influence rates may affect customer ability

      12       to pay for new investments such as new nuclear

      13       construction?

      14            A.   Yes.  I think in the general sense that we

      15       have described this as a factor, both other factors that

      16       may affect the customer's bill in the short-term as well

      17       as the long-term, not just in terms of a per unit cost,

      18       but total cost are things that we need to generally

      19       consider.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And that is why on Page 11

      21       of 39 of your Exhibit JL-6, which shows an illustrative

      22       example of bill impacts, that --

      23            A.   I'm sorry, can you --

      24            Q.   Sure.

      25            A.   -- tell me -- I need to get to the spot.
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       1            Q.   It's JL-6 exhibit to your direct.

       2            A.   Yes.

       3            Q.   Page 11 of 39.

       4            A.   Okay.  I'm there.

       5            Q.   Now, that shows estimated bill comparisons per

       6       thousand kWh that includes -- that shows both the

       7       differing in-service date options and includes the

       8       impact of DSM goals after 2010, is that right?

       9            A.   Yes.  This shows an estimated bill comparison

      10       of total rate in '10, '11, and '12 with the Levy '19 and

      11       Levy 2021 as we saw them on February 15th, 2010, and it

      12       includes at that time what we viewed as each of these

      13       components.

      14            Q.   And the two variables that you modeled were

      15       the different in-service dates for Levy and the impact

      16       of DSM goals?

      17            A.   Yes.  However, I can't recall whether we made

      18       any -- those would be the only two that would be

      19       changing here.

      20            Q.   Your testimony also discusses the interest of

      21       rating agencies and the regulatory environment.  Would

      22       you agree that customer ability to pay, price pressures,

      23       and regulatory support are items of continuing concern

      24       of the rating agencies?

      25            A.   Yes, in part.  I would characterize it

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1158

       1       differently.  The rating agencies are primarily looking

       2       at the financial help of the company and how they

       3       perceive it in the short-term and the long-term, and

       4       they would look at any number of factors.  I'm not sure

       5       that the rating agencies would look directly at customer

       6       bill impact, but they would look at regulatory and

       7       legislative support and environment, as well as the

       8       economic condition in our service territories as factors

       9       in determining credit ratings.

      10            Q.   And would they be looking at the planned

      11       spending levels, say, for the Levy project along the

      12       lines of rate impacts relative to other things that may

      13       also be driving rates?

      14            A.   As I said, I think they would be looking at

      15       that range of factors, our cash flow, our credit

      16       metrics, leverage, FFO, et cetera.  They would also look

      17       at our capital spending plan and at the mechanisms and

      18       the status of recovery of those, whether they are

      19       investments in the smart grid or in a coal-fired

      20       station, a combined cycle or a nuclear plant to try to

      21       assess and predict how that would impact the company's

      22       financial statement, and, therefore, the credit rating.

      23            Q.   And will the company need to prioritize its

      24       spending on those various programs over the years,

      25       particularly as it begins to spend more on the nuclear
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       1       projects?

       2            A.   Yes, the company always prioritizes our

       3       capital spending.  And in prioritizing it, we look at a

       4       range of activities, environmental requirements that may

       5       be imposed, growth in capital investment that is

       6       required to serve load, capital investment that may be

       7       required to change in response to changing standards.

       8            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  On Page 29 of your Direct

       9       Testimony.

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   Beginning on Line 13 you have a sentence that

      12       reads, "Some of these risks are mitigated through the

      13       alternative cost-recovery mechanisms required by the

      14       statute and implemented by the nuclear cost-recovery

      15       rule."  Do you see that?

      16            A.   I see that.

      17            Q.   By risk being mitigated, do you mean risk

      18       mitigated for Progress Energy Florida or its consumers?

      19            A.   You will need to give me a minute so I can get

      20       the context of this answer.

      21            Q.   Sure.  Absolutely.

      22            A.   Yes.  My intent in this paragraph, if you look

      23       at the preceding question, it really goes to were there

      24       other impacts as a result of customer concerns during

      25       the recession.  So what we clearly acknowledge and
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       1       recognize is that we are in a rather unique economic

       2       situation nationally, and particularly difficult is the

       3       situation in Florida.  And so that is -- that economic

       4       condition is one of the enterprise risks associated with

       5       this project that has to be considered in our analysis

       6       of whether to proceed and how to proceed.  And so in

       7       considering that, there was, as you know, some

       8       significant concerns by our customers about customer

       9       price, and there was some discussion that arose about

      10       the process that the Legislature enacted and the Public

      11       Service Commission put into place through rulemaking

      12       with respect to alternative cost-recovery for the

      13       nuclear plant.  And so what I'm doing here is just

      14       assessing those.

      15                 In the lines that you directed me to, some of

      16       the risks are mitigated through the alternative

      17       cost-recovery mechanisms or that the project itself

      18       would not be possible without such mechanisms.  We would

      19       not have undertaken it because it allows us access to

      20       the capital markets and to the debt markets at

      21       reasonable rates.  So any erosion of that or, frankly,

      22       any erosion of support that we find might lead to an

      23       elimination or a revision of that would ultimately

      24       translate into a higher cost of capital, a more

      25       difficult time in the debt and equity markets.  That
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       1       would jeopardize the project, and if the project were

       2       successful under those conditions, it would necessarily

       3       raise the cost of implementing the projects.  And so

       4       this is really risk of both.  It's risk to the company

       5       and it's ultimately risk to our customers who, in the

       6       end, as in any regulated business, bear the reasonable

       7       and prudent costs as priced into the product.

       8            Q.   But the risks to the company of going forward

       9       with the project are mitigated by the nuclear

      10       cost-recovery rule by shifting some risk to consumers in

      11       the form of earlier recovery than would otherwise apply

      12       under traditional regulation?

      13            A.   No, I don't agree with that at all.  There is

      14       no risk shifting to the customer involved here, and the

      15       legislation didn't shift risk.  We operate in a

      16       regulated utility environment, and so the rules and the

      17       way this business is run are set and they have been set

      18       for quite awhile.

      19                 The company bears all the risk of this

      20       project.  We are raising every dollar that we invest

      21       through retained earnings or in the debt or equity

      22       markets.  And unless we discharge our responsibility to

      23       be reasonable and prudent about those investments and

      24       enter into this proceeding every year and demonstrate

      25       that, we carry the entire risk of that.
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       1                 Provided we are reasonable and prudent in our

       2       actions, those costs ultimately will be priced into the

       3       price of our product.  That is the regulatory compact

       4       which is at the heart of what we are discussing here.

       5       And that is true of any project we build.  The only

       6       difference here with the legislation is timing, not

       7       approach and not risk shifting.

       8            Q.   And the timing of the mechanism amounts to a

       9       recovery of $8 billion of project cost from consumers

      10       before the units go into service, right?

      11            A.   Well, I would have to go back and rerun the

      12       numbers about what the nuclear cost-recovery does.  I am

      13       accepting your 8 billion.  I'm not confident that that's

      14       the correct number.  But what this does is it requires

      15       that the company demonstrate reasonableness and prudence

      16       on an annual basis, so it actually elevates the level of

      17       scrutiny applied to this project in realtime.  It

      18       provides the Public Service Commission the ability to

      19       weigh in on the project in terms of both our

      20       effectiveness in running it and, frankly, whether it

      21       continues to be feasible, and, in fact, whether it

      22       should proceed.  This process enables this project to be

      23       built, which I think was the intent or, at least it is

      24       my reading of the intent of the legislation that was

      25       passed.
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       1            Q.   Okay.  Let's talk a little bit about joint

       2       ownership in your testimony on Page 68.

       3            A.   I'm there.

       4            Q.   And my understanding or my recollection is

       5       that you testified in the Levy need docket on a number

       6       of topics, including the potential for joint ownership,

       7       didn't you?

       8            A.   Yes, I did.

       9            Q.   And you testified on a number of topics,

      10       including the ongoing discussions regarding joint

      11       ownership in last year's NCRC docket, didn't you?

      12            A.   Yes, I did.

      13            Q.   Okay.  And without getting into specifics that

      14       are confidential, is it fair to say that your testimony

      15       has maintained that since at least 2007 the company has

      16       been in active discussions with potential joint owners

      17       in Florida and elsewhere?

      18            A.   That is correct.

      19            Q.   Okay.  And I believe on, oddly enough, your

      20       rebuttal Exhibit JL-9, which is an excerpt from your

      21       testimony in last year's case?

      22            A.   Yes.

      23            Q.   That at the time you then expected to conclude

      24       joint ownership agreements after you did an amended EPC

      25       agreement?
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       1            A.   I would characterize it slightly differently.

       2       We were in active negotiations with joint owners.  My

       3       recollection is that I indicated that the execution of

       4       an EPC project -- contract was an important and

       5       necessary step in the process to move toward closing

       6       joint owners.  And I would say that we were actively

       7       converging at that point.

       8            Q.   Okay.  Now, since that time, you have made

       9       your April filing announcing the proposed 60-month

      10       schedule shift, is that right?

      11            A.   That's correct.

      12            Q.   And your testimony back on Page 68, beginning

      13       on Line 13, says a firm commitment by joint owners to

      14       the LNP is not expected until there is greater certainty

      15       with respect to the cost, timing, and enterprise risks

      16       associated with the LNP.  Do you see that?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   And the question I have is with the company's

      19       decision to move the schedule 60 months, the in-service

      20       date of LNP is now outside the planning horizon of all

      21       Florida utilities that file Ten-Year Site Plans, right?

      22            A.   I would agree that it is outside the ten-year

      23       planning horizon.  I wouldn't agree that utilities in

      24       Florida only plan for ten years.  In other words, we

      25       file a Ten-Year Site Plan, but I'm not aware of a

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1165

       1       utility in Florida, including municipals and co-ops,

       2       that don't actively maintain a view well beyond ten

       3       years.

       4            Q.   Okay.  So if I could point you to the document

       5       that I handed you earlier that has been marked for

       6       identification as Exhibit 222.

       7                 MR. BREW:  And if I can describe that, Madam

       8       Chairman.  These are pages, excerpts from the 2009 and

       9       2010 Ten-Year Site Plans from Seminole Electric

      10       Cooperative.

      11                 (Exhibit 222 marked for identification.)

      12       BY MR. BREW:

      13            Q.   And, Mr. Lyash, my understanding that it is

      14       public record that Seminole is one of the enterprises

      15       that the company has discussed potential joint ownership

      16       with, is that right?

      17            A.   Yes, I would agree that Seminole's Ten-Year

      18       Site Plan includes information that mentions Levy.  I

      19       would prefer not to discuss in any detail with --

      20            Q.   It is my intention to stick with discussing

      21       only what is in their Ten-Year Site Plan.

      22            A.   Understood.

      23            Q.   Okay.  Because I put together two excerpts, I

      24       have numbered the pages in the lower right-hand

      25       column -- or right-hand corner.
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       1            A.   Yes, I see that.

       2            Q.   And if you move to Page 3, the single sentence

       3       paragraph in the middle of the page says that Levy was

       4       in discussions regarding ownership share of the proposed

       5       Levy units.

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   Do you see that?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   And if you skip two pages to Page 5, their

      10       planned generating facility additions shows Seminole

      11       taking roughly 128 of summer megawatt capacity from the

      12       Levy Units 1 and 2 in what was then their planned

      13       in-service dates?

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   Okay.  And if we could skip on to Page 7,

      16       which brings us into Seminole's current Ten-Year Site

      17       Plan.  Seminole is now in the third paragraph discussing

      18       an expansion plan that includes four 180-megawatt

      19       combustion turbines.  Do you see that?

      20            A.   Yes, these are peaking units in Gilchrist

      21       County.  I see that.

      22            Q.   And if you turn to Page 9, which is the,

      23       again, Schedule 8 for the planned generating facility

      24       additions, they then show those Gilchrist CTs as their

      25       next planned additions.  Do you see that?
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       1            A.   Yes, I do see that.

       2            Q.   So at least for ten-year siting plan purposes,

       3       Seminole is now committed to building the four peakers,

       4       where previously it had planned to purchase -- own a

       5       piece of the Levy unit, is that right?

       6            A.   No, I don't agree with the characterization.

       7       I agree that they have added to their plan four peaking

       8       units.  I don't agree that those in any planning process

       9       are equivalent to baseload capacity.  The Levy plants

      10       serve a 7-day-a-week, 24-hour-a-day baseload capacity

      11       need.  Simple cycle peaking units are not a substitute

      12       for that.  They are merely designed to run most of the

      13       time less than 10 percent capacity factor to serve only

      14       at the peak.

      15                 So I would not say that I am familiar enough

      16       with Seminole's current Ten-Year Site Plan.  I am

      17       familiar with the planning process applied, and I would

      18       gather from this that Seminole has seen increased peak

      19       demand as we have, and they have a choice of either

      20       contracting for that peak load, which they currently

      21       contract for some of that load from our wholesale

      22       organization, or constructing peaking units to serve it.

      23       So I would agree this plan doesn't show Levy.  It is

      24       beyond the ten years demonstrated by this plan.  I don't

      25       agree that these Gilchrist units are related to their
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       1       decision with respect to Levy.

       2            Q.   Okay.  To put it slightly differently, for a

       3       Florida entity that has an identified need for

       4       capacity --

       5            A.   Uh-huh.

       6            Q.   -- within their ten-year planning horizon,

       7       they would now have to commit capital to other resources

       8       with the five-year slippage in Levy?

       9            A.   I can't say yes or no to that.  What I can say

      10       is that they have shown these -- as you've pointed out,

      11       they show these four peaking units in '17, '18, and '19.

      12       Peaking units are a relatively short cycle construction

      13       program.  We can typically set a peaking unit on the

      14       ground in 12 to 15 months.  And so it is very common as

      15       you go through the planning process where you only have

      16       a peak need to show peaking units.  As you approach the

      17       real need, you can evaluate the effects of your energy

      18       efficiency or DSM programs, the availability of peaking

      19       capacity in the market.

      20                 My assessment of what we see here is similar

      21       to our plan.  Potential joint owners, including

      22       Seminole, were not immune from the recession and the

      23       slow down in customer growth and load growth.  That, in

      24       fact, creates more maneuvering room with respect to the

      25       Levy in-service date.  Seminole, I know, is seeing a
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       1       similar approach.  So the delay of Levy doesn't

       2       necessarily imply that Levy doesn't fit in their plan.

       3            Q.   But what we can say is that notwithstanding

       4       the signing of the EPC original contract and the amended

       5       EPC, all of the potential joint owners that you have

       6       been talking to require greater clarity and certainty as

       7       to cost, timing, and schedule, which is what you say in

       8       your testimony, before you expect them to come in, is

       9       that right?

      10            A.   Yes.  And that should not surprise us, nor is

      11       that different from the way I would have characterized

      12       our discussions with them all the way along.  As we

      13       converged on EPC and finalizing joint ownership

      14       agreements, and operating and maintenance agreements,

      15       we, like they, experienced a number of changes in risk,

      16       economic, customer growth, but the principal one was the

      17       necessary delay in the Levy project filing from the LWA.

      18                 As I characterized to Commissioner Skop, I

      19       would not characterize their interest as any less than

      20       it was at that point.  But they, like us, need to have

      21       worked through the process of evaluating and watching us

      22       evaluate whether to proceed, if so, how, setting a new

      23       schedule and then continuing on with our negotiations.

      24            Q.   Thank you.  One of the -- in your earlier

      25       statement in response to questions, while the company
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       1       has always maintained that they could build a -- fund

       2       100 percent of both units, that there were benefits to

       3       joint ownership, two of which were mitigating near term

       4       customer impacts and, basically, sharing the risk of the

       5       project, is that right?

       6            A.   Those are two of them, yes, sir.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Up until the point where a joint owner

       8       actually signs the participation agreement, all of that

       9       risk remains with Progress and its ratepayers, right?

      10            A.   As I indicated earlier, all that risk remains

      11       with Progress.

      12            Q.   Up until the point where its recovered money

      13       from ratepayers?

      14            A.   As we discussed earlier, we are a regulated

      15       business, so we bear the risk of prudently and

      16       reasonably investing this money, and we have a very high

      17       hurdle to clear, and we are trying to clear that sitting

      18       in this room.  Once that hurdle is cleared, and those

      19       investments are reasonable and prudent, they necessarily

      20       price into the price of our product as they do every

      21       other regulated utility, and, in fact, as they do in

      22       every business.

      23            Q.   I am not aware of many businesses that can

      24       require billions of dollars in advance of actually a

      25       facility going into service.
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       1            A.   And this is why we are a regulated utility,

       2       because this is a business that can't be allowed to

       3       fail.  And so -- and because we are the most capital

       4       intensive business in the country, I think that's at the

       5       heart of why we have the process we do.

       6            Q.   Well, let's get back to my original point

       7       here, which is that in terms of risk sharing, a

       8       potential joint owner shares no risks until they

       9       actually sign on the dotted line, is that right?

      10            A.   No risks with respect to the Levy project,

      11       that is correct.

      12            Q.   That is correct.  And as long as Progress is

      13       bearing all the risk, as you put it, and Progress

      14       ratepayers are paying all of the costs, wouldn't it be

      15       reasonable to expect that the joint owners, potential

      16       joint owners, will simply wait until many of the project

      17       risks are clarified?  Why assume the risks if somebody

      18       else is going to pay for it?

      19            A.   Well, this is certainly -- this is certainly a

      20       possible scenario.  But the joint owners risk, in that

      21       case, is not participating in the project.  As I said,

      22       at the beginning of this project, we had to pare back

      23       joint owner appetite to fit with our resource plan.  The

      24       farther down this path we move, and the more -- the more

      25       risk we clear behind us, for example, draft

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1172

       1       environmental impact statement week before last, final

       2       safety evaluation reports, COLA, as we proceed down that

       3       path, by not engaging in the project at the proper time,

       4       they bear the risk that they may not participate in the

       5       project; and, therefore, not reap the substantial

       6       benefits that flow from its construction.

       7            Q.   You have been talking to a number of those

       8       parties since, I believe, in your need testimony at

       9       least 2007?

      10            A.   That's correct.

      11            Q.   Okay.  You received your need determination,

      12       no joint owners, right?

      13            A.   Correct.

      14            Q.   Okay. You received the state cabinet SCA

      15       approval, right?

      16            A.   That's correct.

      17            Q.   No joint owners.  You executed an EPC

      18       agreement, no joint owners?

      19            A.   Yes.  I'm not sure what you mean by no joint

      20       owners.

      21            Q.   No one has signed any commitment to share in

      22       the ownership of the Levy units, either one?

      23            A.   That's correct.

      24            Q.   Okay.  You have amended the EPC contract to

      25       reflect the changes that you have announced this year,
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       1       and at this point no commitments from anybody to join in

       2       the project, is that right?

       3            A.   Well, this is correct, but let me draw you

       4       back.  Our petition of need is for 100 percent of this

       5       plant.  And in the end, we can make good use to our

       6       customers' benefit of 100 percent of this plant.  So our

       7       premise is that joint ownership is important.  It is a

       8       benefit to those owners in the state of Florida as well

       9       as to us and our customers, but it is not required to

      10       continue.

      11            Q.   I understand that.  But my point is simply

      12       that as you have moved forward and gotten these

      13       approvals and signed your original EPC and amended the

      14       EPC, that still has not been sufficient to lead to joint

      15       ownership commitments, is that right?

      16            A.   That's correct.

      17                 MR. BREW:  That's all I have.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I have a question, Mr.

      19       Lyash.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Before Mr. Brew was

      22       asking you about risk in a number of ways, but in

      23       regards to the legislation that had passed allowing the

      24       upfront recoveries, you had indicated or you stated that

      25       the legislation didn't change the risk; it only changed
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       1       the timing.

       2                 Now, I'm not so sure I agree with that.  And

       3       let me ask you, before the legislation passed, before

       4       that became policy and law, when customers were charged

       5       was when the cost -- when the company was allowed to

       6       recover costs was when that was actually in commercial

       7       use, or if it didn't get built, let's say, or something

       8       happened, then you could petition the PSC, and then we

       9       would have the option or the discretion to allow those

      10       cost recoveries or not; is that correct?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, Madam Chair, I would agree

      12       with you perhaps with a clarification that my

      13       understanding on cancellation is that the petition to

      14       the PSC would be to recover, if the decision to cancel

      15       the plant were, in fact, prudent and reasonable, and

      16       that the costs invested up to that point were prudent

      17       and reasonable, then that would be the basis for the PSC

      18       allowing us to recover the cancellation costs.

      19                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Right.  But now since

      20       the legislation has passed, so to me it is not just

      21       timing, if that discretion has been taken away from the

      22       PSC, because the legislation -- and I saw the

      23       amendment -- I didn't see it during the legislation.  It

      24       never came up before me or anything.  Afterwards, and I

      25       remember reading the words that also you could have the

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1175

       1       recoveries granted, even if the plant didn't come to

       2       fruition.  And then I started thinking about what you

       3       said, and I thought, well, there is a risk then, because

       4       the discretion of the PSC to be able to make that

       5       determination now has been taken away.

       6                 So I wonder if you realized that risk was

       7       there also, that it wasn't just timing that changed,

       8       there was risk that changed also in that legislation.

       9                 THE WITNESS:  My understanding, Madam

      10       Chairman, and based on my practical application of this

      11       over the years, is that the approach to cost-recovery

      12       with respect to cancellation of a project remains

      13       unchanged by the legislation.  It perhaps clearly linked

      14       and reinforced the existing approach to project

      15       cancellation, but my understanding is it has always been

      16       such that if a utility were to cancel a project, and

      17       that that were the correct decision, deemed reasonable

      18       and prudent to do so, and the costs were reasonable and

      19       prudent, then the utility should expect recovery.  That

      20       is my understanding, and I think we have seen that

      21       demonstrated in project cancellations in the state over

      22       time.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  But that is not what I

      24       asked you.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1176

       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And that is what I said

       2       before, also, that was prior to the legislation.  But,

       3       yes, it came before the PSC and there was the ability

       4       for the PSC to look and say, well, maybe, maybe not, as

       5       far as recoveries.  So to me, in taking away that

       6       aspect, because it clearly says that you are allowed

       7       recoveries whether it's built or not, if it comes to

       8       fruition or not, but it takes it away from the PSC.  It

       9       takes it away from this regulatory body in making that

      10       determination, which to me says that, then, there is an

      11       increased risk.  You have changed the risk, and I just

      12       wanted to see if you saw it that way.  I mean, I could

      13       read the statute to you.

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I would certainly defer to

      15       you or to legal counsel on the topic.  But my

      16       understanding is that were we to -- for example, in this

      17       project, were we to make a conclusion that project

      18       cancellation was the correct decision for the Levy

      19       project, then we would be here before the PSC to

      20       demonstrate that that decision was prudent, and you

      21       would have the same latitude with respect to the nuclear

      22       plant that you have had with respect to other projects.

      23       That's my understanding.

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  What I would like

      25       staff to do is talk to me about that, because what I get
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       1       from that statute we have to allow the recovery.  It is

       2       not the same as before.  And if it was the same as

       3       before, why was that language added into the statute if

       4       it was already there?

       5                 And I don't want to belabor the point.  I just

       6       want to make the point that it's not just timing.  And

       7       I'm not passing judgment on anything.  I just want to

       8       make sure that we get that clear.  I don't think it is

       9       just timing that changed.  I think that -- or I want to

      10       know if it has reduced the risk somehow -- I mean,

      11       increased the risk somehow, sorry.

      12                 MR. HINTON:  Chairman, just going straight

      13       from the statute, in the event the utility elects not to

      14       complete or is precluded from completing construction of

      15       the nuclear integrated gasification combined cycle

      16       plant, the utility shall be allowed to recover all

      17       prudent preconstruction construction costs.  So there is

      18       the shall be allowed to recover, but there still is that

      19       showing of prudence involved.

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Well, yes, but that's --

      21       of course.  I mean, if they were prudently incurred that

      22       would happen.  But there is a change from what it used

      23       to be, and I think that does change risk a little bit.

      24       It's not just timing.  There is still prudence.  I'm not

      25       saying that there isn't.  They would have to do that

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1178

       1       all -- that is what they are doing in these hearings is

       2       trying to show that they have prudently been incurred,

       3       and, hopefully, that is the case.  But I think it is --

       4       I think it is -- it just got me, I think, when we looked

       5       at it as just a -- or when you stated that it was just a

       6       timing, and I think it has changed a little bit as far

       7       as risk when you say now that we don't have that

       8       discretion.  Because even before they had to show

       9       prudency in their costs.  So the language was added to

      10       the statute to change something that was there before.

      11                 MR. HINTON:  An important part of that change,

      12       I believe, is the timing of recovery.  The Commission

      13       would have latitude about directing the timing of

      14       recovery of those costs.  The statute is very directive

      15       as to the time period that those costs would be

      16       recovered within.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.  But that's two

      18       parts to that that changed.  They still changed the fact

      19       that now they take it away -- basically, taking away

      20       something that we used to have to do here.  Now it is a

      21       shall.  So it is not just timing anymore.  Do you follow

      22       what I'm saying?

      23                 MR. HINTON:  Yes.  And I don't disagree with

      24       you, Chairman.

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  All right.
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       1                 Thank you, Mr. Lyash.

       2                 Ms. Kaufman.

       3                 I'm sorry, I forgot.

       4                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

       5                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       6       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

       7            Q.   Good evening, Mr. Lyash.  Just a few

       8       questions.

       9                 Isn't it true that the Progress Energy Board

      10       of Directors will have to take an affirmative action in

      11       order for the consortium to begin safety-related

      12       construction of the LNP project if it is going to be

      13       built as the project stands now?

      14            A.   Yes.  The project -- the Progress Energy

      15       Board, unlike many boards, requires us to bring before

      16       it authorization of any project activity greater than

      17       $50 million or with a deviation from budget.  So there

      18       is no particular action that the board needs to take in

      19       this project that it does not and has not taken in every

      20       other construction project, including our clean air and

      21       combined cycle construction here in Florida.

      22            Q.   Isn't it true that within the last two weeks

      23       Moody's downgraded Georgia Power's debt rating based on

      24       Georgia Power's ongoing pursuit of new nuclear

      25       generation, among other reasons?
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       1            A.   I'm not aware.

       2            Q.   You have not heard about that at all?

       3            A.   I have been somewhat engaged in preparing for

       4       and listening to these hearings for the last number of

       5       days, I apologize.

       6            Q.   Okay.  Isn't it true that the overall estimate

       7       of the Levy Nuclear Plant contained in the April 2010

       8       IPP with your estimated, your best estimate of AFUDC is

       9       greater than $22 billion?

      10            A.   I would have to go back and look at the IPP,

      11       so I would respond to you this way.  As Mr. Elnitsky

      12       said, our current estimate of the Levy project is

      13       $17.6 billion for in-service date of 2021, with nuclear

      14       fuel but without AFUDC.  The AFUDC number I know has

      15       been calculated around the base case using what we think

      16       is a very conservative cash flow, although that part of

      17       the estimate could change if alternative cash flows are

      18       negotiated.

      19            Q.   But right now that number is -- the number

      20       of -- the total number, 17.636 billion plus your

      21       estimated AFUDC yields a number greater than

      22       $22 billion, correct?

      23            A.   I think that is correct.  And I think we can

      24       see that in the CPVRR that we did as part of the

      25       feasibility.  I believe it uses that number in assessing
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       1       Levy benefits for the various 25 cases that we ran.

       2            Q.   Okay.  And isn't it also true that, as

       3       Mr. Elnitsky testified, that by your own estimate the

       4       range on the high side could be another 13.6 percent

       5       higher?

       6            A.   I believe Mr. Elnitsky's estimate showed that

       7       confidence level around the 17.6 estimate as being

       8       roughly plus or minus 15 percent.  And so just for the

       9       Commission's information, this is one of the reasons in

      10       that CPVRR analysis we included capital sensitivities of

      11       minus 15 plus 25 percent against all the gas and carbon

      12       scenarios so that you could get a sense for a range that

      13       more than covers that sensitivity of what the benefits

      14       of the project would be under those conditions.

      15            Q.   And 13.6 percent -- or 22 billion times

      16       1.136 percent would give you a number in the range -- in

      17       the neighborhood of 25 billion, correct?

      18            A.   I will trust your math on this.

      19            Q.   Never trust a lawyer's math.

      20            A.   Uh-huh.  Or an engineer's interpretation of

      21       the law.

      22            Q.   Isn't it true that discussions with joint

      23       owners, though active as you have described here today,

      24       are materially less active now than they were in 2008

      25       through the first quarter of 2009?
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       1            A.   I'm not sure what you mean by materially less

       2       active.  I would say that they are consistent with where

       3       we are at in the project schedule revision and

       4       negotiation phase.  There is no lessening of interest,

       5       there is no lessening of exchange of relevant

       6       information, but the level of activity is somewhat less

       7       because a lower level of activity is warranted.

       8            Q.   Isn't it true that in your 2008 LNP IPP, there

       9       is an estimation of joint ownership being as high as

      10       $7 billion out of the then $13.9 billion direct estimate

      11       of the project?

      12            A.   I'm sorry, you would have to show me that IPP

      13       for me to take a look at the context, so I can't answer

      14       directly.  I can say we have consistently evaluated

      15       ranges of ownership between zero and 50 percent, with a

      16       general target that we have communicated of 20 to

      17       50 percent ownership in the project.  And at various

      18       points in the various documents we have reflected that

      19       to keep a sense of what the implications of that are for

      20       both our portion of the total project cost as well as

      21       our customers' rates.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  May I just interrupt for

      23       a second.  Commissioners, we are the quorum, so no one

      24       can leave unless it's just a restroom break.  Thank you.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  While Mr. Rehwinkel is doing

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1183

       1       that, may I please thank the Commission, and the staff,

       2       and the intervenors for taking the time to stay this

       3       late hour.  I really do appreciate it.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  We're glad to

       5       accommodate.  I'm glad that the intervenors mentioned

       6       that, because I thought it would be a very long time.

       7       And I had no problem.  I said 10:00 or 11:00 o'clock.

       8       Sorry, staff.  Thank you.

       9                 I don't know, should we order out for pizza?

      10       And do remember, if anyone decides to go out of the

      11       building, I don't think you can get back in unless you

      12       have somebody standing there ready to open the door for

      13       you.

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I guess I would ask you -- I

      15       have an exhibit, and I have tried to hold off on

      16       entering the exhibits until the end, but let's see --

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Is there any way to

      18       get -- are you out of water, Mr. Lyash?  I saw you

      19       shaking it.  Do you need water?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, please.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Do you need water?

      22                 MR. REHWINKEL:  If I might approach the

      23       witness while he is getting his water.

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes, go right ahead.  We

      25       may be able to share a water bottle.
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       1                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I want to show him a document

       2       that I intend to introduce as an exhibit as part of the

       3       agreed upon.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  In general answer to your

       5       question, Mr. Rehwinkel, a percentage ownership would

       6       imply that the co-owner would accept their percentage of

       7       the capital cost and of the AFUDC accumulated on that

       8       capital cost up to the point where they committed to the

       9       joint ownership.  So you can take a percentage ownership

      10       and generally apply it to the total project cost

      11       estimate.  I hope that answers your question.

      12       BY MR. REHWINKEL:

      13            Q.   Well, if you could look at what is an excerpt

      14       from the second page of what is in front of you, an

      15       excerpt, I believe, from a September 5, 2008, IPP?

      16            A.   Yes, that's correct.  And it's what page, I'm

      17       sorry?

      18            Q.   It is just an excerpt.

      19            A.   Uh-huh.

      20            Q.   Does that document indicate that --

      21            A.   Perhaps you can point me to what you are

      22       interested in.  Yes.  This says this request does not

      23       include any joint owner contribution which may be as

      24       high as 7 billion over the course of the project.

      25            Q.   So at the time in 2008 that was -- well, I
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       1       will strike that question.  Isn't it true that joint

       2       ownership is important and maybe even critical in your

       3       overall financing of the project if you are to proceed

       4       with construction?

       5            A.   Yes, I would agree that joint ownership is

       6       important in the way that I have characterized it up to

       7       this point.  I wouldn't consider joint ownership part of

       8       a financing plan, although the level of joint ownership

       9       certainly informs your financing plan.

      10            Q.   Isn't it true that you have had discussions

      11       with various investor types that involve discussions

      12       about the level of projected joint ownership?

      13            A.   I'm not sure who you mean by investor types.

      14            Q.   I'm trying to get around a confidential aspect

      15       of investment options.

      16            A.   Well, let me say this, and maybe this is

      17       responsive.  As we have -- with respect to joint

      18       ownership and financing, and I want to be a little

      19       careful because it's confidential and in some cases it

      20       is the subject of on-going negotiation.  There are joint

      21       owners who serve retail load here in the state,

      22       municipals, co-ops, IOUs.  There are potential joint

      23       owners who might be interested in a financial ownership

      24       position in the state who don't serve retail load, but

      25       might use that as a wholesale opportunity, you know,
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       1       with other participants.  And there are financing

       2       alternatives, for example, NEXI or METI in Japan because

       3       of the level of content that this AP 1000 represents for

       4       their economy.  These are export/import banks.  So I'm

       5       not sure who you are referring to, but all of those

       6       types of entities we have been in discussions with with

       7       respect to joint ownership and financing.

       8            Q.   Thank you.  And one, I think, last question is

       9       you would agree with me, would you not, that even if you

      10       might vigorously disagree with their decision that the

      11       Commission, the Florida Public Service Commission could

      12       decide to direct cancellation of the LNP and that

      13       decision would be reasonable and prudent based on the

      14       record before them so long as you received cost-recovery

      15       as illustrated on Exhibit 216?

      16            A.   I think that my answer to that is yes, but

      17       please allow me to characterize it back for you.  I

      18       would always expect the Commission to apply the

      19       reasonableness and prudent standard to us, as they

      20       should, and that's the burden we carry, and that is the

      21       risk we carry, and exercise it in any proceeding.  So

      22       having said that, we will set that aside.

      23                 As I mention in my testimony, we had two

      24       decisions to make here.  Given the consequential delay

      25       in the project and its movement out in time, we needed
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       1       to, as we should, determine whether we should proceed

       2       with the project, and that entails evaluating the

       3       feasibility of the project.  But even if the project is

       4       feasible, is it in the best interest of our customers

       5       and our company to proceed.  And we decided in the

       6       affirmative that it is in the best interest of our

       7       company and our customers to proceed, and cancellation

       8       is an option, not the optimal option.

       9                 We then focused on how to proceed.  A 36-month

      10       delay, various alternatives, and decided that the

      11       given -- the totality of our assessment that moving it

      12       to the 2021/2022 in-service time we felt was the optimal

      13       decision.

      14                 This is an important decision and by its

      15       nature requires judgment because it focuses forward on

      16       your perspective of issues such as fuel diversity, how

      17       much gas do you want to burn in Florida.  Energy

      18       security, how much control do you want over your fuel

      19       supply, and, therefore, the relative -- the potential

      20       disruptions you might have in it.  Environmental

      21       footprint, what do you want the NOx, SOx, mercury,

      22       carbon, coal combustion by-product output of Florida to

      23       be, and how much risk do you want to take with that.

      24                 Because of that, I recognize that the

      25       Commission could look at the facts, the same facts and

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1188

       1       reach a different conclusion.  The project is not

       2       feasible, perhaps ought to be canceled.  That would not

       3       be an unreasonable decision.  I think a reasonable

       4       individual could come to a different place than I and

       5       the company come to.  We don't view that that is the

       6       right decision to take, and we don't view it is the

       7       optimal decision for our customers in Florida.  But I

       8       acknowledge it is a decision that could be reasonably

       9       made by the Commission.

      10                 If the Commission makes that decision, we'll

      11       respond constructively to it.  But I don't want you to

      12       mistake me as recommending that that is the decision

      13       that should be taken.

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you.  I have no further

      15       questions.

      16                 Thank you, Mr. Lyash.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.

      18                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  Ms. Kaufman.

      19                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Commissioner.

      20                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  We need a

      21       five-minute.  I could wait.  Do you need a break,

      22       Commissioner Skop?

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  (Inaudible, microphone

      24       off.)

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  How about we give
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       1       you three minutes.

       2                 (Recess.)

       3                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Everybody back?

       4       Yes, Ms. Kaufman.

       5                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.

       6                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

       8            Q.   Good evening, Mr. Lyash.

       9                 You'll probably be glad to hear, as the

      10       Commissioners will be, that I just have a very few

      11       questions for you.  And your counsel promised me yes and

      12       no answers.

      13            A.   I will do my best, but that part I'm not very

      14       good at.

      15            Q.   And I just have a few questions for you,

      16       again, about the joint ownership status or lack thereof

      17       of the project.  Is it true that it is still the

      18       company's desire to have joint owners participate in the

      19       Levy project?

      20            A.   Yes, that is our preferred scenario.

      21            Q.   And is it also true, and I think we have

      22       already established this, but as we sit here today there

      23       have been no joint owners that have committed to the

      24       project?

      25            A.   Yes, that is true if in terms of commitment --
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       1       (Inaudible; audio difficulties.) -- that no one has

       2       executed a joint owners agreement at this point, that's

       3       correct.

       4            Q.   And can you tell us when you expect a joint

       5       owner to execute an agreement and commit their capital

       6       to the project, or if you do?

       7            A.   There were two questions there.  Yes, I expect

       8       joint owners to close on the project.  And in the

       9       context of my answer to Commissioner Skop's question.

      10       Because I don't control these parties, it is difficult

      11       to say when, but as the joint ownership discussions

      12       began to solidify around execution of the EPC and

      13       receipt of the COLA schedule, or receipt of our schedule

      14       for the license issuance in late '08 and early '09, I

      15       would expect joint owners confidence in the project to

      16       build as we move through this licensing process toward

      17       license issuance in the end of 2012.  When between those

      18       two time frames today and issuance of the license it is

      19       difficult for me to say when we would finish our

      20       discussions.

      21            Q.   And isn't it true that you really can't say

      22       with assurance that those kind of agreements will be

      23       executed as you sit here today?

      24            A.   That is correct.  As I have said from the

      25       beginning, none of this is a certainty.
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       1                 MS. KAUFMAN:  That's all I have, Madam Chair.

       2       Thank you.

       3                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you.  Mr. Davis.

       4                 MR. DAVIS:  Madam Chair, I realize I am

       5       standing between us and dinner, and my stomach realizes

       6       that, too.  Thank you, Mr. Skop, you took a load off my

       7       shoulders.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Make it quick.

       9                 MR. DAVIS:  I will.

      10                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      11       BY MR. DAVIS:

      12            Q.   Mr. Lyash, good evening.

      13            A.   Good evening.

      14            Q.   Gary Davis with the Southern Alliance for

      15       Clean Energy.  I think I might have said good evening

      16       about this time last year to you, as well, but a couple

      17       of questions.

      18                 MR. DAVIS:  And let me inquire, Madam Chair,

      19       if Mr. Lyash's testimony and the Mr. Miller testimony

      20       from the '09 docket can be judicially noticed for this

      21       docket.  Is that possible?

      22                 MS. HELTON:  I think this is one we probably

      23       need to hear from the company on, Madam Chairman.

      24                 MR. WALLS:  I have no problem with Mr.

      25       Miller's testimony and Mr. Lyash's testimony coming in
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       1       as long as it is all of their testimony.

       2                 MR. DAVIS:  Certainly, and that saves any

       3       argument about what the testimony was last year.  Thank

       4       you.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Very good.

       6       BY MR. DAVIS:

       7            Q.   Mr. Lyash, I think we have established, and I

       8       just want to make sure about this, that you would not

       9       proceed with the Levy Nuclear Project without the

      10       nuclear cost-recovery that you have applied for in this

      11       proceeding, is that right?

      12            A.   Yes, but let me add a clarification.  That

      13       kind of a decision is not mine alone, so that's the

      14       senior management committee and our board of directors.

      15            Q.   You wouldn't recommend --

      16            A.   I would not -- and I have said this --

      17       actually, I think I believe I said something identical

      18       to this in the need case and subsequent.  I think the

      19       alternative cost-recovery process that was put in place

      20       by the legislature in 2006 was a fundamental element

      21       that enabled us to undertake the project.  Knowing the

      22       project as I do, I personally would not recommend to the

      23       senior management committee and the board continuing if

      24       it was substantially changed.

      25            Q.   Okay.  Substantially changed in that you
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       1       didn't recover everything you have asked for in this

       2       case, or part of it, or what?

       3            A.   Well, let me narrow it.  If it was changed.  I

       4       used the word substantially because I don't want to

       5       pretend that I could predict all the ways in which it

       6       might change.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Well, that's fine.  Now, you wouldn't

       8       proceed without a -- or, I'm sorry, you wouldn't

       9       recommend to the board to proceed without a cost of

      10       carbon being imposed at some point in the future on the

      11       carbon-based generation?

      12            A.   No, that's not true.

      13            Q.   So you are saying as we sit here today you

      14       would proceed without a cost of carbon?

      15            A.   I can envision that there are circumstances

      16       where I would recommend proceeding with this project

      17       without a cost of carbon being applied, yes.  And, I

      18       mean, let me explain why.  If you look at that CPVRR,

      19       this project produces huge value for our customers.  The

      20       implication of cost of carbon means -- as I understand

      21       it, means legislation directly affecting greenhouse gas,

      22       and that certainly makes this project much more

      23       important and more valuable.

      24                 However, there are a number of ways that at

      25       the federal and the state level policies and regulations
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       1       can be implemented that will produce the same result or

       2       a similar result.  For example, tightening NOx, SOx,

       3       mercury regulation, BART, CAIR II, MACT, as well as the

       4       EPA's endangerment finding related to CO2 as a pollutant

       5       and the direct regulation of CO2.

       6                 So there are any number of ways individually

       7       or cumulatively that federal policy or state policy can

       8       produce the same result, and, therefore, the same value

       9       from the Levy project as a direct price on carbon.  And,

      10       as a matter of fact, some of those are on-going

      11       currently.

      12            Q.   Well, I mean, as far as CO2-based policy, none

      13       of those are, you know, likely any time soon, correct?

      14            A.   I don't agree with that.

      15            Q.   Okay.  I mean, you mentioned the EPA

      16       endangerment finding, that was for purposes of

      17       regulating vehicular emissions, correct?

      18            A.   No.  I believe the EPA is headed down a path

      19       of regulating large stationery sources, as well.

      20            Q.   The endangerment finding was specifically for

      21       the vehicle emissions, correct?

      22            A.   I'll have to go back and refresh my memory on

      23       this.  There are a number of things on-going at the EPA

      24       related to vehicles and stationery sources with respect

      25       to CO2.  As another example, the EPA is currently
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       1       debating whether to regulate coal combustion

       2       by-products, which we used to call coal ash as a

       3       hazardous waste.

       4            Q.   I know a lot about that.

       5            A.   Yes.  So you know that this has the potential

       6       to substantially raise the price of coal.

       7            Q.   But not natural gas, however.

       8            A.   Any of these things may look the same in the

       9       end result financially to the nuclear project as the

      10       cost to CO2.  You are correct in your statement that it

      11       doesn't -- that coal combustion by-products don't affect

      12       natural gas, however --

      13            Q.   Which is what you compared your Levy project

      14       to.

      15            A.   Well, we run an energy system that has fuel

      16       diversity.  In this particular case, we compared natural

      17       gas to the nuclear plant in the CPVRR, that is correct.

      18       But you also must consider, for example, fuel diversity.

      19       You know, we are headed toward 60 percent natural gas

      20       for energy here in Florida over the coming years.  Do

      21       you want to continue that trend or not?

      22                 So I'm sorry for being long-winded.  My point

      23       at the beginning was you said I would agree that we

      24       would not proceed without a price on carbon, and my

      25       response is I can envision a range of circumstances
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       1       where we might very well proceed without a direct price

       2       on carbon.

       3            Q.   And one of those circumstances would be loan

       4       guarantees, correct?

       5            A.   I'm sorry?

       6            Q.   You would proceed without a price on carbon if

       7       you were able to get loan guarantees from the federal

       8       government with the Levy project?

       9            A.   Loan guarantees are a part of -- a potential

      10       part of the financing plan for Levy.  They are not

      11       necessarily a part of the financing plan.  And, I mean,

      12       I could go into why that is the case, but we continue to

      13       evaluate loan guarantees and to maintain that as a

      14       possible part of the financing plan, but I don't see

      15       loan guarantees as in and of themselves some sort of

      16       go/no go test for this project.

      17            Q.   You, I'm sure, know Jim Rogers with Duke

      18       Energy?

      19            A.   I do.

      20            Q.   And you know that he has said that he wouldn't

      21       pursue nuclear power plants now without loan guarantees

      22       and a price on carbon?

      23            A.   I'm sure Mr. Rogers said that.  He has had a

      24       lot of commentary on all of these policies.  I can't

      25       predict in actuality what he will do.  I do know that he
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       1       submitted a license application for two AP 1000s on the

       2       Lee site in Cherokee County, South Carolina.

       3            Q.   And that he is not pursuing those actively,

       4       correct?

       5            A.   He has got site development on-going on the

       6       site.  So I'm not sure what you mean as actively.  He is

       7       certainly actively pursuing his applications.  I sit on

       8       the new plant oversight committee with his Duke

       9       representative.

      10            Q.   Now, you have a strong incentive to pursue

      11       this project based on the return on your equity for your

      12       rate base, correct?

      13            A.   I'm not sure what your question is.  We don't

      14       have any stronger incentive from a return on equity

      15       point of view for this project over any other project.

      16       Our return on equity is blind to what we are investing

      17       the capital in provided it's the right solution for the

      18       customers.  Our incentive here is that we think this is

      19       the right plant to build for the purposes of fuel

      20       diversity, security, the environment, and the customers'

      21       long-term price.

      22            Q.   This project, once it is fully rate based,

      23       would triple your rate base, is that right?

      24            A.   I'm not sure that's correct.  It would

      25       certainly increase our rate base dramatically.  Tripling
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       1       depends on what other investments we are going to need

       2       to make in the rate base along the way.

       3            Q.   As compared to your 2010 rate base?

       4            A.   I'll accept your assessment.

       5            Q.   Let's talk about your CPVRR for just a minute.

       6       You are sponsoring the exhibit, correct?

       7            A.   Are you referring to JL-3?

       8            Q.   I am.

       9            A.   Yes, I am.

      10            Q.   And I just want to ask you a couple of quick

      11       questions about this.  If you will turn to Page 20.

      12       Actually, it's 21 of 21 on the sticker up at the top of

      13       JL-3, Page 12 of 12 of the appendix.  Do you see that?

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   It's the last page of --

      16            A.   I'm there.

      17            Q.   Okay, thank you.  There is a number six in

      18       terms of your financial and economic assumptions called

      19       general escalation rate.  What is that for?

      20            A.   I'm sorry, I can't recall the specifics of

      21       that particular line item.  I'm sure I can get you that

      22       information, but this is essentially a set of

      23       assumptions that were embedded in the analysis.  And

      24       these two general inflation rate and general escalation

      25       rate are assumptions that are embedded in what the price
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       1       of commodities and a number of other things are going to

       2       do.

       3            Q.   And does that effect your bottom line in the

       4       CPVRR?

       5            A.   Yes.  Well, because it's an assumption, I

       6       would presume that changes in the assumption could

       7       influence the result.  These are a set of consistent

       8       assumptions applied to all alternatives.

       9            Q.   And do you recall what the escalation rate was

      10       in your CPVRR that you submitted in the 2009 nuclear

      11       cost-recovery?

      12            A.   I don't recall.

      13            Q.   Let me just show you quickly.  Was it

      14       3 percent last year?

      15            A.   Yes.

      16            Q.   And you've also pointed out, and we don't need

      17       to go to your testimony if you can recall, that the

      18       major reason that your CPVRR was more positive this year

      19       than last year, or than even your need case CPVRR was

      20       the cost of capital that you used or the discount rate,

      21       is that right?

      22            A.   Yes, except that in this year's CPVRR, just so

      23       that we were transparent, we included two versions, one

      24       with an 8.1 percent discount rate, which is, I think,

      25       consistent with that which we provided last year, and
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       1       the second with the lower discount rate that is

       2       consistent with our current allowed ROE post our last

       3       rate case.

       4            Q.   Right.  And if you were to -- do you know what

       5       the discount rate that you applied in the need

       6       determination was?

       7            A.   I don't have that, but I am -- I don't have

       8       that before me, I'm sorry.  Although, I think we have --

       9       did we include that in the table?

      10            Q.   You have Table 1, which is Page 7 of JL-3, but

      11       it doesn't say what the rate was.

      12            A.   I'm sure that was in the CPVRR that was

      13       provided as background.  I don't recall, specifically,

      14       but I know that the dominant number that impacts here is

      15       the ROE, and the ROE in the '07 CPVRR, I presume, would

      16       have been the same as the one that we used last year in

      17       '09, so I believe they are reasonably consistent.

      18            Q.   And just subject to check, would you agree

      19       that you probably used 8.1 percent in your Table 3

      20       because that's what your need determination had used?

      21            A.   Yes, subject to check.

      22            Q.   Okay.  So, looking at Table 3 as compared to

      23       Table 1, you see more negative results than your need

      24       determination, correct, as compared to the all gas

      25       scenario?
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       1            A.   Well, no, but let me explain in part.  These

       2       two tables -- when you say more negative results, I need

       3       you to make sure you recognize that in the '07 need,

       4       which is in Table 1, we evaluated only three fuel cases,

       5       low, mid, and high.  And in Table 3, we're evaluating

       6       five cases, low, mid, high, and low bandwidth and a high

       7       bandwidth fuel case to provide some additional

       8       information to the Commission.  And so when you say

       9       more, we are evaluating more scenarios.  So several of

      10       them are negative; but the results, while they move

      11       somewhat, I would judge them as generally the same.

      12            Q.   Is it credible that your costs have increased

      13       over $5 billion, and your schedule shifted 60 months,

      14       and your CPVRR looks better now than it did during your

      15       need determination?

      16            A.   Yes, I think it's credible.  These are facts

      17       that are presented, not opinions in the CPVRR.  It is

      18       analytical.  Let me make two points --

      19            Q.   What other assumptions did you change?

      20            A.   I think we have listed the assumptions that

      21       were here, and I don't think there have been any that

      22       have changed that we haven't transparently listed in the

      23       document.

      24                 Let me make two points in direct response to

      25       your question.  No, I don't think it's inconsistent that
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       1       the project moved out in time and escalated in cost and

       2       yet still looks similarly attractive.  And the reason is

       3       because the project did not increase significantly in

       4       capital cost in terms of the defined scope.  There have

       5       not been more feet of pipe, more yards of concrete, less

       6       productivity, more equipment priced into it.  So the

       7       price has not increased in that manner.

       8                 It has primarily increased because as you move

       9       any project out in time and you apply escalation to it,

      10       the type of escalation we typically see in the economy,

      11       its price rises, but so does the price of all the

      12       alternatives.  So does the price of fuel, so do the

      13       environmental costs, so its relative position -- while

      14       it is absolute dollar value may change, its relative

      15       position doesn't change.  That would be the first point.

      16                 The second point I would feel compelled to

      17       make is we have said from the beginning that the CPVRR

      18       is not the test of feasibility.  This is a process now

      19       that has been established by the Commission, and I think

      20       this is information that needs to be used in determining

      21       the feasibility, but a single point at any point in time

      22       to make a determination on this project size is not a

      23       practical approach.

      24            Q.   With regard to the CPVRR, your demand numbers

      25       that you used in this, do they include the DSM goals
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       1       that have been found by the Commission to apply to

       2       Progress?

       3            A.   Yes, they do.  And let me be specific.  What

       4       we built in here was the DSM goals that the Commission

       5       set.  We proposed some alternative goals which were the

       6       subject of a proceeding a week or so ago.  That is not

       7       what we included.  We included the Commission straight

       8       line escalation of the DSM goals.

       9            Q.   You didn't include the prices, though, did

      10       you?

      11            A.   Yes, I believe we did.

      12            Q.   Okay.  And did you include any reduction in

      13       demand as a result of the increased prices?

      14            A.   Well, they would net out of the analysis.  In

      15       other words, the CPVRR is a comparison between two

      16       alternatives.  Either alternative would -- the demand

      17       number would affect your resource plan.  But once you

      18       have settled on these alternatives, the pricing and that

      19       sort of relative thing nets out because it's embedded in

      20       both cases.

      21            Q.   It nets out if the price of the alternative

      22       such as the Levy nuclear plant doesn't add significantly

      23       to that cost, right?

      24            A.   Well, either alternative adds to the cost in

      25       both the short-term and the long-term.
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       1            Q.   But do you have any reflection of a further

       2       reduction in demand as a result of piling the cost

       3       recovery for the nuclear plant on top of DSM goals that

       4       you have set very high prices for in your proposal?

       5            A.   I don't want to get too far down the path of

       6       talking to you about the very specific technical

       7       methodology we do for load forecasting, but load

       8       forecasting is based on our projections of customer

       9       growth, of customer usage patterns.  There is a price

      10       elasticity element in the load forecast that adjusts per

      11       capita customer use based on price elasticity.  Those

      12       are all built into our standard load forecasting

      13       methodology.

      14                 I believe that methodology is the same one

      15       used to forecast demand in all of our analysis.  Beyond

      16       that, I can't really get into very specific questions.

      17       Someone else perhaps would be better to go into that.

      18            Q.   The weighted cost of capital that you used for

      19       the more positive CPVRR results was 6.75 percent,

      20       correct?

      21            A.   Yes, that's correct.

      22            Q.   And that would certainly be affected by these

      23       negative ratings that you have gotten from the different

      24       equity and bond rating agencies, would it not?

      25            A.   Negative bond ratings could affect your cost
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       1       of debt if unmitigated, but that wouldn't be our

       2       intention.  Our intention here is to maintain our credit

       3       metrics and our bond ratings consistent with our

       4       assumptions in this plan.

       5                 These CPVRRs, as I said, and it's a reason you

       6       can't use them solely for a feasibility analysis by

       7       their nature look at a point in time, and so at the

       8       present point in time we have an allowed ROE, and there

       9       is a cost of debt which we are experiencing in the

      10       markets today and which we think is representative.

      11       What you're asking is might that change.  Either of

      12       those might change over time.

      13            Q.   And your ratings have gone down because of

      14       your pursuit of a nuclear power plant, correct?

      15            A.   No, I wouldn't characterize it in that manner.

      16       Our ratings are constantly being evaluated by the rating

      17       agencies.  There are a number of factors that effect the

      18       ratings.  They include our financial plan, the

      19       perception of our capital investment, the regulatory and

      20       legislative and public policy atmosphere, the specific

      21       economy.  Those are all factors.  Rating agencies, we

      22       did have rating agencies review our debt ratings and

      23       make some decisions about downgrade or watch status.

      24       Those discussions reflected the totality of those issues

      25       that they looked at.  None of them were specifically

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                   1206

       1       targeted, or I think even substantially targeted at our

       2       Levy project.  And they told us two things:  One was

       3       that the aggregate of these effects needs to be watched

       4       carefully and managed and mitigated to the extent we

       5       can; that there is a short-term negative outlook, but

       6       they also reaffirmed that they did not view that there

       7       was any fundamental shift that changed the long-term

       8       outlook for the company.

       9            Q.   Well, we will let the reports speak for

      10       themselves that you have included.  As far as the

      11       question that I believe Mr. Brew asked about Levy

      12       appearing in your Ten-Year Site Plan, it was in your

      13       Ten-Year Site Plan this year, was it not?

      14            A.   I can't recall at what point.  We typically

      15       submit the Ten-Year Site Plan in April.

      16            Q.   April 1st.

      17            A.   Yes.  And so my -- I haven't refreshed on

      18       that.  My presumption is it still shows in there because

      19       we hadn't finished our analysis of what the final

      20       schedule at Levy would be.

      21            Q.   But your board approved a final shift for

      22       60 months in March, correct?

      23            A.   I need to go back and kind of refresh my

      24       memory.

      25            Q.   March 17th, I believe.
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       1            A.   Well, yes, March 17th, and I believe we

       2       executed the contract at the end of March, but I would

       3       have to go back and refresh on the Ten-Year Site Plan.

       4       That Ten-Year Site Plan takes a tremendous amount of

       5       analytical work.  There are many model runs and there is

       6       a lot of data to generate underneath it.  So my

       7       recollection is that, you know, that Ten-Year Site Plan

       8       would have been in development and targeted for

       9       submittal on April 1st, well before we made the

      10       decision.

      11                 My recollection is we likely let that flow

      12       with the process and be submitted, although I seem to

      13       recall that we may have footnoted the plan with some

      14       information that said there were some schedules under

      15       reevaluation, but I'm not sure.  But if you asked me if

      16       they are inconsistent, I would say no.

      17            Q.   Have you revised the Ten-Year Site Plan since

      18       April?

      19            A.   We typically do it every April.  It's not a

      20       monthly or a -- it's an annual submittal.

      21            Q.   So the next one will show capacity additions

      22       to make up for the addition of the Levy plant in 2019?

      23            A.   Yes.  The next Ten-Year Site Plan will reflect

      24       the new in-schedule service date for Levy, and as we

      25       roll forward, so the ten-year window should show Levy 1
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       1       in 2021, because that will just be inside the Ten-Year

       2       Site Plan.  And as part of that process we will have

       3       reprojected load and a number of other things and we

       4       will show any alternative resources that are required.

       5            Q.   I won't go through all of your testimony, but

       6       starting on about Page 12 of your direct and going all

       7       the way up to probably in the 30s in your -- actually to

       8       Page 38, you have got a list of the -- you call them

       9       enterprise risks?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11            Q.   All of them negative and trending negative for

      12       the construction, ultimately, of the Levy Nuclear Plant,

      13       right?

      14            A.   No, I wouldn't characterize this as an

      15       assessment that all of these are negative or trending

      16       negative.  I think the reason for including this relates

      17       to the reason -- the question Mr. Rehwinkel asked me

      18       earlier.  We, in evaluating feasibility, have to look at

      19       not just the CPVRR, but all of these qualitative factors

      20       and other quantitative factors, including enterprise

      21       risk.  In recognition that this -- the feasibility

      22       decision and the decision to proceed is an important one

      23       that the Commission needs to be in a position to

      24       understand our basis for, we included these detailed

      25       discussions of these enterprise risks.  Some of them
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       1       are -- and in the aggregate there is more uncertainty

       2       and greater risk today than there was a year ago with

       3       respect to the project specifically.

       4            Q.   And I won't argue with you about that, but, I

       5       mean, as I look through Page 12 to 38 I didn't see

       6       anything positive.

       7            A.   Well, let me give you a positive and

       8       illustrate how this changes over time.  While the

       9       licensing risk related to the project that earlier in

      10       the year had trended negative, in fact, the Commission

      11       has issued a schedule to Westinghouse in the DCD design.

      12       The shield building technical issue appears to have a

      13       sound technical resolution that is on track.  Our draft

      14       environmental impact statement has been issued with a

      15       positive recommendation.

      16                 So these risks ebb and flow.  There was a

      17       greater risk and less certainty with respect to

      18       licensing at the point we were making these decisions.

      19       Right now I think some of that risk is beginning to

      20       abate, and I think it will continue to ebb and flow in

      21       that manner.

      22            Q.   And in the aggregate, though, you still agree

      23       it's negative?

      24            A.   Less certainty, yes.

      25            Q.   Okay.  And yet you are still bullish on the
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       1       Levy Nuclear Project?

       2            A.   Well, bullish is your characterization.  I

       3       certainly wouldn't use that at all.

       4            Q.   Well, you speak about the benefits of it.

       5            A.   As I should, because they are substantial.

       6       One hundred billion over 40 years is not something to be

       7       dismissed.

       8            Q.   And you still say you intend to pursue the

       9       project?

      10            A.   Yes, that's correct.

      11            Q.   Doesn't that remind you a little bit about

      12       Ronald Reagan's favorite joke about the incurable

      13       optimist who when confronted with a roomful of manure

      14       said he was going to find the horse?  (Laughter.)

      15            A.   No, it doesn't remind me of that at all.  If

      16       you would like me to expand on that, I will, but I'm not

      17       sure I want to.

      18            Q.   There must be a pony in here somewhere.  There

      19       must be a nuclear plant in here somewhere.

      20            A.   Look, let me back up from this and remind you

      21       that nuclear plants are expensive on the front end.  And

      22       we have spent a lot of time talking about the cost, and

      23       what has been striking to me as we talk about this is

      24       that what we haven't talked about -- no one challenges

      25       that the 104 plants operating in this country today are
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       1       delivering substantial benefit day in and day out.

       2                 What we're not talking about is that once this

       3       plant goes into service, it produces tremendous benefits

       4       for the customers for 60 to 80 years.  Don't misread me,

       5       I wouldn't mischaracterize myself as bullish or not

       6       bullish on this.  That's not the question here.  The

       7       question is what is in -- what policy, energy policy

       8       does the state of Florida want to support?  And given

       9       that, what action should we take and what alternatives

      10       should we consider?

      11                 The company firmly believes that nuclear

      12       continues to be an important part of the long-term

      13       energy mix and that to walk away from this would be a

      14       mistake.  That's the way I would characterize my feeling

      15       about the project.  Not bullish, but eyes wide open to

      16       both the costs and the benefits.

      17            Q.   Two final questions here.  The first is do you

      18       have any information as you sit here today that you

      19       haven't presented in your testimony or presented to the

      20       Commission this evening that the Commission ought to

      21       consider in making its decision in this case?

      22            A.   No.

      23            Q.   Would you, if you receive any such information

      24       in the next two months that might be important to this

      25       Commission's decision, provide it to the Commission?
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       1            A.   Yes, I would if I felt it was both necessary

       2       and consistent with the regulatory process that's laid

       3       out.  And I only hesitate because we are not in the

       4       habit of providing daily reports on a project of this

       5       nature.  We are in the habit of following the process

       6       and being absolutely as transparent as we can be.

       7            Q.   And I'm not asking for a daily report, but if

       8       something comes up between now and the decision point in

       9       this docket, would you agree that if it were significant

      10       to the Commission's decision you would provide it to

      11       them?

      12            A.   Yes, I would.  And as evidence of that, I

      13       would harken back to last year's -- not to reopen this,

      14       last year's proceeding.  My personal recollection of

      15       that, and it's burned in my memory, is that in that case

      16       both Mr. Miller and I acknowledged pretty openly that

      17       this was a minimum 20-month delay, that we were not

      18       clear about what the ultimate delay would be, but it

      19       would likely be more than 20 months to build float back

      20       into the schedule, and that that would likely raise the

      21       price of the plant.

      22                 And that is an example, I think, when we go

      23       back and look at the record that you are going to find

      24       out it was an observation that we felt needed to be

      25       shared, and we, in fact, shared it.
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       1                 MR. DAVIS:  And I'm not going to take the time

       2       to argue with that.  We will let the record speak for

       3       itself.  Thank you.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thank you very much.  Do

       5       you have a question?  Commissioner Skop.  Staff,

       6       questions?

       7                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff has no questions provided

       8       that the agreement is still in place from this morning

       9       in terms of the deposition.

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Is that --

      11                 MR. WALLS:  Yes.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Commissioner

      13       Skop.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      15                 And good evening, Mr. Lyash, again.  I guess

      16       this is perhaps my last opportunity to ask you questions

      17       as a Commissioner.  I might not see you in a future

      18       proceeding, so I'm going to try and take the opportunity

      19       to ask two quick ones.

      20                 With respect to the EPC contract, you were

      21       integrally involved in negotiating that contract, is

      22       that correct?

      23                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And as we stand

      25       here tonight, to the best of your knowledge having
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       1       probably still been involved in the negotiations that

       2       are confidential, do you see any reason why Progress

       3       would not have been prudent in protecting the interest

       4       of its ratepayers while preserving its nuclear option?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  No, I don't, Commissioner.  That

       6       is -- I can assure you, that's at the heart of my job.

       7       That's one of my responsibilities.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Thank you.

       9                 Madam Chair, I guess upon the witness being

      10       dismissed and stepping down and concluding the PEF

      11       portion of the docket, I do have some comments regarding

      12       planning purposes.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      14                 MR. WALLS:  No redirect.  We do have exhibits.

      15                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  We do have exhibits.

      16       Okay.  Let's get the exhibits entered.

      17                 MR. WALLS:  We have direct exhibits and

      18       rebuttal exhibits.  The direct exhibits of Mr. Lyash are

      19       identified in the Staff Comprehensive Exhibit List as

      20       Numbers 25 through 30, and the rebuttal exhibits are

      21       identified in the Staff Comprehensive Exhibit List as

      22       Numbers 92 through 95.  And we will move at this time

      23       both the direct and rebuttal exhibits into evidence.

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So moved.  Thank you.

      25                 (Exhibit Numbers 25 through 30 and 92 through
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       1       95 admitted into the record.)

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.  Madam Chairman, I have

       3       two housekeeping matters.

       4                 First of all, Mr. Brew, after helping

       5       accommodate the parties' schedule, had to rush off to

       6       catch a plane, and asked if I would -- and I hope the

       7       parties don't have an objection to -- move Exhibit 222.

       8                 MR. WALLS:  No objection.

       9                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And then I need to --

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So moved.

      11                 MR. REHWINKEL:  -- move the stack of 16

      12       exhibits plus the deposition transcript.

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Let's do that.

      14                 MR. REHWINKEL:  So, I guess just going down

      15       the list, I guess the next number is 223, and that

      16       exhibit would be PEF 2007 LNP Handout.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So moved.

      18                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Number 224 would be Excerpt

      19       from 2008 Need Study.

      20                 MR. YOUNG:  Madam Chairman, and that is all in

      21       front of you right there that Mr. Rehwinkel passed out.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Right.  Thank you.

      23                 MR. REHWINKEL:  225 would be December 2008 PGN

      24       BOD Chairman's Report.

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Do the court reporters
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       1       have those?

       2                 MR. YOUNG:  I think it was, but we are going

       3       to provide another copy just to be absolutely sure.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Rehwinkel, if I could

       6       ask you with respect to the first exhibit, which I think

       7       has been marked 223, can you run through those numbers

       8       real quick.  I was having to resort my exhibits.

       9                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I'm sorry, I didn't hear you.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  With respect to the

      11       new stack of 16 exhibits, I believe the starting number

      12       was 223?

      13                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes, sir.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Can you briefly go through

      15       the titles so I can get caught back up to make sure I'm

      16       marking these right.

      17                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.  223 is PEF 2007 LNP

      18       handout.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Thank you.

      20                 MR. REHWINKEL:  224 is excerpt from 2008 Need

      21       Study; 225 is December 2008 PGN BOD Chairman Report;

      22       226 will be Response to Staff Interrogatories 7 through

      23       9; 227 would be LNP Status Slide; 228 would be

      24       August 14, 2008, PGN Board Agenda.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I wasn't invited to that
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       1       one.  (Laughter.)

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  229 would be September 2008

       3       IPP Excerpt.  And just for the record, that is a

       4       document that I asked Mr. Lyash a question about.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

       6                 MR. REHWINKEL:  230 would be December 2008

       7       LINC Summary; 231 would be March 23rd, 2009, SMC

       8       Presentation; 232 would be March 16th, 2009, SMC

       9       Presentation; 233 would be January 2009, One Pager.

      10                 MR. BURNETT:  And, Madam Chair, I'm so sorry

      11       to interrupt in the middle, but just between the

      12       numbers, may Mr. Lyash go?

      13                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Yes, you

      14       certainly can.  You are excused.

      15                 MR. BURNETT:  Thank you.  Sorry to interrupt.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  No, no problem.  Thank

      17       you very much.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Commissioners.

      19                 And, once again, I appreciate your and the

      20       intervenors and the staff's time this evening.  Thank

      21       you.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Glad we could get it

      23       done.  Thank you.

      24                 MR. REHWINKEL:  234 will be July 2009, One

      25       Pager; 235 is PEF Response to Staff Interrogatories 26
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       1       through 27; 236, September 17th, 2009, PGN Board

       2       Presentation; 237, June 17, 2009, Levy Update for SMC;

       3       and, finally, 238 is April 15, 2009, PGN Board

       4       Presentation.

       5                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So moved.

       6                 MR. REHWINKEL:  And then 240 would be the

       7       August 12th --

       8                 MS. HELTON:  239, I think.

       9                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I'm sorry.  Okay.  Yes, 239, I

      10       apologize, would be the August 12, 2010, deposition of

      11       Jeffrey Lyash.  And I would move 223 through 239.

      12                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  So moved.  Thank you.

      13                 (Exhibit Numbers 222 and 223 through 239

      14       admitted into the record.)

      15                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Staff, any other --

      17       okay.  Go ahead.

      18                 MR. YOUNG:  Just a clarification.  The Lyash

      19       depo did not have late-filed exhibits, or did it have

      20       late-filed exhibits?

      21                 MR. REHWINKEL:  No late-filed exhibits.

      22                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.

      23                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Any other matters?

      24                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.  Just to make sure --

      25                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Anything else we need to
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       1       address right now?

       2                 MR. YOUNG:  No, ma'am.  We can move in the

       3       exhibits and then we'll address critical dates.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Commissioner

       5       Skop.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  A question to

       7       staff.

       8                 So, Mr. Young, does this conclude the Progress

       9       Energy portion of the docket, of the testimony of the

      10       evidentiary hearing at this point?

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  We're hesitant to say, because we

      12       don't think the exhibits have been moved in as of yet,

      13       as of right now and the critical dates have been given.

      14       So upon completion of those, then the Progress case will

      15       be concluded.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  So staff is not

      17       prepared to go through the critical dates at this point,

      18       they will do it at the end of the proceeding?

      19                 MR. YOUNG:  Upon moving the exhibits in and we

      20       can give the critical dates.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  So,

      23       Madam Chair --

      24                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Mr. Young, did you have

      25       anything else to say?  Hold on.
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  Just for expediency purposes and

       2       bifurcation, if we can possibly move in the PEF

       3       exhibits, I'm not too sure they have been moved in at

       4       this time.  We can give critical dates, and then we can

       5       move forward from that point unless the parties have

       6       something else they'd like to discuss.

       7                 MR. WALLS:  I'm a little confused.  I thought

       8       the exhibits had been moved in.

       9                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes.  I thought we moved

      10       them in.  Yes, I think we did.

      11                 MS. HELTON:  I think Mr. Rehwinkel asked for

      12       them to be moved, and I think I heard the Chairman say

      13       they were moved.

      14                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  We did.

      15                 MR. WALLS:  The only issue that remains is

      16       just the confidentiality, that we still have to go

      17       through these and make sure we get the right

      18       designations on the bulk of -- especially the ones that

      19       just came in right now.  And we do have confidential

      20       copies of the depositions available.

      21                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.

      22                 MS. HELTON:  And it is also my understanding,

      23       and I think, Chairman, I talked to you about this maybe

      24       yesterday, that you all would be providing redacted

      25       copies of the exhibits that we can put on the website
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       1       with the other exhibits.

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Right.  Thank you.

       3                 MR. WALLS:  That's correct.

       4                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Okay.  Thank you.  So

       5       then we should be good.

       6                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, we are.  I'm sorry for the

       7       confusion.  At the Chairman's pleasure, I can give the

       8       critical dates and we can conclude Progress' hearing as

       9       it relates to this docket.

      10                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Sounds good.

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.  Critical dates.  The

      12       transcripts -- briefs should be due on September 10th,

      13       2010.  Staff's recommendation would be forthcoming on

      14       September 30th, 2010, for the December 12th agenda,

      15       2010.

      16                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  For September 12th --

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  I mean October 12th.  Excuse me.

      18       It's been a long day.

      19                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Yes, it has.  Okay.

      20                 MR. YOUNG:  At this time, Madam Chairman, we

      21       conclude the Progress portion of the hearing.

      22                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Thanks, everybody.  Be

      23       careful going home.

      24                 Commissioner Skop.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.
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       1                 And since we have concluded the Progress

       2       portion of this docket, my final comments and discussion

       3       is necessitated by planning purposes for the FPL portion

       4       of this docket.

       5                 FPL is a party to the proceeding, but I don't

       6       know if their counsel or members of FPL are still in the

       7       room at this time?  Okay.  Well, I think that is due

       8       process, so let me go into my concerns.

       9                 Mr. Anderson's earlier comments were not well

      10       taken.  Never in the history of the Commission has a

      11       Commissioner been treated with such blatant disrespect

      12       by a regulated utility.  That being said, I'm not

      13       intimidated by FPL, and I have absolutely no intention

      14       of backing down from my prior reasonable request to have

      15       Mr. Olivera appear before this Commission.

      16                 I have sufficient legal basis to justify my

      17       request, and at this point, for planning purposes, I'm

      18       left with three available options.  First and foremost

      19       would have been voluntary compliance.  FPL had the

      20       opportunity to reasonably respond and honor a reasonable

      21       request.  I don't believe they have done so.  If

      22       anything, I got a tirade by Mr. Anderson this morning.

      23       So the voluntary compliance option seems to be not a

      24       possibility at this point.

      25                 A second option would be the will of the
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       1       majority of the Commission.  We do have three

       2       Commissioners present.  There is a quorum.  FPL's

       3       counsel is not present.  We are in the FPL portion of

       4       the docket.  I can't speak for why the other two

       5       Commissioners left.  It's not my intent to subvert them,

       6       but I'm faced with the fact that tomorrow morning we

       7       need to be ready to go, and I need to plan accordingly

       8       in order to have my request honored.

       9                 The third option would be a subpoena.

      10       Pursuant to statute under 350.123, the Commission may

      11       issue subpoenas.  Pursuant to Florida Statute

      12       120.569(2)(f) the presiding officer has the power to

      13       issue the subpoena, so that is not subject to a majority

      14       vote by the Commission.

      15                 Again, I'm trying not to put people in a bad

      16       position here.  I recognize that I'm trying to have a

      17       reasonable request honored.  You would think that the

      18       utility would honor that request.  They have chosen at

      19       this point and at this hour not to do so.

      20                 So if it would be well received by the

      21       Commission -- by the Chair, because, again, I'm not

      22       trying to put anyone in a spot, I would ask or

      23       respectfully move to vote to -- and I'm not making a

      24       motion.  But, again, I'm positing this to see how well

      25       received it might be by the Chair -- I would be prepared
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       1       to make a motion for a majority vote of the Commission

       2       as to whether Mr. Olivera per the will of the Commission

       3       should appear to -- as a result of his case, and the

       4       questions I have are directly related to issues and

       5       documents related to this docket, or I could look to the

       6       Chair to issue a subpoena.

       7                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  Commissioner Skop, I

       8       appreciate your concerns, and you have every right to

       9       have your concerns.  One problem I have to tell you is I

      10       gave my word to the other Commissioners that we weren't

      11       going to deal with FPL tonight, and whatever anybody

      12       wants to think about me and the many names I have been

      13       called by many, my word is gold, and I can't do that.

      14       With all due respect --

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Well, I was not privy to

      16       that commitment.

      17                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  And maybe they would

      18       have decided not to leave, you know, if we were going to

      19       deal with that, and we told FPL they could go home,

      20       also.  So I can't.  That is not saying I don't respect

      21       your concerns or don't think that they are valid; I just

      22       can't do that.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Well, okay.  Well, I

      24       appreciate that, and I didn't mean to put the Chair in a

      25       spot.  Again, I was not privy to that representation --
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       1                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I understand.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  -- or that request by

       3       other Commissioners.

       4                 However, I am in somewhat of a predicament to

       5       the extent that we are going to begin tomorrow morning,

       6       and obviously we will be taking up the proposed

       7       stipulations.

       8                 As I have previously stated, I have quite a

       9       bit to say on that.  I hope that I'm afforded the

      10       courtesy, the professional courtesy by my colleagues of

      11       articulating my concerns with great specificity, which I

      12       intend to do.  Again, that is going to be a very

      13       pointed, candid discussion of why just unilaterally

      14       agreeing to such stipulations is inappropriate.  But

      15       moreover, I do have questions for Mr. Olivera, and I am

      16       not so sure why the company is reluctant on their part

      17       to have him appear.

      18                 Certainly, you know, that was a reasonable

      19       request, and they could have chosen to do so

      20       voluntarily.  So I'm not only disappointed by that, but

      21       I am extremely disappointed by the tremendous disrespect

      22       that I was shown by their corporate counsel this

      23       morning.  Never in the history of this Commission that I

      24       know of has a Commissioner sitting on the bench been

      25       treated with such blatant disrespect.
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       1                 Thank you.

       2                 CHAIRMAN ARGENZIANO:  I'm not sure what to say

       3       at this point.  I think -- you know, I expressed concern

       4       today about getting information, and I would like to

       5       know if the information -- I don't know what to say at

       6       this point.  What I would really rather say is maybe in

       7       the morning we take this whole thing up.

       8                 I do want to tell Progress and the intervenors

       9       that I really appreciate the way you do things.  And I

      10       mean that.  I may not be here -- well, I'm not going to

      11       be here that much longer, so I want to tell you I

      12       appreciate the transparency from Progress.  We may not

      13       agree on everything, and as one of your witnesses I

      14       think said today we can have honest differences of

      15       opinions, but I surely do appreciate your transparency

      16       and the way you do business.  I'm really proud of you

      17       for that, especially coming from Crystal River.

      18                 And the intervenors, thank you so much.  I

      19       think you do such a professional job, and I do

      20       appreciate that.  So let's kind of end on that note

      21       tonight, and we will see everyone in the morning at

      22       9:30, give or take five or ten minutes.

      23                 Thank you.

      24                 (The hearing adjourned at 8:05 p.m.)
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